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Within the parish are some mineral springs, | w?u
of which po::oses calcareous and ferruginous propert

Bog iron and bituminous schist, or slate coal, are forund
in profusion ; also good bnck-clay of a blue colour, in
which are oyster shells nine inches in diameter, large
scallop and muscle shells, cornua ammonis, mineralised s
wood, and a quantity of pyrites. Some specimens of
iron-ore, dug at Belchalwel, near this place, have been
analysed, and found to contain four grains of gold in
the pound weight. Curious fossils have been discovered
in the flint rocks, with some chalcedony and carmelite :
om the side of a chalk hill were found the bones, teeth,
and tusks, of the mammoth ; the bones were of great
size, but mouldered on being touched. In draining
‘some land a few years since, ancient ornaments of fine
gold, weighing from eight to nine ounces, consisting of
a wreath more than four feet long, with a trumpet-
shaped ornament at each end, and at the larger end a
ring of gold three inches in diameter, were discovered ;
these were probably a Druidical collar and armlet, as it
is known the Druids adorned their persons with trinkets
of this description. Many uius, filled with ashes and
burnt bones, have been found from time to time, and in
Etﬁng gravel on the hills, twenty-four of them were

iscovered in one barrow.

HILTON, a township in the parish of StainprOP,’
south-western division of DArLINGTON Ward, county pa-
latine of DurBAM, 6% miles (8, 8.W.) from Bishop-Auck-
land, containing 113 inhabitants.

HILTON, a parish in the hundred of ToseLanD,

county of HuNTiNGDON, 3} miles (8.8.W.) from St.
| Ives, containing 303 inhabitants. The living is a perpe-
tual curacy, annexed to the vicarage of Fen-Stanton, in
the archdeaconry of Huntingdon, and diocese of Lincoln,
The church is dedicated to St, Mary Magdalene.

HILTON, a township in that part of the parish of
WovrverBAMPTON Wwhich is in the ecastern division of
the hundred of CurrLEsTONE, county of Sta¥rorp, 4%
miles (N.E. by N.) from Wolverhampton, containing 55
inhabitants. Here was anciently a chapel, which was de-

‘dicated to St. John the Baptist, but it has been demo-
lished. A Cistercian abbey, in honour of the Blessed
Virgin Mary, was founded in 1223, by Henry de Audley,
the revenue of which, at the dissolution, was estimated
at £89. 10. 1.

HILTON,
HELTON

HILTON a parish in the western division of the
liberty of LanesaureH, North riding of the county of
Yorxk, 3} miles (E.8.E.) from Yarm, contammg 185 in-
hbxtanta The living is a perpetual curacy, in the arch-

of Cleveland, and diocese of York, endowed
w&hd%ﬂwyﬂ bounty. Lord G. H. Cavendish was
patron in 1818. .

HIMBLETON, a parish in the middle division of
the hundred of Oswarpsrow, county of Wmnmn,
4} mileg (8.E.) from Droitmd\.monunnhg, i

hﬂmlctd Shell, 482 inhabitants. = The livix

county of WESTMORLAND. — See
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limg is a rectory, in the archdeaconry of Stafford, and
diocese of Lichfield and Coventry, rated in the king's
books at £3.13. 4. The Earl of was patron
in 1799. The church is dedicated to St. Mithael,
Courts leet and baron are held annually ; there is alsoa
copyhold court. Himley has been long notedfor its blade-
mills, which impart a peculiar shupnua to edge-tools. "
HINCASTER a township in the parish of Hevers-
HAM, Kenpan ward, county of WEesTMORLAND, %
miles (N.N.E.) from Milnthorpe, containing 120 inha-
bitants. The Kendal and Lancaster canal passes through:
a tunnel north of this township. There are annual do-
nations of about £7 for the support of a school. ;
HINCHINBROOK, partly in the .parish of Sr.
Mary, borough of HunTiNGpON, and partly in the hun-
dred of HursTingsToNE, the latter portion being extra-
parochial, county of Hunrinepon, 1 mile (W.) from
Huntingdon. A small Benedictine nunnery, dedicated
to St. James, was founded here by William the Con-
queror, to which the nuns removed from' Eltesley, in
Cambridgeshire; its revenue, at the dissolution, was
£19. 9. 2.: the site is now occupied by Hinchinbrook
house, which formerly belonged to Sir Oliver Cromwell,
uncle of the Protector, who sumptuously entertained
James 1. in it, with all his court, on the monarch’s arris
val from Scotland, also Charles II. at different periods :
the mansion, which has recently sustained considerable
injury from a fire, now belongs to the Earl of Sandwich,
who enjoys the inferior title of Viscount Hinchinbroke.
HINCKLEY, a parish comprising the market town
of Hinckley, the chapelries of Dadlington and Stoke-
Golding, and the hamlet of Wykin, in the hundred of
SPARKENHOE, county of LuicesTER, and the hamlet of
Hydes-Pastures in the southern division of the hun-
dred of KnigaTLOW, county of WARwICK, and con-
taining, exclusively of Hydes-Pastures, 6706 inhabitants,
of which number, 5835 are in the town of Hinckley,
13 miles (S.W. by W.) from Leicester, and 100 (N.W:
by N.) from London. This place was created a barony *
soon after the Conquest,and held by Hugh de Grentigme
nil, seneschal of England in the reignlﬂfwmiam Ruifu
and Henry L., who erected a stately e and a
and founded a small priory of
which, prior to 1173, was gwen,lt
of Lyra, in Normandy, by Robe;
of Leicester: ha fallen into
Richard II. gave af ‘to the Cart
grace, in Yorkshire, to which
Henry V., and, on the’ duuol
gmntodtothe can and Chal
Under its o
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limits of the ancient town, and the Bond, without those
limits. . The houses are mdﬂl’erently built, the town
is paved but not lighted, and is well supphed with
water : the walks and views are pleasant and exten-
sive. A permanent subscription library, including a news -
room,  has lately been established. The waste lands
were enclosed in 1760, and one-seventh of the lordship
allotted to the Dean and Chapter of Westminster. The
town has derived great benefit from the introduction of
the stocking manufacture, which is now so extensive that
a greater quantity of cotton and worsted hose, particu-
larly the former, of the coarser kind, is supposed to be
. made. here than in any other town of equal size in the
kingdom : the number of frames in the town and villages
adjacent is computed at two thousand five hundred, af-
fording employment to nearly three thousand persons.
It possesses a commercial communication with all parts
of the kingdom by means of the Ashby canal, which
traverses the south-western part of the parish. The
market.is on Monday ; and fairs are held annually on
the 1st, 2d, and 3rd Mondays after January 6th, Easter-
Monday, the Monday before Whitsuntide, and also on
‘Whit-Monday, on August 26th, and the Monday after
October 28th : the last is a cheese fair, and the rest are
for horses, cattle, and sheep. The town is under the
government of a mayor, or bailiff, a constable, and two
headboroughs, chosen at the annual court leet of the lord
of the manor: the Bond, or Bound, is under that of a
constable and three headboroughs. There is also a town-
master, chosen at the church on the Tuesday in Easter
week, who is empowered, in conjunction with his prede-
cessor in the office, to audit annually the accounts of
the trustees of the feoffment. In 1764, Shuckburgh
Ashby, Esq. gave up to the town the tolls on corn
and hogs, in order that they might be abolished. The
izhall was rebuilt in 1803, by means of funds
% from what is called the Feoffment benefaction.
A bridewell was erected in 1768, the magistrates at the
sions allowing £25 towards the expense, and the re-
ainder being paid by the overseers of the poor.
llvmg is a vicarage, in the archdeaconry of Lei-
dio_cmof Lincoln, rated in the king's books
d in the patronage of the Dean and
nster. The church, dedicated to St.
ce, erected chiefly in the thir-
wer and gly-proportioued
, : . church under-
' w windows in-
d, in 1808, at an expense
and it has recently re-
d forty free sit-
which, the In-
and chapels
of ease which

arians, and a R’oman%Cutho-
ition of the Catholic college
me years ago, the institution
it has a library, ¢ 3
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from the funds belonging to the Feoffment benefaction ;
and an infant school has been recently established, which
is supported by subscription. At a short distance from
Hinckley, on the road to Lutterworth, is a spring called
Holy Well, and in the neighbourhood are good mineral
:ﬁi;:rs, at Cogg's well, Christopher's spa, and the Priest

HINDERCLAY, a parish in the hundred of BLAck-
BOURN, county of SurroLk, 2 miles (N.W. by W.) from
Butesdak coutaining 403 inhabitants. The living is
a dlsthnrged rectory, in the archdeaconry of Sudbury, a
and diocese of Norwich, rated in the king's books at
£9.19. 4%, and in the patronage of G. St. Vincent
Wilson, Esq. The church is dedicated to St. Mary.

HINDERW ELL, a parish in the eastern division of
the liberty of LaxesaurGH, North riding of the county
of York, comprising the townships of Hinderwell and
Roxby, and containing 1719 inhabitants, of which num-
ber, 1483 are in the township of Hinderwell, 9 miles
(N.W. by W.) from Whithy. The living is a rectory,
in the archdeaconry of Cleveland, and diocese of York,
rated in the king's books at £15. Thomas Smith, Esq.
was patron in 1823. The church is dedicated to St.
Hilda. In the church-yard is a spring of pure water,
called St. Hilda's well, near which it is said she had a
retreat that still retains her name. In 1603, a Turkish
ship, infected with the plague, was wrecked upon this
coast, and communicated the disease to the village,
where it raged for six weeks, carrying off several of
the inhabitants.

HINDLEY, a chapelry in that part of the parish
of Wiegan which is in the hundred of Wesr DerBY,
county palatine of LANCASTER, 2§ miles (E.S.E.) from
Wigan, containing 3757 inhabitants, The living is a
perpetual curacy, in the archdcaconry and diecese of
Chester, endowed with £ 400 private benefaction, £200
,royal bounty, and £300 parliamentary grant, and in
the patronage of the Rector of Wigan. The chapel was
erected in 1651. There are places of worship for In- .-
dependents and Unitarians. A school-room was built
in 1632, by Mrs. Mary Abram : the master has a resi-
dence, with certain land attached, £10 a year arising
from property vested in the corporation of Liverpool,
and two shillings and sixpence entrance money from
each pupil; the average number taught is thirty. Three
Sunday schools have been built, and are supported by
voluntary subscriptions. Here is a rare phenomenon,
called “The Burning Well,” which attracts many visitors ;
it is similar to that at Petoa Mela, near Fierenzota in
Italy, except that the flame of the Italian spring is per-
petual, in the absence of heavy rains, and consists of sul-
phuric gas; while the inflammable prmcnple of that at
Hindley is the decomposition of water acting upon ores
and sulphate of iron.

HINDOLVESTON a parish in the hundred of
Eynsrorn, county of Norrork, 3% miles (N. by W.)
from Foulsham, contaxmug 56 inhabitants, The living
is a dis Wed vicarage, in the archdeaconry of Norfolk,
and di of Norwich, rated in the king's books nt
£6. 1., endowed with £1200 parliamentary
in the peculuu' jurisdiction and patronage the D
aund Chapter of Norwich. The church is dedncatui to

ON, a borough, market town, and parochial
7, in the hundred of DownroN, though locally
SE
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in the hundred of Mere, county of Wivris, 16 miles (W,
by N.) from Salisbury, and 96 (W. 8, W.) from Londoun.
This small town consists principally of one street, extend-
ing along a gentle declivity on the great western road from
London to Exeter: a considerable part of it was con-
sumed by fire in 1754, and at present it contains not more
than about two hundred houses. The manufacture of silk
twist, for which Hindon was formerly noted, has declined,
and is superseded by that of linen, dowlas, and bed-
ticking, which is principally carried on in the vicinity.
A few women are employed in spinning silk, and at the
head of the Fonthill river, about & mile and a half
distant, is a large establishment for the manufacture of
broad cloth and kerseymere, The market, on Thursduy,
was formerly considerable for corn, but it has declined
since the great fire, and the establishment of a corn
market at Warminster : there are fairs on the Mon-
day before Whitsuntide, for cattle and sheep, and on
October 29th, for horses, cattle, poultry, &c.; a fair is
also held at Berwick Hill, about a mile from the town,
on the 6th of November, for horses and sheep.  In the
7th of Richard I1., a precept was duected to this burough
to send burgesses to parliament, but no return was
made : it first sent representatives in the 27th of
Henry VL, since which period the returns have been re-
gular. The right of election is vested in the inhabitant
housekeepers and parishioners not receiving alms, the
number of whom is about one hundred and seventy-
three, The bailiff, who is appointed by the Bishap of
Winchester, and is non-resident, is the returning officer,
The petty sessions for the Hindon division are held here
on the first Wednesday in every month.  The living is
a perpetual curacy, in the archdeaconry of Wilts, and
diocese of Salisbury, endowed by charter of the 6th of
Philip and Mary, renewed in the 19th of George III.,
with land and houses within the borough, producing

about £60 per annum, and £400 parliamentary grant,.

and in the patronage of the Crown. The chapel, dedi-
cated to St. John the Baptist, is a plain turrcted modern
edifice, and was repaired in 1814. There is a place of
worship for Independents near the town, without the
precincts of the borough, buildings not being permitted
therein. A school for boys and girls is supported by
Lord Calthorpe. In the vicinity of the town, towards
the north-west, and near the Roman road which leads
to Old Sarum, are Stockton works, occupying an area
of sixty-two acres, and supposed to be the remains of
an ancient British settlement.

HINDRINGHAM, & parish in the northern division
of the hundred of GreeNHOFE, county of NonrroLk, 3%
miles (E. by 8.) from Little Walsingham, containing
657 inhabitants. The living is a discharged wcaruge, in
the archdeaconry and diocese of Norwich, rated in the
king's books at £9, endowed with £200 private bene-
faction, and £200 royal bounty, and in the patronage
of the Dean and Chapter of Normch The church is
dedicated to St. Martin, :

HINGHAM, a parish (foﬂmrly a market town) in
the hundred of ForemoE, county of Norrorx, M miles
(W. by 8.) from Norwich, and 98 (N. E. by N.) fromuLou-
don, containing 1442 inhabitants. This place, by
called Hincham, is situated near the source of the *
Yare; and thnugh not so considerable as at the -
when | Jit gave name to the deanery; it is yet respectable.
About a centary sgo a fire consumed the greater part.of
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the town, but it was rebujjt in an improved style, and
the market-place is distinguished for necatness: the in-
habitants are well supplied with water. There is a
book society, the members of which meet monthly, to
exchange publications, and manage its concerns. The
market, which was formerly held on Saturday, has fallen
into disuse, in consequence of its being on the same day
as the principal market of Norwich : the fairs are held
on the 7th of March, Whit-Tuesday, and October 2nd ;
the first is chiefly for horses, and the last for different
kinds of live stock. General courts baron and custom-
ary courts, for the manors of Hingham, Hingham-Gur-
ney, and Hingham rectory, are held annually on the 25th
of October. The town being part of the ancient de-
mesne of the crown, the inhabitants are exempted from
serving on juries at the assizes and sessions. The living
is a rectory, in the archdeaconry of Norfolk, and diocese
of Norwich, rated in the king's books at £24. 18. 4.,
and in the patronage of Lord Wodehouse. The church,
dedicated to St. Andrew, is a fine structure, chiefly in the
decorated style of English architecture, with a hand-
some tower of flint and stone; it was rebuilt in the reign
of Edward Il1., by the rector, Remigius de Hethersete,
aided by the then patron, John le Marshall : it had an-
ciently seven chantry chapels, and as many guilds.
Against the north wall of the chancel is a noble monu-
ment, erected to the memory of Thomas Parker, Lord
Morley, who died in 1435; and on the cast window of
Trinity chapel are emblazoned the arms of Morley : the
chapel itself is supposed, from the fragment of an in-
scription, to have been built at the expense of the young
women of the place. The east window of the chancel,
presented by Lord Wodehouse in 181¢, is of fine ancient
stained glass,brought from a nunnery in the Netherlands :
it is thirty-six fect high, and eighteen feet wide, and is
divided into seven compartments, emblematical of the
Crucifixion, Resurrection, and Ascension of our Saviour.
The free school was founded by William Parlett, in
1727, for the education of all the sons of the inhabit-
ants of Hingham, and one son of any inhabitant of
the adjoining parish of Scoulton, except the minister,
in reading, writing, arithmetic, Latin, and Greck ; but
the English and classical branches now form sepmte
schools : the master of the grammar school has e good
house; and the proceeds of an estate at Hingbam,
amounting to £ 156 per annum, are divided betwee;n the
masters of the classical and English schools, in'the
ratio of two-thirde to the former, and one-thind to
the latter. A National school, in which fifty boys and
fifty girls are taught, is supported by subecription;
the master has a salary of £25 a year. :

HINKSEY (NORTH), a in the bundred of
HormzR, county of Berks, 13 mjle (W.) from Oxford,
contsining 18% inbabitgwts. The living is a perpetudl
curacy, in the, y of Berks; snd diocese of Sa-

m::lry bounty, m:ﬁh v entary grant, and in
the patronage of the '] gtwonmdﬂm

alternately. The churc MW to St. Lawrence

Both North and South Hinksey were chapelries in the
. church,. . hich vh.:fﬂm mm;?;m o

to aym, {

-y i pince, sometimes called .

“moka money. ] s
Hinkseey, is sit '_wem bank-of the Is
 HINKSEY, (REF0)» porish in:the by
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HorMER, county of Berks, M mile (8.) from Oxford,
containing 142 ighabitants. e living is a perpetual
curacy, in the archdeaconry of Berks, and diocese of
Salisbary, endowed with £200 private benefaction, and
£400 royal bounty, and in the patronage of the Earl of
Ahingdon. The church is dedicated to St.John. Ina
field north of the church is a conduit, erected in 1620,
for supplying the city of Oxford with water.

HINLIP, u parish in the lower division of the hun-
dred of OswaLpsrLow, county of WorcesTER, 34 miles
(N.E. by N.) from Worcester, containing 129 inhabi-
tants. The living is a discharged rectory, in the arch-
deaconry and diocese of Worcester, rated in the king's
books at £5. 16. 0. James West, Esq. was patron in
1816. The church is dedicated to St. James. The Bir-
mingham and Worcester canal passes along the southern
boundary of the parish, Hinlip, or Hendlip Hall, is n
perfect and interesting specimen of the style of building
in the time of Henry VIIL; it is also noted as having
begn the property and residence of Thomas Habingdon,
muthor of copious manuscript collections for the history
of Worcestershire.

HINSTOCK, a parish in the Drayton division of the
bundred of Braprorp (North), county of Sarop, 53
miles (N. W. by N.) from Newport, containing 671 inha-
bitants. The living is a discharged rectory, in the arch-
deaconry of Salop, and diocese of Lichfield and Coventry,
rated in the king's books at £5. 16., and in the patron-
age of the Rev. H. C. Cotton during his lifetime, and
afterwards in that of the Trustees of the late Sir C.
Corbet, Bart. The church is dedicated to St. Oswald.
There is a chalybeate sulphureous spring in the parish ;
also vestiges of an ancient castle.

HINTLESHAM, a parish in the hundred of Samrorp,
county of SurroLk, 4§'miles (E. by N.) from Hadleigh,
containing 562 inhabitants. The living is a rectory, in
the archdcaconry of Suffolk, and diocese of Norwich,
rated in the king's books at £33, 9. 7., and in the pa-
tronage of William Deane, Esq. The church is dedicated
to St. Nicholas., Seven children are instructed for £10
per annum, the proceeds of land purchased by subscrip-
tion ; a house for the master and a spaciovs play-ground
were given hy the Misses Lloyd.

HINTON, a tything in the parish and upper division
of the hundred of BerkELEY, county of GLOUCESTER,
comtaining 346 inbabitants. There is a place of worship
for Weal Methodists.

HINTON, a tything in the parish of DirmaAM, lower
division of the hundred of GrRumBALD's AsH, county of
Grovcester. The population is returned with the
parish. i .
INTON, a hamlet in the parish of Wooprorb,
hundred of Curppivg-WaRDEN, county of NorTHAMP-

TON, 74 wilen (5. 8. W.) from Daglintry. The population

is teturned with the parish. i & mineral spring.
, & township in (e of the parish of
Watrrclegcon which is in the! h division of the

hundred ‘of Baiprorp (Nerth), county of Saror, 14
mile (N.N. E.) from Whitchurch, with which the popu-

lation is returned,
' HINTON, a tything in the parish and hundred of
Crrisrcnvrcu, New Forest {g;‘;t) division of the
) “.mmv. yi%rron,#3 miles (N.E.) from Christ-

*mﬁ%ﬁ)‘ & seserned.

¢ § that part of the
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parish of Hurst which is in the hundred of AMEssury,
county of WiLrs, though locally in that of Souning,
county of Berks, 33 miles (N.by W.) from Wokingham,
containing 489 inhabitants,

HINTON (CHARTERHOUSE), g parish in the
hundred of WeLLow, county of Somereer, 5 miles
(8. 8. E.) from Bath, containing 640 inhabitants. The
living is a perpetual curacy, in the archdeaconry
of Wells, and diocese of Bath and Wells, endowed
with £1800 parliamentary grant, and in the patronage
of the Rev. James Commeline. The church, dedicated
to St.John the Baptist, has two hundred free sittings,
the Incorporated Society for the enlurgement of churches
and chapels having granted £200 towards defraying the
expense, Ela, Countess of Sulisbury, relict of William
Longespee, founded a Carthusian monastery here in
1227, dedicating it to the Blessed Virgin, St. John the
Baptist, and All Saints, to which she ‘caused the monks
of Hethorp, in Gloucestershire, to be removed in 1232 :
its revenuc, in the 26th of Henry VIIL,, was estimated at
£262. 12. The manor-house was built from the ruins
of the priory ; the other remains are, the chapel, charuel-
house, and granary, and are swrrounded by a grove of
aged oaks. This was anciently a Roman station, consider-
able vestiges of which are still discernible, the ground
heing covered with squares, circles, and other earth-
works ; and in turning up the soil an abundance of pot-
tery was found, from the finest Samian to the coarsest
kind, together with iron, glass, scorie of iron, nume-
rous small coins of the lower empire, and the remains
of a small Roman amphitheatre: from this place the
course of a Roman road may also be traced.

HINTON (CHERRY), a parish in the aundred of
FrLenprsit, county of Camuripge, 2% miler (E. by S.)
from Cambridge, containing 474 inhabitants. The living
is a discharged vicarage, in the archdeaconry and dio-
cese of Ely, rated in the king's books at £9. 14. 7.,
and in the patronage of the Master and Fellows of Peter
House, Cambridge. The church, dedicated to St. An-
drew, stands near the Gogmagog hills: the valley
beneath was formerly noted for an abundance of
cherry trees growing in it; it is now the principal
spot in the county where saffron is cultivated. Various
fossil teeth, and vertebrm of fish, are found in the
chalk pits here. .

HINTON (ST. GEORGE), s parish in the hundred
of CREWKERNE, county of SomerskT, 2} miles (N. W,
byN.) from Crewkerne, containing 737 inhabitants, The
living is a discharged rectory, in the archdeacomry of
Taunton, and diocese of Bath and Wells, rated in the
king's books at £18. 13. 4, Euarl Powlett was patron
in 1789,

HINTON (GREAT), a tything in the parish of
SteerLe-AsuTon, hundred of WHORWELSDOWN, county
of Wivrts, 34 miles (E. by N.) from Trowbridge, con-
taining 202 inhabitants,

HINTON (LITTLE), a parish forming a distinct

ion of the hundred of Erstus and EvErLEy, county
of Wides, 5} miles (E.) from Swindon, conteining 284
inhabitants. The living is a rectory, in the archdea-
con¥® and diocese of Salisbury, rated in the king's books
et #13. 6. 8, and in the patronage of the Bishop of
Winchester. The church is dedicated to St. Swithin.

HINTON (ST. MARY), a parish in the hundred of
STURMINSTER-NEWTON-CASTLE, StnrmsterE' division of
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the county of Domser, 8 miles (8. W. by W.) from
Shaftesbury, containing 297 inhabitants, The living
is a perpetual curacy with the vicarage of Iwerne-
Minster, in the archdeaconry of Dorset, and diocese of
Bristol, The church is dedicated to St.Peter. Mary
Freke, in 1684, gave £6 per annum for teaching poor
children.

HINTON (PARVA, or STANDBRIDGE), a parish
in the hundred of Bapsury, Shaston (East) division of
the county of DorsgT, 3 miles (N. by W.) from Wim-
borne -Minster, containing 25 inhabitants, The living
is a discharged rectory, in the archdeaconry of Dorsct,
and diocese of Bristol, rated in the king's books at
£4. 12. 1., and in the patronage of Sir Richard Carr
Glyn, Bart. The church, dedicated to St. Kenelm, was
formerly a chapel to Wimborne-Minster, to which the
inhabitunts still pay 10s. per annum, aml where they
bury, there being no church-yard here.  The river
Allen forms the western houndary of the parish.

HINTON (TARRANT), a parish in the hundred of
Pimperng, Blandford (North) division of the county
of Dorser, 41 miles (N.E.) from Blandford-Forum,
containing 278 inhabitants,  The living is a rectory,
in the archdeaconry of Dorset, and diocese of Bristol,
rated in the king’s hooks at £12. 17. 1. The Rev. W,
Pigott was patron in 1821,

HINTON on the GREEN, a parish in the hundred
of TipaLpsTONE, though locally in the lower division of
the hundred of Kiftsgate, county of Grovcesrer, 23
miles (8.5. W.) from Evesham, containing 195 inha-
bitants, The living is a rectory, in the archdeaconry
and diocese of Gloucester, rated in the king's hooks ut
£8. 13. 115, J. Baker, Egq. was putron in 1813. The
church is dedicated to St. Peter.

HINTON in the HEDGES, a parish in the hundred
of King's Surton, county of Nortuamrron, 14 mile
(w.) from Brackley, containing 188 inhabitants. The
living is a rectory with that of Stean, in the archdea-
conry of Northampton, and diocese of Peterborough,
rated in the king's books at £10. Earl Spencer was
patron in 1809. The church is dedicated to the Holy

HINTON-AMPNER, a parish in the hundred of
FawLey, Fawley division of the county of Sourmamy-
TON, 4 miles (8. by E.) from New Alrvesford, containing
825 inhabitants. The living is a rectory, in the arch-
deaconry and diocese of Winchester, rated in the king's
books at £19. 11. 104., and in the patronage of the
Bishop of Winchester. The church is dedicated to All
Saints. A charity school was founded and endowed in
1729, by William Blake : the annual income is about
£140, for which sum upwards of fifty boys and girls
are instructed. This parish is within the jurisdiction of
the Cheyney Court held at Winchester every Thursday,
for the recovery of debts to any amount.

HINTON-BLEWETT, a parish in the hundred of
CazwroN, county of SoMERsSET, 8 miles (N. N. E.) from
Wells, containing 264 inhabitants. The living is & dis-
charged rectory, in the archdeaconry of Bath, and
diocese of Bath and Wells, rated in the king's books at

£9.8. 1., and in the of Mrs.Johnson® The
church is dedicated to All Sainta,
Trinity.

HINTON-MARTELL, & parish in the hundred of
Bapaury, Shaston (East) divisian of the county of
Dorsrr, 4§ miles (N, by B.) from' 'Wimborne-Minster,
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containing 257 inhabitsfs. The living is a rectory,
in the archdeaconry of Dorset, and diocese of Bristol
rated in the king's books at £16. 8, 64., and in the
patronage of the Earl of Shaftesbury. The church is
dedicated to St. John.

HINTON-WALDRIST, a parish in the hundred o
Ganvivup, county of Brrks, 6} miles (N. E.byE.
from Great Farringdon, containing 315 inhabitants
The living is a rectory, in the archdeaconry of Berks
and diocese of Salisbury, rated in the king's books at
£23. 7. 6. The Rev. J. Loder was patron in 1802, The
church is dedicated to St. M Henry IIL, ir
1217, granted a charter to Henry de St. Valery, for ¢
market to be held here on Wednesday, but it has long
been disused. In the neighbourhood are traces of ar
ancient intrenchient, now an orchard, near which i
an eminence called Windmill hill, supposed to have
Deen a signal station,

HINTS, a parish in the southern division of the
hundred of Orrrow, connty of Starrorp, 4 mies
{W. by &) frum Tamworth, containing 250 inhabitants
The living is o perpetual curacy, in the peculiar jurisdic-
tion of the Prebendal conrt of Hansacre and Armitage
endowed with £5 per annnm and £ 100 private henefac.
tion, and £400 royal bounty, and in the patronage o
the Prebendary of Handsacre in the Cathedral Churel
of Lichfield. The church, dedicated to St, Bartholomew
is o handsome modern structure in the Grecian style ol
architecture, There is a small &chool founded and sup-
ported by the Floyer family, Camwell, & hamlet in thie
purish, was formerly distinguished for a priory, found.
ed by Gever Riddell, in 1142, for Benedictine monks
which was one of those assigned to Cardinal Wolsey
towards the erection and endowment of his intended
colleges. On ints common, in 1792, a pig of lead was
discovered, twenty-two inches and a half long, anc
weighing one hundred and fifty pounds, on which wa:
inscribed, in bas relief, “ IMP, VESP, VIL. T. IMP. V
COS.:" it was in high preservation, and is supposed tc
have been imbedded where it was found, in the yem
seventy-six.

HINXHILL, a parish in the hundred of Cmamra
and LonGuRrIDGE, lathe of Scray, county of Kenr, 24
miles (E. by 8.) from Ashford, containing 146 inhabit-
ants. The living is a discharged rectory, in the arch-
deaconry and diocese of Canterbury, rated in the king's
books at £7. 16. 8. Sir J. C. Honeywood, Bart. was
patron in 1801. The church, dedicated to St. Mary, it
principally in the early style of English architecture.

HINXTON, a parish in the hundred of WaiTTLES-
¥oRD, county of CAMBRIDGE, 5§ miles (W. by 8.) from
Linton, containing $1¢ inhabitants, The living is a
discharged vicarage, in the archdesconry and diocese of
Ely, rated in the king's books at-£8. 5. 23., and in the
patronage of the Master and Fellows of Jesus College,
Cambridge. The church is dedicated to St. Mary.

HINXWORTH, agﬂl‘lﬂl in ‘the hundred of Opsey,
county of Hearyorp, 5§ miles (N.) from Baldock, con-
taining 247 inhabitants. “The living s a rectory, in the
archdeaconry of Humﬂﬂ. md diocese of Lincoln,
age of the Rev. John Lafont. The church, dediated
to St. Nicholas, has a quadrangular tower, embattléd jind
surmounted by & low spire; In. the neighbourlibod,
urns nélcsing ashes and burnt bones were diseovered
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in 1724, also several human skeletons, with o glass tri-
bulus, lachrymatories of glass, pateras of red carth, &e.

HIPPENSCOMBE, an extra-parochial liberty in
the hundred of KinwarpsTONE, county of WiLrs,
containing 40 inhabitants.

HIPPERHOLME, a joint township with Brighouse,
in the parish of Havirax, wapentake of MokLey,
West riding of the county of York, 21 wiles (E. N,
E.) from Halifax, containing 3936 inhabitants. There
is a place of worship for Independents. A court baron
is held once a year, at which a constable is chosen,
Coal mines and quarries of stone abound in' the neigh-
hourhood. A free grammar school was founded, in
1647, by Matthew Broadley, and endowed by him with
£5 per an. and part of the anuual proceeds of £500;
and, for its further maintenance, Samuel Sunder-
land, in 1671, enfeoffed certain houses and lands for the
use of the schoolmaster, subject to the payment of £6
per ann, to an usher : the income is ahbout £90 per
anumm, for which sum twenty boys are taught the clas-
sics,

HIPSWELL, a chapelry in that part of the parish
of Carrerick which is in the castern division of the
wapentake of Haxg, North riding of the county of
Yorg, 2 miles (S.E. by 8.) from Richmond, containing
273 inhabitants. The living is a perpetual curacy, in
the archdeaconry of Richmond, and diocese of Chester,
endowed with £200 private benefaction, £600 royal
bounty, and £1000 parliamentary grant, and in the
patronage of the Vicar of Catterick.  Robert Corkin, in
1757, gave £100 towards the endowment'of a free
school, the interest of which is paid to the master of
a charity school, in which about thirty children are in-
structed.

HISTON, a parish in the hundred of CrnrsteErTON,
county of Camnrivce, 3§ miles (N. by w.) from Cam-
bridge, containing 676 inhabitants. The living com-
prises the consolidated discharged vicarages of St. An-
drew and St. Etheldreda, in the archdeaconry and dio-
cese of Ely, rated jointly in the king's books at
£14.3. 61., and endowed with £200 royal hounty. The
Heirs of — Mitchell, Esq. were patrons in 1820, The
church of St. Andrew is partly in the carly, and partly
in the later, style of English architecture ; that of St.
Etheldreda has heen entirely demolished. Here is one
of the five schools founded, in 1722, by Mrs. Elizabeth
March, who endowed them with lands now producing
£ 100 per snnum.

HITCHAM, a parieh in the hundred of BurnuAM,
county of BuckiNecmas, 2} miles (N.E. by E.) from
Maidenhead, containing 172 nhabitants. The living is
a rectory, in the archdeaconry of Buckingham, and dio-
cese of Lincoln, rated in the king's books at £11.5, 74,
and in the patronage of the Provost and Fellows of
Eton College. The church is dedicated to 5t. Mary :
the windows of the chancel exhibit a considerable quan-
tity of stained glass of remarkable brilliancy.

HITCHAM, a parish in the hundred of Cosrorb,
connty of Surrork, 13 mile (N.N.W.) from Bildeston,

1g 65 inhabitants, The living is a rectory, in

ry of Sudbury, and diocese of Norwich,

rated in the king's books at £26. 13. 4., and in the
opage of ghe Crown. The church is dﬁmby to

5al “Thexe are almshouses appropria Sir
wwdw, in 1663, for two poor persons.
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William Burkitt, a biblical writer, though commonly
considered a native of Hitcham in the county of North-
ampton, was horn here in 1650 ; he died in 1703,
HITCHENDEN, or HUGHENDEN, a parish in
the hundred of Desporoveu, county of Buckincuam,
13 rrln]e (N.) from High Wycombe, containing, with a
portion of the liberty of Brands-Fee, which is in this
parish, 1247 inbabitants. The living is a discharged
vicurage, in the archdeaconry of Buckingham, and dio-
cese of Lincoln, rated in the king's hooks at £8, 17. 6.,
endowed with £200 private benefaction, and £200
royal hounty, and in the patronage of J. Norris, Esq.
and others. The church, dedicated to St. Michael, is
partly of Norian architecture, and has a curious font.
Catherine Pye, in 1713, conveyed certain property to-
wards the endowment of a school.
HITCHIN, a market town and parish, in the hundred
of Hiremin and Pirron, county of Herrronrn, 154
miles (N.W.) from Hertford, and 34 (N.N,w.) from
London, containing, with the hamlets of Missenden,
Preston, and Temple-Dinsley, 4486 inhabitants. This
place, which, during the Saxon Heptarchy, formed
part of the royal demesne of the King of Mercia, was
given by Edward the Confessor to Harold, after whose
death, at the battle of Hastings, it was retained by Wil-
liam the Conqueror, and is noticed in Domesday-book
under the name of Hiz, a probable modification of its
Saxon name, licce, or Hitche, from which its present up-
pellation is deduced. It was granted by Williamn Rufus
to Bernard de Balliol, on the accession of whose descend-
ant, John Balliol, to the throne of Scotland, it reverted
to the crown of England, and was given by Edward ITI,
to his fifth son, Edmund de Langley. The tewn is situ-
ated on a level spot of land environed on every side
except the north by rising grounds, and intersected by
the small river Hiz, which has its source at the distance
of ubout & mile to the south-west : the strects, with the
exception of that which forms the principal thorough-
fure to Bedford, are spacious, and partially paved and
lighted by subseription : the houses are in gencral neatly
built of brick, but occasionally interspersed with some of
less respectable appearance, and the inhabitants are am-
ply supplied with water. The environs are pleasant, a con-
siderable portion of the adjucent grounds being culti-
vated by market-gardeners, who supply the neighbouring
towns with fruit and vegetables. A public subseription
library, with a museura in which is a good collection of
antiquities and natural curiosities, has been established :
there are also several book societics; and asscmblies
take place periodically during the winter, in a suite of
rooms at the SunInn. Ilitchin was celebrated at a very
early period for its manufuacture of woollen goods, and
many of the merchants of Calais resided in the town
prior to the removal of that branch of business from
the towns on the continent. The trude at present
is principally in corn and malt, for the latter of which
it had obtuined a high reputation in the reign of Eliza-
beth, who used to boast of “the juice of the Hitchin
" The soil in the vicinity is favourable to the
growth of barley and other grain, of which great quan-
tics are sold et the market. The manufacture of straw-
‘plat afords employment to a considerable portion of
the female inhabitants: a silk-mill, in which about
three hundred persons are engaged, has been recent-
ly established, and there are Bome extensive breweries
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in the town and neighhourhood. The market, which
is toll free, is held on Tuesday, and is well supplied
with corn: the fairs are on the Tuesdays in Easter
and Whitsun-weeks, which are pleasure fairs. The
town is divided into Bancroft, Tilehouse, and Bridge
wards, for each of which two constables and two head-
boroughs are appointed at the court leet of the lord
of the manor, held at Michaelmas. The county ma-
gistrates hold here a petty session every Tuesday. The
bridewell, situated at the extremity of Bancroft-street,
is & small brick building, comprising two wards for the
dassification ouly of prisoners committed for misde-
meanours: the average number of committals is about
cighty annually.

The living is a vicarage, in the archdeaconry of Hunt.
ingdon, and diocese of Lincoln, rated in the king's
books at £25. 6. 8., and in the patronage of the Master
and Fellows of Trinity College, Cambridge. The church,
originally dedicated to St. Andrew, was, on being rebuilt
prior to the reign of Henry VIIL, dedicated to the Vir-
gin Mary : it is a spacious structure, principally in the
later style of English architecture, with & low massive
cmbattled tower, surmounted hy a small spire, and hav-
ing a turret at one of the angles : the south porch is a
beauntifully enriched specimen of that style ; and over
the entrance is a room which is used as a register office
for that part of the archdeaconry of Huntingdon which
is in the county of Herts. The interior of the church
is very richly ornamented, and on each side of the chan-
cel is a large chapel, separated from it by a handsome
screen of carved oak ; over the altar is a fine painting
of the Offering of the Wise Men of the East, by Rubens :
there are numerous interesting monuments, and a font
of singular beauty, with carvings of the twelve Apostles:
underneath the eastern part of the chancel is a crypt,
communicating by a staircase with the chapel on the
north side, which was used by Cromwell as a prison for
the royalists. There are places of worship for Baptists,
the Society of Friends, those in the late Countess of Hun-
tingdon's connexion, and Independents. The free school
was principally founded by John Mattncke, Esq., of
Coventry, who, in 1639, endowed it with land in Hitchin
for the maintenance of a master : its present endowment,
arising from that and subsequent bencfactions, consists
of nearly fifty-seven acres of land in this and other pa-
rishes, a rent-charge of £5, and the school-house, which
is a commodious building at the west end of Tyle-
house-street: this school has a contingent right to an
exhibition to Christ Church College, Oxford, on failure
of a candidate from the school at Bummgford A school
for the clothing and instruction of girls is supported
partly by the dividends on nearly £1000, the amount of
several benefactions vested in the funds, and by sub-
scription, There are also British and foreign schools, in
which two hundred boys and one hundred girls are in-
stracted ; and an infant school is supported by subscrip-
tion, Almshouses for poor; persons were founded
and endowed by Mr. Skinner, in' 1668 : there are also
almehouses for six poor persons, and others for ei D
women, in a house called the Biggin, said to hs
e g po

Ve e for ; or,
dt.hqr charitable ear the cﬁ:” ch was & small

of Gﬂbert.me nune, the yoversie. of which, at the
issolution, was £15. 1. 11.; it wes subsequently devised
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to the free school by the Rev. Joseph Kemp, A. M. : there
are still some remains, which have been converted into
dwelling-houses, Towards the western extremity of the
town was a house of Carmelite friars, founded by Ed-
ward I1,, and dedicated to the Blessed Virgin, the revenue
of whuh at the dissolution, was £4. 9. 4.: the cloisters
and a small part of the buildmgs are still existing, and
a handsome mansion, called the Priory, has been erected
on the site. There was formerly a chapel at Missenden,
now nearly demolished, and another at Temple-Dinsley,
in this purish, the latter belonging to a preceptory of the
Knights Templars, of which there are no vestiges, At
Wildberry hill, over which passes the Iknield-street,
within a mile of the town, was a Roman explommrv
canp, occupying an aren of sceven acres and a half, and
surrounded by a vallum, in which a fine silver coin
of Faustina, Consort of the Emperor Marcus Aurelius,
was discovered a few years since.  Dr. Mark Hildesley,
Bishop of Sodor and Man, was formerly vicar of this
parish, and a great benefactor to the town.

HITTISLEIGI], u parish in the hundred of Wox-
rorp, county of Devown, 74 miles (W.5 W.) from
Crediton, containing 163 inhabitants. The living is a
discharged rectory, in the archdeaconry and diocese
of Exeter, rated in the king's books at £6. 2. 1,, and
in the patrovage of Mrs. Colmady. The church is de.
dicated to St. Andrew,

HOARCROSS, a township in the parish of Yoxuarr,
northern division of the hundred of Orrrow, county of
STArFoRD, 3% miles (E. by 8.) from Abbot's Bromley,
containing 611 inhabitants.

HOATH, a parish in the hundred of BLeaNGATE,
lathe of St. AvcusTiNg, county of KEenT, 54 miles
(N. E.) from Canterbury, containing 348 inhabitants. The
living is a perpetual curacy, annexed to the vicarage of
Reculver, in the peculiar jurisdiction of the Archbishop
of Canterbury. The church, dedicated to the Holy Crossj
is principally in the carly stylr of English architecture.

HOATHLY (EAST), a perizh in the bundred of
SnirLakE, rape of PeveEnsgy, county of Sussex, 5
miles (8. E. by 8.) from Uckfield, containing 510, inha~
bitants, The living is a rec'tory, in the archdgagonry
of Lewes, and diocese of Chichester, rated in '8
books at £7. 6. 3., and in the patronage of the Earl
of Abergavenny. The church is in the early style ol'

lish architecture,

HOATHLY (WEST), a parish in the h of
BurriNgHILL, rape of LewEs,.county of Susskx, 4%
miles (S, W.by8.) from East Grinsted, contnimng w
inhabitants. The living is a discharged vicarage, in
the archdeamnry of Lewes, and diopese of Chichester,
rated in the king's books at £9, 16:, snd in the patron-
age of the Crown. The church is in the early,
and partly in the decorated, style of architecture,
There is a phceofwonhxpfmmm A&lrﬁw
pedlary is held on Whit-Monday.

HOBENDRID, a towaship in $he parish ofc;.ﬁ;,
handnrﬁ of Pussiow, oounxy ﬂf Savor, cnntamhg
255 inkabitapts.

Hm LENCH, m MLENCH, a8 hun-
let in the perish’ qf Fraorury, middle division of. the

hundred .of OswaspaLow, county of Worcrsmex,
miles (N..by w,] from Evesham, containing 102 ina
bitants. Here was formerly a chapel, which hes gens
ta decay
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HOBY, a parish in the eastern division of the
hundred of Goscore, county of Lricesrer, 5§ miles
(W. by 8.) from Melton-Mowbray, containing 352 inha-
bitants. The living is a rectory, in the archdeaconry of
Leicester, and diocese of Lincoln, rated in the king's
books at £22. 8. 9. The Rev. H. Browne was patron in
1784. The church is dedicated to All Saints,

HOCKENHULL, a township in that part of the
parish of TarvinN which is in the second division of the
hundred of Epprsnury, county palatine of CHEsTER,
6 miles (W.N. W.) from Tarporley, containing 38 inha-
bitants. '

HOCKERING, a parish in the hundred of MrTroRrp,
county of NorroLg, 5§ miles (E.) from East Dercham,
containing 392 inhabitants. The living is a rectory,
united to that of Mattishall-Burgh, in the archdeaconry
of Norfolk, and diocese of Norwich, rated in the king's
books at £7.3.4. The church, dedicated to St. Michael,
has a round tower. Here was anciently a castle, this
having been the principal manor of the Eiamny of Rye.

HOCKERTON, a parish in the northern division of
the wapentake of TrurearToN, county of NorTiNgu M,
2 milee (N. N. &) from Southwell, containing 115 inha-
bitants, The living is a rectory, in the archdeaconry
of Nottingham, and diocese of York, rated in the king's
books at £9. 9.4}, and in the patronage of Admiral
Sotheron. The church is dedicated to St. Nicholas,

INOCKHAM, a parish comprising Great and Little
Hockham, in the hundred of Snmrovmawm, county of
Nonrork, 44 miles (N.W.byN.) from East Harling,
containing 525 inhabitants. The living is a discharged
vicarage, in the archdeaconry of Norfolk, and diocese
of Norwich, rated in the king's hooks at £8. 17, 11.
M. Mallett, Esq. was patron in 1800. The church is
dedicated to the Holy Trinity. There was formerly a
church, or chapel, at Little Hockham, but it has been
Bemolished.

- HOCKLEY, a parish in the hundred of Rocurorp,
county of Essex, 24 miles (N. E. by N.) from Rayleigh,
containing 784 inhabitants. The living is a discharged
vicarage, in the archdenconry of Essex, and diocese of

rated in the king's books at £16. 3. 9., and
in thf¥patronage of the Warden and Fellows of Wadham
College, Oxford. The church, dedicated to St. Peter, is
of Norman architecture, with a massive octagonal tower
surmounted by a shingled spire : it is supposed to have
been d by Canuteand Turkil, in commemoration of
their victory over Edmund Ironside, The Crouch river
is navigable along the northern boundary of the parish.
There is a very large barrow in the neighbourhood.

HOCKLIFFE, a parish m the hundred of Mans-
HEAD, county of Beororp, 3} miles (E.N.E.) from
Leighton-Buzzard, containing 393 inhabitants. . The

is a rectory, united in 1772 to the vicarage of
§ ve, in the archdeaconry of Bedford, and dincese
of Lincoln, rated in the king's hooks at £16. 9. 7. Mrs,

m was patroness in 179{. The church is dedi-
o 8¢, Nicholas, There is a place of worship for

) Francis West, in 1690, bequeathed £400
. poor children of Hockliffe and Chalgrave :
the income {s £30 a year, for which nine boys of each
‘pivish are So early as the reign of John here
was an bospital; founded for a master and brethren, and
dodigated to St. Johin the Baptist,

R, a hamlet in the parish of IrLEY, hun-
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dred of BuLLinGTON, county of Oxrorn, 14 mile (5. E.
by 8.) from Oxford. The population is returned with
the parish,

HOCKWOLD, a parish in the hundred of Grix-
RHOE, county of Nunvork, 44 miles (W. by N.) from
Brandon-Ferry, containing, with the parish of Wilton,
846 inhabitants. The living is a rectory, in four portions,
with which the vicarage of Wilton is united, in the arch-
deaconry of Norfolk, and diocese of Norwich, rated in
the king's books at £9. 13, 114, and in the patronage
of the Master aud Fellows of Caius College, Cambridge.
The church, dedicated to St. Peter, contains three an-
cient stalls, for the bishop, priest, and deacon, besidee
& piscina.

HOCKWORTIHY, a parish in the hundred of
Bamrron, county of Devon, 6 miles (E. 8. E.) from
Bampton, contuining 354 inhabitants, The living is a
discharged vicarage, in the archdeaconry and diacese of
Exeter, rated in the king's books at £7. 6. 8., and in the
patronage of — Comyns, Esq. A considerable traffic in
lime is carried on in the parish, which abounds with
excellent limestone,

HODDESDON, a market town and chapelry, partly
in the parish of GrEAT AMWELL, but chiefly in that of
Broxnunn, hundred and county of HERTFORD, 41 miles
(s. E.) from Hertford, and 17 (N. by E.) from London,
containing 1854 inhabitants. The name of this place is
supposed to have been derived from its having been the
residence of Hodo, or Oddo, a Dunish chief, or from g ta-
mulus, or barrow, raised here to his memeory. The town
consists principally of one street, extending along the
high road from London to Ware and Hertford : it is
supplied with water from a conduit in the merket-place,
erected by Sir Marmaduke Rawdon in the seventeenth
century. A cousiderable quantity of malt is made here,
much of which is conveyed to London by means of the
river Lea; and there is a large brewery. The market,
pow nearly disused, is on Taesday ; and & fair is held
annually on the 29th of June. In the centre of the
town is an ancient market-house, built of wood, and sup-
ported on pillars and arches ornamented with curious
carving, The site of the old chapel, dedicated to St.
Catherine, is marked by a turrct, which serves as a
clock-house, and which, having become ruinous, was
rebuilt about 1730, The present chapel is & handsome
brick edifice, standing in the parish of Amwell, but sub-
ject to the vicarage of Broxburn: it has reccived an
addition of eight hundred sittings, four bundred of
which are free, the Incorporated Society for the enlarge-
ment of churches and chapels having granted £700
towards defraying the expense. Here are places of
worship for the Society of Friends and Independents,
Queen Elizabeth, in the second year of her reigm,
granted a charter for a free mar school, with con-
siderable privileges; and there is a National schooi for
ninety bhoys and thirty girls, supported by voluntary
contributions. Five almshouses, founded in the fif-
teenth century, are now under the management of the
parish officers.

HODDINGTON, a tything in the parish of Urrox-
Gray, Yundred of Bernmonpserr, B division,
though locally in the hundred of Fawley, Fawley
division, of the county of SouTmAMPTON, 8§ miles
(8.W. by W.) from Odiham. The population is returned
with the parish.
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HODNEL, an extra-parochial Jiberty, in the South-
am division of the hundred of KnicETLOWS county of
Warwick, 3 miles (S. by E.) from Southam, containing
9 inhabitants. Here was anciently a chapel dedicated
to St. Helen, now in ruins.

HODNET, a parish in the Drayton division of the
hundred of Braprown (North), county of Saror,
6 miles (s.w.) from Drayton in Hales, containing,
with the joint chapelry of Weston with Wixhill under
Red Castle, 2117 inhabitants, The living is a rectory,
in the archdeaconry of Salop, and diocese of Lichfield
and Coventry, rated in the king's books at £26, 0. 10.
Richard Heber, Esq. was patron in 1823. The church
is dedicated to St. Peter and St. Paul, Lord Clive,
celebrated for his extension of the British empire in
India, was born at Styche in this parish, in 1724;
Reginald Heber, D.D., an erudite divine and retined
scholar, late Bishop nf Calcutta, was also bora here in
1783 ; he died in India in 1826.

HODSOCK, a Jordship in that part of the parish
of Buyru which is in the Hatfield division of the
wapentake of Basseruaw, counly of NorriNcuas, 2
miles (8. W.) from Blyth, containing 224 inhabitants,
Here are a private chapel and the remains of a large
and ancient mansion belonging to the Clifton fawily.

HOE, county of NorroLk. — See HOO),

HOFFE, a township in the parish of Sr. Law-
RENCE, ArrLeny, East ward, county of WrsTMORLARD,
14 mile (S. by W.) from Applehy, coutaining 93 inha-
bitants. Here was formerly a chapel.

HOGHTON, a chapelry in the parish and hundred
of LEYLAND, county palatine of LANCASTER, 5% miles
(S.E. by E.) from Preston, containing 2111 inhabitunts.

- The living is a perpetual curacy, in the archdeaconry
and diocese of Chester, endowed with £1600 parlia-
mentary grant, and in the patronage of the Viear of Ley-
land. A school, endowed by Sir Charles Hoghton with
£26 per annum, is further supported by subscription,
and conducted on the National system

HOGNASTON, a parish in the handred of Wirks-
wORTH, county of Derpy, 5 miles (5.W, by W.) from
Wirksworth, containing 292 inhabitants. The living is
a perpetual curacy, in the archdeaconry of Derby, and
diccese of Lichfield and Coventry, endowed with £800
royal bounty, and in the patronage of the Dean of Lin-
coln. The church has a Norman south door. Lime-
stone abounds in the parish. An hospital for six poor
men was founded and liberally endowed, in 1583, by An-
thony Gell. There is also a small endowment for a
school, the gift of Temperance Gell, in 1729.

HOGSHAW, a parish in the hundred of Asnenpon,
county of Buckinguam, 4 miles (8.W. by 8.) from
Wiaslow, containing, with the hamlet of Fulbrook, 68
inhabitants. The church, which was dedicated to St,
John the Baptist, being desecrated, the inhabitants at-
tend the church of Quainton. Here was a preceptory
of the Knights of St. John of J erusalem, so early-as the
reign of Henry 11,

HOGSTHORPE a parish in the Marsh division of
the hundred of LALcnwun'rn, parts of LinpeEy,

of Lincouw, 6% miles (E. 8. E.) from Alford, cun#atnlng

501 inhabitants. The living is a discharged Vi
the archdeaconry and -diocese of Lincoln, rated in -
Ietng's books at £10, endowed with £300 ruyal bounts;
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the Bishop of Lincoln. The church is dedicated to St.
Mary. There is & place of worship for Wesleyan Me-
thodists. ;

HOGSTON, a parish in the hundred of CorresLok,
county of Buckincuam, 3} miles (S.E, by E.) from
Winslow, coutaining 188 inhabitants. The living is a
rectory, in the archdenconry of Buckingham, and dio-
cese of Lincoln, rated in the king's books at £11, 16, 3.,
and in the patronage of the Provost and Fellows of
Woreester College, Oxford. The church is dedicated to
St. Peler and St. Paul.

HOLBEACH, a market town and parish, in the wa-
pentake of Ernog, parts of HoLLanp, county of Lin-
coLy, 12 miles (R.) from Boston, 42 (S, E.) from Lincoln,
and 106 (N. by E.) from London, containing 3621 inha-
bitants. Its ancient name was Oldbeche, so called from
having been built near an old beach which the receding
of the waters had left, as it is evident, from the different
embankments constructed between the Toss-dyke and
the Cross Keys Washes, that all the land in the vicinity
of the town has heen once covered by the waters of the
German ocean.  Foundations of walls and pavements
have heen discovered, and several apcient coing, urns,
andl seals, dug up at different periods.  The town, which
is situated in u low marshy district, is indifferently
built.  The market is on Thursday ; and fairs are held,
May 17th and Scptember 17th, for horses and cattle.
Holbeach is within the jurisdiction of a court of re-
quests for the recovery of debts under £5, held under
the authority of an act passed in the 47th of George 111,
for the hundred of Elloc.

The living is a vicarage, in the archdeacoury and
diocese of Lincoln, rated in the king's books at
£20. 5. 10., and in the patronage of the Bishop of Lin-
coln,  The church, dedicated to All Saints, is a noble
edifice, consisting of a nave, a chancel, & porch, and a
square tower, surmounted by an octangnlar ornamented ’
spire ; the north porch has two circular towers, with
embattled parapets at its extreme angles. In the charch
are some intervsting monuments, and an altar-picog re-
presenting our Saviour ms—;tttutmgtl!.e Last Supper.’ The
free grammar school was founded in 1669, by George
Farmer, Esq., who endowed it with lands and tenements
which now Jet for about £140 per sunum : it wase fox-
merly held in a part of the church, but in 1807 & new
school-room was built, in which about one hundreg
forty scholars are instructed on Dr. Bell's plan. Assihoss
pital for a warden and fifteen poor persons was foundec
near the charch, about 1351, by Sir John de Kirketon,
Knt., which was suppressed at the Reformation.. This
town is celebrated as the birthplace, or maﬁn% of ge-
veral eminent literary characters OTERL | Wi
Dr. William Stukeley, the celebre
Runds, otherwise Holbeach, appo
of Lincoln in 1547, and one

Liturgy. Samuel Fmthennﬁtm‘,
clety. of Friends, died. here

hands, denntmgbﬂ%h’ W“”

snd £1000 parliamentary grant, and in the pahwmé g 3 '. '. it
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HOLBECK, & capeiry in that patt 0f‘the parish of
Sr. Pyrex, Leens, which is m&hm&?& Lazpe,
though locally in the wapentake of Agbrigg, West
riding of the county of York, 14 mile (8.8.W.) from
Leeds, containing 7151 inhabitants, The living is a per-
petual curacy, in the archdeaconry and diocese of York,
endowed with €400 private benefaction, and £400 roy-
al bounty, and in the patronage of the Vicar of Leeds,
The chapel, which was rebuilt in the last century, is
mentioned in a bull of the Pope so early as 809. There
is a commodious place of worship for Wesleyan Metho-
dists. Holbeck forms a very extensive part of the en-
virans of the town of Leeds, being joined to it by Water-
lane, and, like that place, containg many manufactories
for linen and woollen goods upon a very large scale.
There are warm and cold baths, the water of which
possesses properties similar to the Harrogate springs,
but weaker, and is considered galutary for every domestic
purpose, being daily carried about the streets of Leeds
for sale, at a moderate price. '

HOLBETON, & parish in the hundred of ErMING-
TON, county of Drvon, 83} miles (W.8.W.) from Mod-
bury, containing 1083 inhabitants. The living is a vicar-
age, in the archdeaconry of Totness, and diocesc of
Exeter, rated in the king's books at £24. 1. 6., and in the
patronage of the Crown. The church iz dedicated to
All Saints. Here was formerly a chapel dedicated to
St. Leonard, The parish is hounded on the east by the
river Erme, and hy the English channel on the south.
There is an endowed school for the education of ten
girls, who are also clothed from the saume fund.

HOLBROOK, a chapelry in the parish of DurrIELD,
hundred of ArpLETREE, county of Derny, 53 miles
(N. by E.) from Derby, containing 563 inhabitants. The
living is a perpetual curacy, in the archdeaconry of
Derby, and diocese of Lichfield and Coventry, endowed
with £200 royal bounty, and £1400 parliamentary
grant, and in the patronage of William Evans, Esq.
The chapel was built in 1761, by the Rev. S. Bradshaw,
snd endowed by him with £30 per annum chargeable
on the Holbrook estate,

HOLBROOK, a parish in the hundred of SAMFORD,
county of SurroLk, 5 miles (8, by E.) from Ipswich,
containing 641 inhabitants. The living is a rectory, in
the ‘archdeaconry of Staford, and diocese of Norwich,
rated in the king's books at £11. 11. 8., and in the pa-
tronnge of the Rev. J. B. Wilkinson. The church is
dedicated to Al Smints. There is a place of worship
‘for Wesleyan Methodists. 7The river Stour, which at
fivog tide is two miles across, bounds the parish to the

~east.
" HQLCOMB, a tything in the parish of NrwinG-
¥, hundred of EweLme, county of Oxrorp, 5§ miles
' ) #rom Wallingford, containing 110 inhabit-

[BE, a chapelry in that part of the parish
‘& in the hundred of SirLrorD, county
FCAS 'R, 4 miles (N.N.W.) from Bury,
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from Shepton-Mallef! contaitiiing 527 inhabitants. - The
Hving is a di rectory, in the archdeadonry of
Wells, and diocese of Bath and Wells, rated in the
king's books at £5. 7. 8}., endowed with £200 royal
bounty, and £400 parliamentary grant, and in the pa-

nage of John Twyford Jolliffe, Esq. The church,
dedicated to St. Andrew, is an ancient edifice, with a
fine Norman south porch. There is a place of worship
for Wesleyan Methodists, The parish abounds with
mines of coal and iron-stone, but there is no iron made
here. There is a traditionary report that the inhabit-
ants, at a remote period, deserted the village, then si-
tuated in a valley near the church, and settled on the
Mendip hills, to avoid the contagion of a malignant
fever, thus leaving the church, as it still remains, with-
out an habitation in its immediate vicinity. A canal
from the southern part of the parish to Frome was com-
menced some years since, but has not heen completed.

HOLCOMBE-BURNELL, a parish in the hundred
of Wonrorp, county of Drvown, 4§ miles (W. by 8.)
from Exeter, containing 237 inhabitants. The living
is a vicarage, in the archdesconry and diocese of Ex-
eter, rated in the king's books at £8. 9. 2., endowed
with £200 private henefaction, and £300 parliamentary
grant, and in the patronage of the Prebendary of Hol-
combe Burnell in the Cathedral Church of Wells. The
church, dedicated to St. John the Baptist, has an orna-
mented doorway in the Norman style, and contains an
altar-tomb used before the Reformation to celebratg the
festival of Easter. Near the old manorial mansion, built
in the reign of Henry VIIL, and since converted into a
farm-house, there was enciently a chapel.

HOLCOMBE-ROGUS, a perish in the hundred of
Bamrron, county of DEvoNn, 7 miles (E.S.E.) from
Bampton, containing 829 inhabitants. The living is 2
discharged vicarage, in the archdeaconry and diocese
of Exeter, rated in the king's books at £10. 10. 24.
Samuel Wills, Esq. was patron in 1824, The church
is dedicated to All Saints. A weekly market and an
annuol fair were formerly held here; and a branch of
the Grand Western canal passes through the parish.
One of the free boys in Ayshford's grammar school at
Uffeulme is appointed from this place.

HOLCOT, a parish in the hundred of Hamrorp-
SHOE, county of NORTHAMPTON, 7% miles (W. by N.)
from Wellinghorough, containing 442 inhabitants. The
living is a rectory, in the archdeacoury of Northampton,
and diocese of Peterborough, rated in the king's books
at £18. 6. 8. F. Montgomery, Esq. wus patron in
1825. The church is dedicated to St. Mary and All
Saints,

HOLCUTT, a parish in the hundred of MANsEEAD,
county of Benrorp, 4} miles (N.) from Woburn, con-
The living is a rectory. with
which the vicarage of Salford was united in 1750, in
the archdeaconry of Bedford, and diocese of Lincoln,
rated in the king's books at £7. 15. The Rev. E. O,
Smith wes patron in 1819. The church is dedicated

_8t. Nicholas. :

HOLDENBY, a parish in the hundred of NosbrrLs.
GroVE, county of NorTHAMPTON, 64 miles (N.W. by N.)
from Northampton, vontaining 149 inhabitants. The liv.

" ing is a rectory, in the archdeaconry of Northampton
' ﬁ diocese of Peterborough, rated -in the king's m’l:

at £20. 2. 11,, and in the patronage of the Crown.
SF
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church is dedicated to All Saints® This ia the birth-
place of Sir Christopher Hatton, Lord High Thancellor
in the reign of Elizabeth, who built the once magni-
ficent mansion of Holdenby House, part of which is
still remaining. Here Charles 1. was confined, on being
surrendered by the Scottish army to the parliamentary
commissioners.

HOLDENHURST, a chapelry in the parish of
Cumistcaurch, liberty of Wesrover, New Forest
(West) division of the county of SovTaAMPTON, 3 miles
(N.W. by w.) from Christchurch, containing 580 inha-
bitants. The living is a pe 1 curacy, annexed to
the vicarage of Christchurch, in the archdeaconry and
diocese of Winchester. The mavigable rtiver Stour
bounds the chapelry on the east and north,

HOLDFAST, a hamlet in that part of the parish of
Rirrrr which is in the lower division of the hundred
of OswaLpsrow, county of Worcrster, 1§ mile (8,
by E.) from Upton upon Severn, containing 89 inhabit-
ants. Here was anciently a chapel, which has been de-
molished,

HOLDGATE, a parish in the hundred of MuxsLow,
county of Savor, comprising the townships of Bouldon,
Brookhampton, and Holdgate, and coutainiug 238 inha-
bitants, of which number, 77 are in the township of
Holdgate, 82 miles (S.8.W.) from Much Wenlock. The
living is a discharged rectory, in the archdeaconry of
Salop, and diocese of Hereford, rated in the king's
hoofs at £13. 9. 94, and in the patronage of the
Bishop of Hereford. The church ix dedicated to the
Holy Trinity.

HOLDINGHAM, a hamlet in the parish of New
SireArorD, hundred of FraxweLw, parts of KesTEvEN,
county of Lincorn, 1 mile (N. N. W,) from Sleaford,
containing 126 inhabitants. ;

HOLDSHOTT, a tything in the parisk of Hrcx-
r12LD, hundred of HoLnseotT, Basingstoke division of
the county of Sournameron, 3% miles (W. N. W.) from
Hartford-Bridge. The population is returned with the
parish.

HOLFORD, a parish in, and forming one of five
unconnected portions of, the hundred of WmirLey,
county of SoMERsET, 10§ miles (W.N.W.) from Bridg-
water, containing 240 inhabitants. The living is a dis-

rectory, in the archdeaconry of Taunton, and
diocese of Bath and Wells, rated in the king's hooks at
£5. 1. 54, endowed with £200 private benefaction, and
£200 royal bounty, and in the patronage of the Provost
and Fellows of Eton College.

HOLGATE, a township in that part of the parish
of St. Mary BismorssHiLL Junior, which is in the
ainsty of the city, and East riding of the county, of
York, 14 mile (W. by 8.) from York, containing 83 in-
habitants. Lindley Murray, author of & popular En-
glish Grammar, and other school books, who was born
in Pennsylvania, North America, in 1745, died, in 18286,
at this place, where he had long resided.

HOLKER (LOWER), a township in the parish of
CarTMEL, hundred of LonspaLk, north of the sands,
county palatine of Lawcasrer, 1} mile (8. W.) from
Cartmel, eonm.%!;géool inhabitants. :

HOLKER ( R), & township in the parish of
OarTurs, hundred of LonspaLx, north of the sands,
county palatine of Laxvastea, 1§ mile (N.byw.) from
Ceirtmel, containing 1120 inhabitants. - George Bi
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in 1685, devized lands which proliuce £30 =
the support of a school. ,

HOLKHAM, a parish in the northern .division of
the hundred of GrEenHOE, county of NemroLx, 3
miles (W.) from Wells, containing 810 inhabitants. The
living is a discharged vicarage, in the archdeaconry and
diocese of Norfolk, rated in the king's books at £8,13.4,,
endowed with £200 royal bounty, and £ 200 parliamen-
tary grant, and in the patronage of T.W. Coke, Esq.
The church, dedicated to St.Withiburga, is situated on
an eminence north of the town ; it has a massive quad-
rangular embattled tower, serving as a land-mark, which
was repaired in 1767, at an expense of £1000, defrayed
by the Countess Dowager of Leicester, who also built
and endowed alimshouses for the support of three aged
persons of cach gex. A school for boys, and another
for girls, with a house and garden attached for the
master and mistress, are supported by T. W. Coke, Egq.
Holkham was formerly a sea-port of some eminence,
and in the reign of Edward IL furnished, conjointly
with Burnham-Deepdale, one ship, to assist in the
transportation of English troops from Ireland to Scot-
land.

HOLLACOMBE, & parish in the hundred of Brack
TorrinGTON, county of Devon, 24 miles (E. by &)
from Holsworthy, containing 96 inhabitants. The living
is a discharged rectory, in the archdeaconry of Totness,
and diocese of Exeter, rated in the king's books at
£4. 6. 3., endowed with £200 royal bounty, and in the
patronage of the Crown. The church is dedicated to St.
Petrock,

HOLLAND (DOWN), a township in the parish of
Harsacr, hundred of WestT Dxroy, county palatine of
LancasTir, 5% miles (W.) from Ormskirk, containing
629 inhabitants.

HOLLAND (FEN), a district comprising portions
of cleven different parishes, in the wapentake of ELLoE,
parts of HoLLAND, county of LiNncoLy, 84 miles (N. w.
by w.) from Boston. The population is returned with
the several parishes in which it is situated. A chapel
was erected and consecrated in 1812, The living, a
perpetual curacy, was endowed, in 1814, with £1400
parliamentary grant.

HOLLAND (GREAT), = parish in the hundred of
Tenpring, county of Essex, 124 miles (8.E. by 8,)
from Manningtree, contasining 418 inhabitants. The
living is a rectory, in the arch of Colcbester,
and diocese of London, rated jn-the king's boeks at
£17. 18. 9., and in the patronsge of the President and
Fellows of Corpus Christi :‘Oxford, The church
is dedicated to All Saints. Thisparish lies on the copst
of the North sea. ey
*. HOLLAND (LITTLE), s parish in the hundred of
TenDRING, county of Essux, 16 miles (8. E. by B.)
from Colchester, containing 73 inhabitants. The Myving,
a donative # the jurisdiction of the Commissary of

Fma, Fui
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town) in thet part of the parish of Wicaw which is in
the hundred of West Dersy, county palatime of Lan-
CASTER, 44 miles (W, by 8.) from Wigan, containing
3042 inhsbitents. The living is a perpetual curacy, in
the archdeaconry and diocese of Chester, endowed with
% 200 private benefaction, £400 royal bounty, and
£1400 parliamentary grant, and in the patronage of
the Rector of Wigan. The chapel, dedicated to St.
Thomas 2 Becket, is an ancient edifice, the nave and
aisles of which are in the decorated English style, with
a large and handsome east window in the chancel: it
formerly belonged to a priory of Benedictine monks,
founded in the beginning of the fourteenth century, the
revenue of which, at the dissolution, was valued at
£78. 12, A fair for horses and cattle is held here on
the 15th of July.

HOLLESLEY, a parish in the hundred of WiLForb,
county of SurroLK, 7% miles (8. E, by E.) from Wood-
bridge, containing 575 inhabitants. The liviog is a
rectory, in the archdeaconry of Suffolk, and diocese
of Norwich, rated in the Kking's hovks at £12. 16. 8.
The church is dedicated to All Saints. The parish is
bounded on the east by the river Alde, which falls into
Hollesley bay.

HOLLETH, a hamlet in the parish of GarsTang,
hundred of AMOUNDERNESS, county palatine of Lan-
CABTER, 5 miles (N. by W.) from Garstang, containing
43 inhabitants.

HOLLINGBOURN, a parish in the hundred of Ev-
HORNE, lathe of AvyLEsrorp, county of Kenr, 6 miles
(E.) from Maidstone, containing 1000 inhabitants. The
living comprises a rectory and a vicarage, with the per-
petual curacy of Hucking, rated jointly in the king's books
et £36.2. 1., and in the peculiar jurisdiction and patron-
age of the Archbishop of Canterbury. The church, de-
dicated to All Saints, is a handsome cdifice, attached to
which is a chapel with a marble floor, containing a superb
monument to the memory of Lady Culpepper. Thereisa
place of worehip for Wesleyan Methodists. Ann Long,
in 1812, bequeathed £7 per anuum for teaching six
girls, and £3 to widows.

HOLLINGFARE, & chapelry in the parish of War-
RINGTON, hundred of West Denny, county palatine of
‘LANCASTER, 6 miles (E. N. E.) from Warrington, with
which the population is returned. The living is a
perpetual curacy, in the archdeaconry and diocese of
Chester, endowed with £400 private benefaction, and
‘€400 royal bounty, snd in the patronage of the Rector
of Warrington. *

HOLLINGTON, a township in the parish of Loxc-
rorp, hundred of AgbrrrTrse, county of Dersy, 54
miles (8. E. by 8.) from Ashbourn, containing 314 inha-

Joseph Holme, in 1766, bequeathed ‘& small
st for teaching children, Hollington is in the honour
wiYatbury, duchy of Luncaster,”and within the juris-
diction of a court of pleas held at Tutbgry every third
Tuesduny, for the recovery of debts under 40s.

1 HO] TON, a perish in-the hundred of Barp-
tiaw, xape of HasTiNgs; county of Svesex, 24 miles (W,
:ﬂ:‘:} :— Hastings, eontaining 272 inﬂm-‘ The
- ‘48 o discharged vicarage, in the deaconry of
Lowes, sud diacese of Chichester, rated in the king's
books ot £8.8. 2. W, Eversfield, Esq. was patron in
1812. The church, dedicated to St. Lawrence, is in the
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HOLLINGWORTH, a township in the parish of
MorTraM in LoNgpEn-Dark, hundred of MaccLrs-
FIELD, county palatine of CuesTer, 8 miles (E.N.E.)
from Stockport, containing 1393 inhabitants. About
thirty years ago Hollingworth was but an agricultural
district with few inhabitants: there are now extensive
manufactories for cotton goods, paper, and machinery,
also for the printing of calico, and a foundry for smelt-
ing metals.

HOLLINSCLOUGH, a township in the parish of
ALLSTONEFIELD, northern division of the bundred of
TotmoNsLow, county of Stavrorp, 13 mile (N. W.
by w.) from Longnor, containing 560 inhabitants,

HOLLOWAY, a hamlet in that part of the parish
of AsHOVER which is in the hundred of WirksworTs,
county of Derny, 3 miles (8. E,) from Matlock. The
population is returned with the chapelry of Dethwick-

HOLLOWAY, a district in the parish of IsLing-
ToN, Finsbury division of the hundred of Ossvistone,
county of MipvrLeseEx, 3 miles (N.) from London, The
population is returned with the parish. The village is
divided into two parts, Upper and Lower Holloway,
cousisting principally of detached houses, many of
which are handsome buildings, extending along the
great north road from London to Liverpool. The place
appears to have derived its name from being situated in
the hollow way, or vale, between Islington and Highgate.
The village is lighted with gas, and supplied with water
by the New River Company : it is within the jurisdic-
tion of the court of requests held in Kingsgate-street,
Holborn, for the recovery of debts under 40s.; and also
under the superintendence of the New Police. A new
church, dedicated to St. John, and situated at Upper
Holloway, was completed in 1828, at an expense of
£11,890. 7. 8., defrayed partly by a grant from the par-
linmentary commissioners, and partly by a rate on the
inhabitants : it is in the decorated English style, with a
square tower at the west end: the interior is handsomely
fitted up, and lighted with gas; and it contains one
thousand seven hundred mmd eighty-two sittings, of
which geven hundred and fifty-threc are free.  The living
is a district incumbency, in the jurisdiction of the Com-
missary of London, concurrently with the Bishop, and
in the patronage of the Vicar of Islington. At Lower
Holloway is a chapel of case to the vicarage of St. Mary's,
Islington, which was consecrated in August, 1814, having
been erected at an expense (including the site, and a ceme-
tery of five or six acres) of about £32,000, under the
authority of an act of parliament passed in 1811, autho-
rising the trustees to raise by annuities £30,000 : it is
a large edifice, with 8 square tower at the west end : the
interior is neatly ornamented, and over the altar is a
modern painting of the appearance of Christ to Mary
Magdalene. Here is a place of worship for lndepen-
dents, to which is attached a Sunday school. At Upper
Holloway is a National school for boys ; there is an-
other for girls belonging to Highgate and Holloway, and
wlso an infant school. Near Highgate archway, bug
within the limits of Upper Holloway, is situated Sir
Richard Whittington's college, or almshouse, originally
founded in the parish of St. Michael, Paternoster,
London, pursuant to & bequest by Sir Richard Whit-
tington, Knt., alderman and thriee lord mayor of Lon-
don, who, in 1421, left the residue a;‘hu estate, after
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the payment of debts and , ‘'t -executers, for
the purpose of erecting and endowing almshouses for
thirteen poor people, under the of the
Mercers' Company : the funds having received very
considerable additions from various benefactors, the
conservators, in 1824, erected the present college at
Holloway, at an expeuse of nearly £%20,000: it is a
handsome edifice in the later English style, consist-
ing of a front and wings, with a chapel in the centre;
and the grounds before it are tastefully laid out, and
planted with flowering shrubs end ms : there
are tenements for twenty-nine alms-women, who, at the
time of admission, must be widows, or spinsters, not
less than fifty-five years of age, and not possessing pro-
perty to the amount of £30 per annum., which sum
ench of them receives as a pension from the charity,
At Upper Holloway was born, in 1649, Sir Thomas Pope
Blount, Bart,, author of * Censura Authorum Celebrio-
rum,” and other learned works ; also, in 1654, his bro-
ther, Charles Blount, who became noted as a deistical
writer, and who, in August 1694, shot himself in a fit
of phrenzy, occasioned by a disappointed attachment to
the sister of his deceased wife.

HOLLOWELL, ahamlet in the parish and hundred
of GuiLsporoucH, county of NORTHAMPTON, 8 miles

(N.W. by N.) from Northampton, containing 279 inha-
bitants.

HOLLYM, a parish in the routhern division of the
wapentake of Horperness, East riding of the county
of York, comprising the chapelry of Withernsea, and
the township of Hollym, and containing 868 inhabit-
ants, of which number, 260 are in the township of
Hollym, 3 miles (N.E.) from Patrington. The living is
a discharged vicarage, in the archdeaconry of the East
riding, and diocese of York, rated in the king's books at
£9. 19, 2, and in the patronage of the Mayor and Cor-
poration of Beverley. The church, dedicated to St.
Nicholas, was built in 1814, by the Rev. Charles Barker,
then vicar. George Cook, in 1818, bequeathed £300
towards the support of a school, the interest of which is
applied to the instruction of eleven poor children.

HOLM, a hamlet in thst part of the parish of
Bortesrorp which is in the eastern division of the
wapentake of Manrey, parts of Linpsey, county of
LancoLwN, 54 miles (W.) from Glandford-Bridge, con-
taining 39 inhabitants.

HOLM, a joint township with Howgrave, in that
part of the parish of PickmiLL which is in the wapen-
teke of ALLERTONSHIRE, though locally in the wapen-
take of Hallikeld, North riding of the county of York,
Ej& miles (W. by 8.) from Thirsk, containing 102 inha-

tants, .

.HOLME, & joint bamlet with Stratton, in the parish
and huondred of BigGLeswabe, county of Bxprorp, 1
mile (8. by w.) from Biggleswade, with which the po-
pulstion is returned. A

HOLME, s township. in the parish of BaxewzLL,
bundved of Higm Pxax, county of Denay, § of a mile

ﬁ) from Bakewell. The population is retwrmed with
chapelry of Great el oA
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ingdon, and diocese of Lincaln. The church is dedic
cated to St. Giles. R T

HOLME, a chapelry in that part of the parish.of
WaaLLey which is in the higher division of .the hume
dred of BrackeumN, county palatine of LancisTem;
34 miles (8. E. by 8.) from Burnley. The population ia
returned with the parish. The living i a perpetusal
curacy, in the archdeaconry and diocese of Chester,
endowed with £400 private benefaction, and £1200
purliamentary grant. — Whittaker, Esq. was patron
in 1822. William Whittaker, a controversial divine,
was born here in 1548 ; he died in 1595.

HOLME, a chapelry in the parish of NorTr Musk-
HAM, northern division of the wapentake of THURGAR-
TON, county of NoTTINGHAM, 4 miles (N. by E.) from
Newark, containing 114 inhabitants. This chapelry is
in the jurisdiction of the peculiar court of the Chapter
of the Collegiate Church of Southwell. The chapel, de-
dicated to St.Giles, i8 a spacious edifice,

HOLME, a township in that part of the parish of
Burron in Kenpaw which is in LoNspaLe ward, county
of WesTMoRrLAND, 1} mile (N. by W.) from Burton in
Kendal, containing 420 inhabitants. The Lancaster
and Kendal caual passes through this place. Here
are two extensive flax-mills and a linen manufactory,
There is a place of worship for Independents,

HOLME, atownship in the parish of ALmoNDBURY,
upper division of the wapentake of Acuriae, West ridi
of the county of Yorxk, 9 miles (8. 8. W.) from Hudders.
field, containing 459 inhabitants. The manufacture
of woollen goods is somewhat extensively carried om
here. A school has been erected on ground given by
James Earnshaw, for the support of which Joshus
Earnshaw, in 1691, bequeathed £ 300,

HOLME (BALDWIN), a township in the parish
of OrTon, ward and county of CUMBERLAND, 53 miles
(8. W. by W.) from Carlisle, containing 234 inhabitants;

HOLME (BENE'T ST.), a hamlet.in the parish
of HorNinG, hundred of TunstEAD, county of Nor.
¥oLK, 54 miles (N. by W.) from Acle, The population
is returned with Horning, This place is stated to have
been given by a petty prince, called Horn, to a religions
fraternity, about the year 800, who; with a chapel
built here by them, and dedicated to St. Benedict, were
destroyed by the Danes, in 870 : the chapel and houses
were afterwards rebuilt by a person ngmed Wolfrie, and
were elevated into a Benedictine abbey by Canute, about
1020, the revenue of which, at the dissolution, wm

£6727. 9. 8. 15
HOLME (EAST), an Mberty, in the
bundred of Hasinor, Blandford (South) division of the

county of Dorser, 24 miles (8. W. by W.) from Ware:
ham, containing 42 inhabitants, v Meve was formerly
cell subordinate to the Clunisc . priayy -of Montacuts,

in the county of Semerset,. W

HOLME (NORTH), a:township in that part of e
parish of Kingpane which is in the of Rams
pase, North. viding -of the covnty of Yomx, x #aifles
(N.B. by &.) fyotn’ iSehindley, containing 4 .

HOLME (SOUTH), = townskip in that part.ef tha
parish of Hosswgwsa which is in the of Brm

anz, Nerth: siding of the county of Yomx; 74 shiles

- HOLME mext RUNCTON; 4 parish dn: S+ M
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@ws of Clicuctose, eonnty of Nomvorx, 4} miles
(N.) from Downham-Market, containing 198 inhabit-
mts’* The living fs a rectory with Wallington, in the

ry-of Norfolk, and diocese of Norwich, rated
in‘the king's books at £12. The church is dedicated to
Bt. James, .

' 'HOLME next the SEA, a parish in the hundred

of Smitapoxn, county of NorrorLk, 84 miles (W.by N.)
from Burnham-Westgate, containing 219 inhabitants,
The living is a discharged vicarage, in the archdeaconry
of Norfolk, and diocese of Norwich, rated in the king's
books at £6. 18. 4., endowed with £200 royal bounty,
and in the patronage of the Bishop of Norwich. The
church, dedicated to St. Mary, was built by Henry de
Nottingham, one of the countil of the duchy of Lan-
caster, »
HOLME upon SPALDING-MOOR, a parish partly
within the liberty of St. Perer of York, bhut chicfly
in the Holme - Beacon division of the wapentake of
Harrnivi, East riding of the county of York, 5 miles
(8.W. by W.) from Market-Weighton, containing 1318
inhabitants. The living is a vicarage, in the archdea-
conry of the East riding, and diocese of York, rated in
the king's books at £10, and in the patronage of the
Master and Fellows of St. John's College, Cambridge.
The church, dedicated to All Saints, is an ancient edi-
fice standing on an cminence which commands a fine
and extensive prospect, in which York miuster is a pro-
minent object. Upon this mount is the beacon from
which the division of the wapentake derives its name,
and near it is a bed of gypsum, containing also ammonile,
or snake stones. Therc is a place of worship for Wes-
leyan Methodists, besides two Roman Catholic chapels.
According to tradition, a cell was founded by the Vava-
sours, or the Constdbles, on the edge of the moor, for
two monks, one of whom acted as a guide to travellers
across that extensive waste, the other praying for their
safety, The shock of an carthquake was felt here on
the night of the 18th of January, 1822. ‘

HOLME on the WOLDS, a parish in the Bainton-
Beacon division of the wapentake of HarrmiLy, East
ridigg of the county of York, 6} miles (N.W.) from
Beverley, containing 138 inhabitants. The living is a
discharged vie ‘with that of St. Mary, Beverley,
in the archdesconry of the East riding, and diocese of
York, rated in the king's books at £8. 19. 7., endowed
with £1000 royal bounty, and £200 parliamentary
graut. The church is dedicated to St. Peter.

HOLME - CULTRAM, a parish in ALLERDALE
wwird below Darwent, county of CuMBERLAND, 61 miles
(w. N, w.) from Wigton, comprising Abbey Quarter,
Beat Waver Quarter, Low Quarter, and St. Cuthbert’s
Quarter, and containing 2772 inhabitants, The lLiv-
ingiis o curacy, with that of Newton-Arlosh,
in the arc and diocese of Carlisle, rated in
the king's books at £6. 13. 4., ent;;lwed with -£600
privitte , and £1100 parliamentary grant,
sl vinithe of the Chancellor, Masters, and
Soholary of ‘the University of Oxford. - The church, de-
diouted ‘te the' Virgin Mury, is principally in the éarly

lof Edglish architecture, and wes mostly rebuilt in
-ln:;rm- part of the old edifice had been

destroyed Yy finé: it _was once the conventual:church
of m  ibbeyiof Oistetcian monks, founded in 1150,
by Weince Sesg uf; Sootaind, xnd 50 richly endowed,
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that at the dissolution its revenue was estimated at
£535. 8. 7.; in the church-yard are various remains of
the conventual buildings. The abbots were summoned
to several parlioments by Edward I. and I, and the
last abbot was instituted to the rectory. The Society
of Friends have a mecting-house at Beck-foot, erected
in 1745. The parish is bounded on the west by the
Irish sea, and on the north by the mstvaries of the
Wampool and the Waver, the latter river passing on the
eastern side of the village, where it is crossed by a sub-
stantial bridge of three arches, erected in 1770, at the
expense of the parishioners. Freestone is obtained
here. At Newton-Arlosh are the iuing of an ancient
chapel, said to have been onec the parochial church.
Walsey castle, formerly a very strong fort, has dwindled
into a small heap of ruins,

HOLME-HALE, a parish in the southern division
of the hundred of Greenmor, county of NorroLk,
5 miles (N. N. W.) from Watton, containing 422 inha-
bitants, The living is @ discharged rectory, in the
archdeaconry of Norfolk, and diocesce of Norwich, rated
in the king's books at £12. 16. 5§. The Rev.T. P.
Young was patron in 1794. The church is dedicated
to St. Andrew.

HOLME-PIERREPOINT, a parish in the southern
division of the wapentake of BinguAM, county of Nor-
TINGHAM, 5 miles (E. by 8.) from Nottingham, contain-
ing, with the hamlet of Adbolton, which was formerly
a distinct parish, 205 inhabitants. The living is a ree-
tory, with which the vicarage of Adbolton was united
in 1707, in the archdeaconry of Nottingham, and dio-
cese of York, rated in the king's books et £15. 7. 6.,
and in the patronage of Earl Manvers. The church,
dedicated to St. Edmund, was erected in the time of
Henry VIL : it is a fine structure, having numerous
large windows, with a quadrangular tower surmounted
by a lofty handsome spire, and contains the family vault
of the dukes of Kingston, several mural monuments,
and some ancient brasses. The parith is bounded on
the north by the river Trent, and the Grantham canai
crogses an angle on the south.

HOLMEFIRTH, a chapelry in the parish of Kirk-
BurTon, upper division of the wapentake of AceRriIGs,
West riding of the county of York, 65 miles (8.) from
Huddersfield. The population is returned with the pa-
rish. The living is & perpetual curacy, in the archdea-
conry and diocese of York, endowed with £400 private
benefaction, and £400 royal bounty, and in the patron-
age of the Vicar of Kirk-Burton, There are places of
worship for Independents and Wesleyan Methodists.

HOLMER, a parish in the hundred of GriMsworTH,
county of Hererorp, € miles (N.) from Hereford, con-
taining, with the chapelry of Huntington, and the town-
ship of Shelwick, 524 inhabitants. The living is & dis-
charged vicarage, in the peculiar jurisdiction of the
Dean of Hereford, rated in the king's books at £6. 10. 8.,
and in the patronage of the Dean and Chapter of Here-
ford. The church is dedicated to St. Burtholomew.

HOLMESCALES, a hamlet in that part of the pa
rish of KexpaL which is in KenpaL ward, county of
WesTMORLAND, 44 miles (8.E. by 8.) from Kendal
The population is returped with the chapelry of Ol
Hutton.

HOLMESFIELD, a chapelry inh the parish of
DaoxvizLp, hundred of Scarspass, ‘county of DErwY,
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2} miles (W.) from Dronfield, containing €09 inhabit-
ants. The living is a perpetual curacy, in the archdea-
conry of Derby, and diocese of Lichfield and Coventry,
endowed with £10 per aunum and £200 private bene-
faction, and £ 400 royal bounty, and in the patronage of
the Vicar of Dronfield. The chapel was rebuilt in 1826.
A school was erected, in 1725, on land given by Mat-
thias Webster, previously to which Robert Mower, in
1719, gave certain land toward the maintenance of a
schoolmaster, and subsequently, in 1725, Prudence
Mower gave £60 : the produce of these endowments,
with other subscriptions, amounts to about £ 18 per an-
num, for which sum sbout twenty children receive in-
struction,

HOLMPTON, a parish in the southern division
of the wapentake of HoLperwres, East riding of the
county of Yorxk, 34 miles (E. by N.) from Patrington,
containing 256 inhabitants, The living is a discharged
rectory, in the archdeaconry of the East riding, and
diocese of York, rated in the king's books ut £4. 13, 4.,
and in the patronage of th: Crown. The church hae
lately received an addition of sixty-five free sittings, the
Incorporated Society for the enlargement of churches
and chapels having granted £30 towards defraying
the expense. There is a place of worship for Wesleyan
Methodists. The village is situated near the North
ses, and is considered & healthy spot. There is a small
endowed school.

HOLMSIDE, a township in that part of the parish
of LancresTER which is in the western division of
CursTer ward, county palatine of Duruam, 7 miles
(N.W.) from Durham, containing 228 inhabitants,

HOLNE, a parish in the hundred of STANBOROVGH,
county of Devon, 4 miles (W.) from Ashburton, con-
taining 410 inhabitants. The living is a vicarage, in
the archdeaconry of Totness, and diocese of Exeter,
rated in the king's books at £8. 5. 5., and in the pa-
tronage of the Crown. The church once belonged to
the abbey of Buckfastleigh : it contains a stone font in
the early Englich style, and a rood-loft and screen. The
river Dart here rapidly pursues its course through a
romantic dell of rock, beautifully fringed with wood.

HOLNEST, a parish in the hundred of SEERBORNE,
Sherborne division of the county of Dorser, 43 miles
{S. by E.) from Sherborne, containing 162 inhabitants,
The living is a perpetual curacy annexed to the vicar-
age of Long Burton, in the peculiar juriediction of the
Dean of Sarum. The church is dedicated to St. Mary.

HOLSWORTHY, a market town and parish in the
hundred of Bracx TorrINGTON, county of Devon, 42
miles (W. by N.) from Exeter, and 214 (W. by 8.) from
London, containing 1440 inhabitants. The situation of
this place is dreary, and it is of little importance, ex-
cept on accoumt of its fairs and markets. A branch of
the Bude and Launceston canal passes at a short dis-
tance to the north of the town. The market is on
‘Wednesday ; and there are three fairs: *St. Peter's fair,”
mentioned in a record of thereign of Edward L., is stilla
large mart for cattle and various commodities, continu-
iog several days, and commencing on St. Péter's day
(July 10th), uniess that day falls iater in the week than
Thureday, in which case the fpir beginis on the Tuesday
following ; the other fairs are, April 27th and Out. 2nd ;
‘there is alsoa ‘market for cattle om- the e
Wednesdxy in February, The lving is & rectory; in’

U0
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archdeaconry of Totness, and diocese of Exeter, rated
in the king's books at £32. 0, 5. The Rev: R. Kingden
was patron in 1819. The church, dedicated to 8¢,
Peter and St. Paul, is an ancient building with & Ner-
man doorway, and some other portions in the same
style. Here are places of worship for Independents
and Wesleyan Methodists, A National school is sup-
ported by voluntary contributions.

HOLT, a tything in the parish of Wimsorne-
MinsTer, hundred of Bappury, Shaston (East) divi-
sion of the county of Dorser, 3 miles (N. E. by N.)
from Wimborne-Minster, containing 1180 inhabitants.
Herc were anciently a forest, chase, and park, and a
chapel of ease, dedicated to St. James.

HOLT, a chapelry in the parish of MEpBOURNE,
hundred of GARTREE, county of LEICESTER, 4 miles
(W.N.w.) from Rockingham, containing, with the ham-
let of Bradley, 53 inhabitants. A mineral spring was
discovered here in 1728, called the Nevill Holt water,
impregnated with iron and aluminous and calcareous
ralts, and found serviceable in h®morrhage, serofula,
and other glandular diseases.

HOLT, a market town and parish in the hundred
of HovT, county of NorroLk, 23 miles (N,N.W.) from
Norwich, and 120 (N.N.E.) from London, containing
1348 inhabitants. This place, from the quantity of
timber which grew upon its site, or by which it was
gurrounded, was by the Suxons called Holt, signifying a
wood. In the reign of Edward the Confessor it was
held in royal demesne, and after the Conquest the lord-
ship belonged to the family of De Vaux, or De Vallibus,
The town is pleasantly situated on rising ground, in the
midst of a fertile district, remarkable for the purity of
its air, and commands a delightful prospect of the sur-
rounding country, which is justly styled “ theGarden of
Noriolk.” The houses are neatly built of brick and
stone; the streets are paved with flint-stones, and
the inhabitants are well supplied with water from a
spring, sud from several wells in the neighbourhood,
Here are a circulating library, and two book clubs, sup-
ported by subscription; and assemblies are occasionally
held in the sessions-house. The town has undergone
great improvement since 1708, in which year a very
destructive fire took place on a market day, that con-
sumed 8 considerable number of houses, the market
stalls, &c. In 1810, the commons and heaths that sar-
rounded the town were enclosed for cultivation ; -and on
the east side, towards Cromer, are now handsome and
thriving plantations of forest trees, interspersed with
neat dwelling-houses. The market is on Saturdey,
which is well attended : the faire, chiefly for live stock,
are held on April 25th and November 85th.  An adjourned
séssion for the county is held -twice s year, in the pes-
sions-house, 8 handsome and-commodious building, n
which all public business is transacted; and constables
and other officers are annually:chosen at the conrt lsst
of the lord of the manor, keld on the 21st of Dedember,

~The living iv ‘& rectory, in the archd Py laid
diocese of “Notwith, mated in the king's hooks at
£11. 17: 8., wiidl in the of: i
Fellows of 8t.Jol's ‘College, Cambridge. - - Fhie' chirch,

dedionted to St. Andrew, had,
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leysn Methodists.  The free grammar school was found-
ed in 1556, by Sir Thomas Gresham : annexed to it are
 sgholarship and fellowship in Sydney Sussex College,
Cambridge ; the management is vested in the Fishmong-
oy’ Company, Sir Thomas Gresham, born here in
1607, became celebrated as 8 merchant and financier,
and displayed his genius, not only in contriving schemes
for paying the debts of the crown, and extending our
foreign trade, but also in introducing into the kingdom
various new branches of manufacture; besides other
great and charitable endowments, he founded Gresham
College and the Royal Exchange; he died in 1579.

HOLT, a chapelry in the parish of Grrat Brap-
rorp, hundred of Braprorp, county of Wivts, 2%
miles (E.N.E.) from Bradford, containing 846 inha-
bitants. The chapel, dedicated to St. Catherine, has
lately received an addition of one hundred and seventy
sittings, of which one bundred and forty arc free, the
Incorporated Society for the enlargement of churches
and chapels having granted £ 140 towards defraying the
expense. There is a place of worship for Independents.
A mineral spring, discovered upwards of a century ago.
is still resorted to for its sanative properties. Mr. David
Arnot, long proprietor of this spa, was the author of
the “ Commercial Tables * bearing his name.

HOLT, a parish in the lower division of the hun-

dred of OswaLpsLow, county of WoRCEsTER, 6 miles
(N.N.W.) from Worcester, containing, with the chapel-
ry of Little Witley, 657 inhabitants. The living is a
rectory, in the archdeaconry and diocese of Worcester,
rated in the king's books at £15. 17. 8. Lord Foley
was patron in 1811. The church, dedicated to St.
Martin, is a good specimen of the early style of English
architecture, Some remains of a castle, erected by the
Beauchamps, are still visible. A bridge of five arches,
two hundred and sixty-six feet in length, has been
erected over the Severn: the span of the central arch,
which is of iron, is one hundred and fifty feet, and its
height above the level of the river, at low water, thirty-
five feet; the other arches, two at each end, are of
stone,
HOLTBY, a parish in the wapentake of BuLMER,
North riding of the county of York, 5§ miles (L. N E.)
from York, containing 170 inhabitants, The living is
a rectory, in the jurisdiction of the peculiar court of
Howdenshire, rated in the king's books at £8, and in
the patronage of Mre. Nelson. The church, dedicated
to the Holy Trinity, is a spacious edifice of brick.

HOLTON, e parish in the western division of the

e of WRAGGOE, parts of LiNDsEY, county of
Lincorn, 24 miles (N, N. W.) from Wragby, containing,
with the hamlet of Bickering, 142 inhabitants. The
living . is a rectory, in the archdeaconry and diocese of

ealn, rated in the king's books at £17. 10. 10. Ed-
mund. Turnor, Esq. was patron in 1812. The church
is dedjeated to All Saints.
1w JAQLTON, a pearish in the hundred of BuLLinNgToN,
-oounty of Oxrorp, 6 miles (E.) from Oxford, contain-
ing 800 inhabitants, The living is & rectory, in the
:and diogese of Oxford, sated ia the king's
bopks at $12. 19..2, and in the patronage of Klisha
incoe, Hag.  The church, dedicated to St. Bartholo-
-t &.gragiform structure, baving a chapel gttached
4@ the narth wisle, snd . another to the south; the latter,
which appesrs. 40 -be the more modern, was built by
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William Brome, Esq., who, in 1461, was buried in a
vault underncath jt. In the parish register is recorded
tl‘w marriage of Ireton to Bridget, daughter of Oliver
Cromwell, Junc 15th, 1646. A school was built by
subscription in 1790, and is partly supported by the
interest of £200 left, in 1665, by Dr. Edward Rogers,
then rector. A great number of human skeletons has
been recently found promiscuously buried just below the
surface, it being thought that this was the scene of a
battle during the parliamentary war., The ancient ma-
norial mansion, which was snrrounded by a moat, was
taken down in 1804, and the present built upon its site.

HOLTON, a parish in the hundred of WuirTLEY,
though locally in that of Horethorne, county of So-
MERSET, 2§ miles' (3. W, by W.) from Wincanton con-
taining 235 inhabitants, The living is a discharged
rectory, in the archdeaconry of Wells, und diocese of
Bath and Wells, rated in the king's books at £8, 0. 2.,
endowed with £200 private benefaction, and £200
royal bounty. John Gibbs, Esq. was patron in 1755,
The church is dedicated to St. Nicholus.

HOLTON, a parish in the hundred of BryrHineg,
county of SurroLrk, 14 mile (E.N. E.) fromn Halesworth,
containing 399 inhabitants. The living is a discharged
rectory, iu the archdeaconry of Suffolk, and diocesc of
Norwich, rated in the king's books at £10. 13. 4., en-
dowed with £200 royal bounty, and in the patronage
of the Crown. The church is dedicated to St. Peter.

HOLTON le CLAY, a parish in the wapentake
of Braprex-Haverstok, parts of LiNpsky, county of
Lincoun, b miles (8.8, E.) from Great Grimsby, con-
taining 220 inhabitants. The living is a vicarage, in
the archdeaconry and diocese of Lineoln, rated in the
king's books at £4. 4. 4., und in the petronage of the
Crown. The church is dedicated to St. Peter.

HOLTON (ST. MARY), a parish in the hundred of
Samronp, county of SurroLk, 43 miles (8.8, E.) from
Hadleigh, containing 213 inhabitants.  The living is a
discharged rectory, in the archdeaconry of Suffolk, and
diocese of Norwich, rated in the king's books at
£7.14. 7., and in the patronage of Sir Wm. Rowley,
Bart. The church is dedicated to St. Mary. The Rev,
Stephen White, in 1756, founded and endowed a school
for the instruction of twenty-five children : the annual
income is about £35, of which the master reccives
£12. 12., and the residue is expended in books, &e.,
and in furnishing cach boy with a suit of clothes on his
leaving school.

HOLTON le MOOR, a chapelry in that part of
the parish of Caistor which is in the northern division
of the wapentake of WaLsacrorT, parts of LiNDsEy,
county of LincoLw, 3§ miles (8. W.) from Caistor, con-
taining 135 inhabitants, Here is a place of worship for
Wesleyan Methodists.

HOLVERSTONE, a paerish in the hundred of Hen-
8TEAD, county of NorroLk, 6 miles (8. £.) from Nor-
wich, containing 26 inhabitants. The living is divided
into medieties, une of which is held with the of
Burgh-Apton, and the other with that of Rockland, iny
the archdeaconry of Norfolk, and diocese of Norwich.
The church, which was dedicated to St. Mary, has been
demolished. )

HOLWELL, a parish in the hundred of Crirron,
county of Beprorp, 3 miles (N. W. by N.) from Hitchin,
containing 179 inhabitants. The living is a rectory, in
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the archdeaconry of Bedford, and diocese of Lincoln,
rated in the king's books at £7. 9. 7. — Radcliff, Esq.
was patron in 1810.

HOLWELL, a chapelry in the parish of As-Ke1TLE-
RY, hundred of FraMrLAnD, county of Leicester, 34
miles (N.N. W.) from Melton-Mowbray, containing 132
inhabitants. The chapel is dedicated to St. Leonard.
There is a chalybeate spring in the neighbourhood.

HOLWELL, a chapelry in the parish of BroapweLL,
bundred of Bampron, county of Oxrorp, 22 miles
(8. W, by 8.) from Burford, containing 86 inhabitants.
The living isa perpetnal curacy, in the archdeaconry and
diocese of Oxford, endowed with £400 parliamentary
grant, and in"the patronage of the Vicar of Broadwell.

HOLWELL, a parish in the hundred of Hore-
THORNE, county of SomerseTr, though locally in the
hundred of Sherborne, county of Dorset, 53 miles (S.E.
by E.) from Sherborne, containing, with the hamlct
of Backshuw, 342 inhabitants, The living is a rectory,
in the archdeaconry of Dorsct, and diocese of Bristal,
rated in the king's hooksat. £14. 13. 9., and in the pa-
tronage of the Provost and Fellows of Queen's College,
Oxford. The church is dedicated to St. Lawrence,
Here stood the principal lodge of the ancient Forest of
Blackmore, which William de Bret and his successors
held by service as the King's Forester in Blackmore :
the office became extinet when the district was disaf-
forested,

HOLWICK, a township in the parish of RomaLp-
Kirk, western division of the wapentake of GILLING,
North riding of the county of York, 124 miles (N. W.)
from Bornard-Castle, containing 201 inhabitants.

HOLYBOURNE, a parish in the hundred of Ar-
70N, Alton (North) division of the county of Soura-
AMPTON, 14 mile (N.E.) from Alton, containing -482
inhabitante. The living is a perpctual curacy, in the
archdeaconry and diocese of Winchester, and in the pa-
tronage of the Dean and Chapter of Winchester. The
church is dedicated to the Holy Rood. Thomas Andrews,
in 1719, devised estates for the erection and support of
a free school for all the children of the parish, for twelve
of Alton, five of Binsted, and three of Froyle, and for
apprenticing them : the net anuual income i nearly
£200, snd the number receiving instruction is about
eighty, of whom twenty are clothed.

HOLY CROSS, a hamlet in the parish of CLENT,
southern division of the hundred of Seispox, county
of Syarrorp, locally in the county of Worcester. 3§
miles (8.8.E.) from Stourbridge. The population is re-
turned with the parish, Fairs are held on April 11th
and Sep. 12th, chiefly for horned cattle and cheese.
There is a place of worship for Baptists,

HOLY¥IELD, a hamlet in the parish of Wartaam-
Ansry, or Hory-Cross, hundred of WaLTHAM, county
of Eesrx, 24 miles (N. by E,) from Waltham-Abbey,
containing 203 inhabitants,

HOLY-ISLAND, or LINDISFARN, a parish in
IsLAxpestRz, county palatine of DurmAm, though lo-
cally to the north of the county of Northumberland, 53
miles (N.by E.) from Belford, and 10 (8.E.) from.Ber-
wick upon Tweed, containing 760 inhabitsnts. It is
situated in the German ocean, & mile and a balf.
the Northumbrian coast, and derives its yame ful

abbey founded by Oswald, King: ﬁw ' g
thhbn_clnc'the:eat-nfﬁishp'.mg Dbut. after
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cession of fourteen prelates, the cathedral church was
destroyed by the Danes, in 898, and the bishoprick was
removed to Chester le street, After the Norman Cen-
quest & Benedictine priory was established here, as a
cell to that of Durham, the revenue of which at the
dissolution was £60. 5.: its foundations may be traced
over a space of nearly four acres, but the only consider-
able remains are those of the church, a noble cruciform
structure, displaying in the nave, choir, and a part of
the central tower, the Norman and early English styles
of architecture. Holy Island was invaded and phun-
dered by Malcolin I, King of Scotland, in 941. In the
great civil war it was the station of a parliamen
garrison ; and in 1715 it was scized by the adherents of
the Pretender, who were however soon dislodged by a
detachruent from the king's troops at Berwick. Besides
the principal island, the parish comprisce the Farn
islands, and the hamlets of Fenham and Goswick on the
main land. At the south-western angle of Holy 1sland is
situated the village of Lindisfurn, distinguished for its
romantic seenery and the ruins of the monastery. 1t
is a place of considerable resort for sea-bathing, and
there ure several fishing-boats belonging to the village,
employed in catching cod, ling, haddock, and lobsters,
which are very sbundant in the neighbouring seas, and
are sent in large quantities to the London market. The
south-castern extremity of the island rises in a conical
peak, sixty feet in height, on the summit of which is a
small castelluted fort: the north side abounds with lime-
stone ; and there are also a small seam of coal, and a
stratum of slate, the latter containing a considerable
quantity of irom-ore, with which are found "the en-
trochi, or fossils popularly termed St. Cuthbert's beads.
The living is a perpetual curacy, in the archdeaconry
of Northumberland, and diocese of Durbam, endowed
with £400 private benefaction, and £400 royal bouaty,
and in the patronage of the Dean and Chapter of Dar-
ham. The church, dedicated to St.John the Evangelist,
is a small neat building, constructed out of the remains
of the ancient priory.

HOLY-OAKES, a liberty in that part of the parish
of Dry-Stoke which is in the hundred of Garrugs,
county of Leicester, 3 miles (8. W, by 8.) from Up-
pingham, containing 7 inhabitants,

HOLYWELL, a parish in the hundred of Hunsy-
INGSTONE, county of HuNTINGDON, 2 miles (E. by 8.)
from St. Ives, coutaining, with the hamlet of Need-
ingworth, 782 inhabitants. The living is a rectery, in
the urchdeaconry of Huntingdon, and diocese of Lincoln,
rated in the king's books at £30, 6. 8. The Duke of
Manchester was patron in 1804. The chorch, dedicated
to St. John the Baptist, stands on'a hill, st the foot of
which is a spring of clear and excellent water, called the
Holy Well, formerly held in. great veneration, but ngw
ueglected.” The river Ouse runs through the parish...

HOLYWELL, & joint chapelry with Awnby, in'thé
parish efCasTiLEeByTmAM, wapentake of Bririess
parts of efun, - of LancoLy, 7 iy
(NN, W.) feom Stamford, containing 116 inhabitwse

- HOLYWELL, -atownship in the parish of Esnepo;
castern division-of {GasTux ward, county of Nomvwd
BERLAND, 5 miles (N. N. W.) from North Shicldayty
taining 180 intebitents. - There isa wmodicinal i
called: 8¢, Masy's. Well, the water of which' Tsteitll
puze-by fbpinfusion of galis,
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‘HOMERSFIELD, a parish in the hundred of
'Wawngrorp, county of SurroLk, 44 miles (S. W.) from
Bungay, containing' 201 inhabitants. The living is a

rectory, in the archdeaconry of Suffolk, and
diocese of Norwich, rated in the king's books at £5. 6. 8.,
and in the patronage of Alexander Adair, Esq. The
church is dedicated to St. Mary. The parish is bounded
on the north by the river Waveney, which separates it
from Norfolk,

HOMINGTON, a parish in the hundred of CAwDEN
and CapworTs, county of WiLts, 34 miles (8. W. by 8.)
from Salisbury, containing 177 inhabitants. The living
isa curacy, endowed with £200 royal bounty,
and in the peculiar jurisdiction and patronage of the
Dean and Chapter of Salisbury. The church is dedi-
cated to St. Mary.

HOM-LACY, a parish in the hundred of WEeBTREE,
county of Hererorp, 6 miles (8. E,) from Hereford,
containing 389 inhabitants. The living is a vicarage, in
the archdeaconry and diocese of Hereford, rated in the
king's books at £8, end in the patronage of Sir E. F.
Scudamore Stanhope, Bart. The church is dedicated tn
St.Cuthbert. An abbey for Premonstratensian canons,
in honour of the Blessed Virgin and St. Thomas &
Becket, was founded and endowed with divers manors,
by William Fitzwain, in the time of Henry ITT.  In the
manorial mansion Pope wrote his poem cntitled * The
Man of Ross.”

HONEYBOURNE (CHURCH), a parish in the
upper division of the hundred of Brackenmursr,
county of WorcesTer, 4 miles (N. W. by N.) from
Chipping-Campden, containing, with Poden, 136 inha-
bitants. The living is a perpetuul curacy, with that of
Cow-Honeybourne, in the archdeaconry and diocese of
Worcester, rated in the king's hooks at £6. 4. 4., and
in the patronage of Mrs, Williams. The church, dedi-
cated to St. Egwin, has a plain tower surmounted by
a spire : it was esteemed the mother church in the Vale
of Evesham at the dissolution of the abbey There is
a place of worship for Wesleyan Mcthodists.

' . HONEYBOURNE (COW), a parish in the upper
division of the hundred of Kirrseare, county of GrLou-
CESTER, 4 miles (N. W.) from Chipping-Campden, con-
taining 338 inhabitants. The living wns annexed to the
perpetual curacy of Church-Honeybourne at the dissolu-
tion. The church, long in ruins, hus been converted into
houses for the poor, but the tower is gtill entire. A free
school was established by subscription in 1806, when a
achool-room was erected, with a residence for the mas-
ter, whose salary, amounting to £23 per annum, arises
from the interest of certain stock puvchased with the
o us, and the liberal contribution of Cotterill Cor-

bet, Esq.

%5 HMONEYCHURCH, a parish in the hundred of

Braox  TowrineroN, county of Devown, 63 miles
by 8.) from Hatherleigh, containhglﬂﬁ inhabitants,

ving 14 a discharged rectory, itk the

ness, and diocese of Exeter, vefed in the king's

ab88.7, 8., endowed with £200 private benefag-

-#300 roysl bounty, and in the of

; Newton Fallowes. The church is dedicated to

X, & parish in the Snitterfield division of the
of Bamrrouway, county of WArRwicK, 64 miles
'Ijl. from ‘Warwick, containing 63 inhsbitents,
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The living is a rectory, in the archdeaconry of Coventry,
and diocese of Lichfield and Coventry, Court Granville,
Egq. was patron in 1814. The church is dedicated to
St. John the Baptist.

HONING, a parish in the hundred of TunsTEAD,
county of NorroLk, 33 miles (8. E. by E.) from North
Walsham, containing 268 inhabitants, The living is
a discharged vicarage, united with that of Dilham, in
the archdeaconry of Norfolk, and diocese of Norwich,
rated in the king's books at £4. 13. 4. The church is
dedicated to St. Peter and $t.Paul.

HONINGHAM, a parish in the hundred of Forr-
HOE, county of Norrork, 74 miles (W.N.W.) from
Norwich, containing 221 inhabitants. The living is a
discharged vicarage united with that of East ‘T'uden-
ham, in the archdeacoury of Norfolk, and diocese of
Norwich, rated in the king's hooks at £8, 12. 6. The
church is dedicated to St. Andrew,

HONINGHAM, county of Wanwick, — Sce HUN-
NINGHAM.

HONINGTON, a parish in the wapentake of
Winniprices and Tareo, parts of KesTeven, county
of LincoLn, 5 miles (N.N.E.) from Grantham, con-
taining 156 inhabitants. The living is a discharged
vicarage, in the archdeaconry and diocese of Lincoln,
rated in the king's books at £4. 0. 5., endowed with
£200 private benefaction, and £200 royal hounty, and
in the patronage of Sir Thomas Aprecee.  The church
is dedicated to St. Wilfrid. There is a square double-
trenched camp eastward of the village, within the area
of which two urns, full of Roman coius, with some
fragments of bridles and warlike weapons, were dis-
covered in 1691.  In the valley hetween Konington and
Carleton is a large flat tamulus,

HONINGTON, a parish in the hundred of Brack-
BOURN, county of Surrork, 23 miles (N.N.W.) from
Ixworth, containing 250 inhabitants, The living is a
discharged rectory, in the archdeaconry of Sudbury,
and diocese of Norwich, rated in the king's books at
£7. 13, 4, and in the patronage of the Crown. The
church is dedicated to All Saints. Robert Bloomfield,
the poet, author of the “ Farmer's Boy,” &c., was born
here in 1788,

HONINGTON, a parish in the Brails division of the
hundred of Kineroxn, county of Warwick, 14 mile
(N. by ) from Shipston upon Stour, containing 337
inhabitants. The living is a discharged vicarage, in the
archdeaconry and diocese of Worcester, rated in the
king's booke at £9. 6. S. The Rev. H, Townsend was
patron in 1817. The church is dedicated to All Saints.

HONITON, a borough, el '
market town, and parish, in
the hundred of AxmiNsTER,
county of Devon, 164 miles
(E. N. E.) from Exeter, and
1564 (W.8.w.) from London,
containing $206 inhabitants.
This place tila situatefd c;n
risin; nd in a fertile
vale Engtrg: south side of the
river Otter, and on :::d lmfe of = -
the western » from Corporste Seal.
Lonmn Plymouth. It possesses claims to high an-
tiquity, having probably originated from a Roman set-
tlemtmut at Hunbury Fort, contiguous to the present
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town, where there are traces of an extensive intrenched
camp, supposcd to have been the Moridunum of Anto-
nious., During the civil war, Charles L. passed and re-
passed through the town, which was subsequently vi-
sited by the parliamentary peneral, Fairfax, after his
successful campaign in the west of England, in 1645,
The town has repeatedly suffered from fire: especially
in 1747 and 1765, on which latter occasion, one hundred
and fifteen houses were destroyed, together with a part
of the chapel, the damage having been estimated at
nearly £11,000. It consists chiefly of one very wide
street, about a mile in length, lighted and puved,
and is plentifully supplied with water: it has a gentle
declivity towards the west, and in the central part
are some well huilt brick houses and shops, the
principal inn and the town-hall. This part of the
town, with the exception of a few old houses, is of
modern erection, the buildings having been raised sub-
sequently to the last great fire, and with so much at-
tention to uniformity as to render Honiton one of the
neatest towns in the county. The manufacture of serge
was cstablished here at an early perivd ; and the place
was also noted for the lurge quantity of valuable lace
made, some kinds of which were sold for more than
five guincas a yard, being woven of thread, imported
from the Netherlands, and rivalling in fineness and
heauty the genuine Brussels lace. But the serge trade
has long since declined, and the lace-muking is not car-
ried un to any considerable cxtent. Sprigs for the de-
coration of the Tiverton patent net are however still
made here, and retain their former celebrity, Shoes and
conrse carthenware are likewise manufactured, but not
extengively, Honiton is famous as a mart for butter
and cheese, & large quantity of the former article being
sent weekly to the metropolis. In the vicinity of the
town are quarries producing a peculiar kind of stone,
used for meking whet-stones for scythes, the trade in
which is by no mesans inconsiderable. The markets,
held by prescription, are on Tuesday, Thursday, and Sa-
turday, the last of which is the principal market day,
An annual fair takes place on the Wednesday after the
19th of July; and there are great markets on the second
Saturday in April, and the Saturday before October 18th,
The municipal affairs of the town are under the direction
of a portreeve, bailiff, and two ale-tasters, who together
with three constables, two tything-men, and other officers,
are appointed at the manor court held on Michaelmas-
day. Under an ancient charter granted to the lord of
the manor, the portreeve possessed magisterial power to
hold monthly courts, and to meke by-laws for the
government of the horough; but at present the sole
jurigdiction is vested in the county magistrates, who hold
petty sessions here every month, This town sent mem-
bers to parliament in the reigns of Edward I. and Ed-
ward IL, after which the elective franchise was sus-
pended till the sixteenth of Charles L., since which it has
been regularly exercised. " The right of ‘election belongs
to the inhabitant housekeepers within the bomugh not
receiving alms, commonly calied ** potwallopers,” about
four hundred and fifty in number : the portreeve, or, in
his ahsence, the bailiff, is the returning officer.
‘The living is a rectory, in the arc
diocese of Exeter, rated in the king's books at £40.¢. 2.,
‘and in the pat of the " of "Viecount
‘Gpurtenay. ‘The church, dedicated ‘to’'St. Michael,

and

410

taining 174 inhabitants. <The

4} miles (n.n ) from Bochester, containing 94
“bitatiy - The ‘is & di w iy
archdesconry snd of Rochester, vated!/tit #he
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which stends on an eminence about half & miile fifosn
the town, iz a fine edifice, with aisles and a ulnleg;l
the later English style, having been built or en
about 1484, by Courtenay, Bishop of Exeter, who eroctéd
the beautiful screen, ornamented with carving and gild-
ing, which separates the nave from the chance] : among
several ancient monuments which it contains, is one
to the memory of Dr.Thomas Marwood, physician to
Queen Elizabeth, who died in 1617, at the age of 108,
In the town is Allhallows chupel, a neat structare erected
by subscription about 1765, on the site of a preceding
chﬂ.pel Sir John Kirkham, Knt., and Elizens Hard-
ing, clerk, in the 15th of Henry VIII gave land and
tenements in the pmahea of Honiton and Yarcombe,
for the repair and maintcnance of this chapel. Here
are places of worship for Baptists, Independents, Wes-
leyan Methodists, and Unitarians. A free grammar school
was founded pursuant to a bequest from the Rev. John
Fley, in 1614, and endowed with various benefactions
amounting to £12 per anoum, but the number of free
scholars of ldte years, hes been very small. There is a
National school, the master of which has a salary of £25
per annum, partly arising from the dividends of £300
stock in the four per cents., the bequest of the Rev. James
How, in 1816. St. Margaret's hospital, about half a mile
westward from the town, is an ancient foundation origi-
nally intended for lepers, and now consisting of houses
for a governor, and eight poor persons, who have small
stipends arising from lands producing about £85 per
annum: connected with it is a chapel, in which the go-
vernor reads prayers twice 8. week. A mile to the north
of Honiton is St. Cyre's Hill, on which a battery has
been erected; and races are occasionally held here.
Oziss Humphry, a Royal Academician, and eminent as
a painter, was a native of this town.

HONLEY, a chapelry in the parish of ALmonp-
BURY, upper division of the wapentake of AcBrics,
West riding of the county of Yorg, 3§ miles (5. by w.)
from Huddersfield, containing 3501 inhabitants. The
living is a perpetual curacy, in the archdeaconry and
diocese of York, endowed with £ 200 private benefaction,
and £200 royal bounty, and in the patronage of the
Vicar of Almondbury. There are places of worship for
Independents and Weeleyan Methodists; also a Nltloml
school erected by subscription in 1816,

HOO, a parish in the hundred of Launbrrca, county

of Nonrom&, 24 miles (N.N.E.) filom Edst Dérebam,
containing 228 inhabitants. The in & perpetual
curacy, annexed to the vicarage of'] Dereham, in
the archdeaconry of Norfolk, mxhc of Narwich.
In the east window of the chy repra!enﬁtim of

the Crucifixion in stained glasii
. HOO, a parish in the huﬂ!l!l of Lons, county of
Svm:.x, 43 miles (N.W.) Fickham-Market, con-
‘ie & pérpetusl cn-
racy, in the archdeaconry of Sul’olk and diocest of
Norwich, endowed with #2080 ftivate bmefucmn,ﬁ
£800royal ‘bounty, and it the patronage of the .
of Ely. The church is defiitated’ to St. And,;w
8t. Fustachius, Bt
HOO, ofherwise'ST. WERBURGH, np.mﬂ ’
hundred - uf ‘Hoo; 1athe of AYLESFORD,
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's. hooks at £18, 6., and in the patronage of the
and Chapter of Rochester. The church is a
e stope structure, with a lofty spire, conspi-
for many miles round. The parish is bounded
om the south by the river Medway, which is here very
broad, and deep enough to float first-rate ships of war,
Abbey court, now a farm-house, was formerly a monas-
tery subordinate to Leeds abbey, Kent. This parish
possesses the right of sending threc poor persons to

ﬁ‘gi’f

HOO (ST.MARY), a parish in the hundred of Hoo,
lathe of AvLEs¥orD, county of Kent, 63 miles (N.E.
by N.) from Rochester, containing 286 inhabitants. The
living is a rectory, in the archdeaconry and diocese of
Rochester, rated in the king's books at £16. 12. 1., and
in the patronage of the Rev. R, Burt, It possesses
the right of nominating one poor person to Cobham
College.

HOOD, & township in that part of the parish of
KiLpurnN which is in the wapentake of BirprorTH,
North riding of the county of York, 44 miles (E.) from
Thirsk, containing, with Osgoodby Grange, 30 inha-
bitants.

HOOE, a parish in the hundred of NixriELD, rape

of Hastings, county of Sussex, 8 miles (8.W.) from
Battle, containing 600 inhabitants. The living is a
vicarage, in the archdeaconry of Lewes, and diocese of
Chichester, rated in the king's bovks at £7. 2. 6.  Sir
G. Webster, Bart. was patron in 1797. The church,
dedicated to St. James, is principally in the later style
of English architecture. An Alien priory of Benedic-
tine monks, belonging to the abbey of Bec, in Norman-
dy, was erected here about the commencement of the
twelfth century; it was given by Henry VL to Eton
College, and subsequently by Edward IV. to Ashford
College, in Kent.
", HOOK, a hamlet in the parish of KiNcsToN upon
Tuames, first division of the hundred of Kingsrow,
county of SURREY, 34 miles (S. by W.) from Kingston
upon Thames, containing 292 inhabitants. Here is a
National school, supported by subscription.

HOOKE, a parish in the hundred of EGGErTON,
Bridport division of the county of Dorser, 4} miles
(E. by 8.) from Beaminster, containing 234 inhabitants.
The living is a di rectory, in the archd
of Dorset, apd diocese of Bristol, rated in the king's
books at £8. 18. 18, ang in the patronage of the Dowa-

ger Countess of wich and the Marquis of Cleve-
land, The ch is dedjcated to St. Giles.
HOOKE, a in that part of the parish of

Bxarra which is mi lower division of the wapentake
of OscoLpcross, West #iding of the county of Yorxk,
24 miles (8.8.E.) from Howden, containing 363 inhabit-
apta, The living is & pTu.nl curacy, in the jurisdiction
of Snaith, endowed with £400
g of — Starkie, Esq.
There is & place
prehip for Wesleyan Methodists, Twelve children
tracted for £6 a year, the bequest of Joshua Jef-

v« JOOLE, a township in that part of the parish of
{ .H_vhichhintythelojveri_ivg;o:nft:;
B{¥.%.) from Chester, containing 237 inhabitants,
0002 logt ia hald heve sanually,
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HOOLE, a parish in the hundred of Lryranp,
county palatine of LaxcasTeR, comprising the townships
?f Much Hoole and Little Hoole, and containing 860
inhabitauts, of which number, 644 are in the township
9f Much Hoole, & miles (8. W.) from Preston, and 216
in that of Little Hocle, 7 niiles (S.W. by W.) from Pres-
ton. The living is a discharged rectory, in the archdea-
conry und diocese of Chester, rated in the king's books
at £6. 14., and in the patronage of the Rev. Miles Bar-
ton. The church is dedicated to the Holy Trinity : the
body is built of bricks, but the west end and the tower,
which latter is much admired, are of stone. Hoole was
separated from the parish of Croston, and made a dis-
tinct parish, in 1642. A school was erected in 1774,
and endowed with land purchased by subseription, pro-
ducing about £16 a year, for which all poor children of
the parish, who apply, are taught to read ; the average
number is eighty.

HOON, a township in the parigsh of Manstox upon
Dove, hundred of Arrcerrer, county of Derey,
94 miles (W.8.w.) from Derby, containing 40 inha-
bitants,

HOOSE, a township in the parish of WesT Kinsy,
lower division of the hundred of WinrALL, county pa-
latine of CuesTER, 9} miles (N.N.W.) from Great Nes-
ton, containing 114 inhabitants.

HOOTON, a township in the parish of Eastiam,
higher division of the hundred of WirraLL, county pa-
latine of CuesTER, 9 miles (N. by W.) from Chester,
containing 112 inhabitants.

HOOTON-LEVETT, a township in the parish of
Martny, southern division of the wapentake of STrAF-
rorTH and TickuinL, West riding of the county of
Yorxk, 54 miles (W.8. W.) from Tickhill, containing 95
inhabitants.

HOOTON-PAGNELL, a parish comprising the
townships of Bilham and Hooton-Pagnell in the north-
ern, and the township of Stotford in the southern, divi-
sion of the wapentake of StrarrorTh and TickHILL,
West riding of the county of York, and containing 409
inhabitants, of which number, 326 are in the township
of Hooton-Pagpell, 74 miles (N.W. by W,) from Don-
caster, The living is a discharged vicarage, in the arch-
deaconry and diocese of York, rated in the king's books
at £5, 10. 2%, endowed with £200 royal bounty, and
in the patronage of the Governors of Wakefield school.
The church is dedicated to All Saints. There is a small
endowed school.

HOOTON-ROBERTS, a parish in the southern
division of the wapentake of StrarrortH and Ticx-
BiLL, West riding of the county of Yomrk, 4} miles
(N.E,) from Rotherham, containing 190 inhabitants.
The living is a discharged rectory, in the archdeacon-
ry and diocese of York, rated in the king's booxs at
£7. 11. 8., endowed with £200 private bencfaction, and
£200 royal bounty. Earl Fitzwilliam was patron in
1796. The church, dedicated to St.John the Baptist,
is mostly in the later style of English architecture,

HOPE, a parish (formerly a market town) in the
bundred of Hige Peax, county of DERrBY, comprising
the chapelry of Fairfield, the townships of Fernilee, Grind-
low, Highlow, Hope, and Stoke, the hamlets of Abney,
Aston with Thornton, Bradwell, Brough with Shatton,
Great Hucklow, Nether Padley, Offerton, Thornhill, and
Woodland-Hope, and the liberties o:'; Hazlebadge and
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Little Hucklow, and containing, excluslvely of & portion
of the township of Wardlow, which is in this parish,
4102 inhabitants, of which number, 518 are in the
township of Hope, 6 miles (N. by E.) from Tidswell.
The living is a discharged vicarage, in the peculiar ju-
risdiction and patronage of the Dean and Chapter of
Lichfield, rated in the king's hooksz at £13. 13, 4., and
endowed with £ 10 per annum private benefaction, The
church, dedicated to St. Peter, is an embatiled edifice
in the later style of English architecture, with a tower
supporting a spire. A charity school for ten children is
endowed with about £ 10 per annum, and a house and
garden for the master, The mavket, anciently held
here, and renewed by a grant in 1715, was discontinued
about twelve years ago. There sre fairs, chiefly for cat-
tle, on March 28th, May 13th, the doy before the second
Wednerday in September, and October 11th.

HOPE, a township in the parish of BArRNINGHAM,
western division of the wapentake of Giornine, North
riding of the county of York, 5§ miles (8,W,) from
Greta-Bridge, containing 44 inhabitants,

HOPE under DINMORE, a parish in the hundrad
of Wownray, county of HErerorD, 4% miles (5. by E.)
from_ Leominster, containing 528 inhabitants. The liv-
ing is a perpetual curacy, in the archdeaconry and dio-
cese of Hereford, endowed with £400 private bencfac-
tion, and £ 1200 royal hounty, and in the patronage of
the Bishop of Hereford., The church, dedicated to St.
Mary, contains the remains of several memhers of the
Coningsby family, one of whom, Sir Thomas, founded
Coningshy's hospital, in Hereford. On the western brow
of Dinmore hill is the site of a commaundery of the
Knights of St. John of Jerusalem.

HOPE (ALL SAINTS), a parish within the liberty
of Romney-MagsH, though locally in the hundred of
Langport, lathe of SHerway, county of KenT, 1 mile
(N. W. by w.) from New Romney, containing 48 inha-
hitants. The living is a rectory, in the archdenconry
and diocese of Canterbury, rated in the king's books at
£10. 1. 04, end in the patronage of the Crown. The
chapel has heea demolished.

HOPE (SOLLERS), a parigsh in the hundred of
Grevraee, county of HErzvorp, 74 miles (N. by E.)
from Ross, containing 187 inhabitants. The living isa
discharged rectory, united to that of How-Caple, in the
archdeaconry and diocese of Hereford, rated in the
king's books at £4. 3. 4. The church is dedicated to
St. Michael.

HOPE - BAGGOT, a parish in the bundred of
StorTEspeN, county of SaLor, 6§ miles (E.by8.) from
Ludlow, containing 71 inhabitants. The living is a dis-
charged rectory, in the archdeaconry of Salop, and dio-
cese of Hereford, rated in the king's books et £3. 6. 8,
and endowed with £200 royal bounty. The Marquis of
Cleveland was patron in 1817. The church is dedicated
to St. John the Baptist, :

HOPE-BOWDLER, a parish in the hundred of
MunsLow, county of Sanop, 2 miles (E.8.E.) from
Church-Stretton, containing, with the township of Chil-
mick with Ragdon, 170 inhabitants; The lnrh.g isa
discharged rectory, in the archdeacanry of l.mi
diocess of Hereford, rated in the king's -
£86. 13. 4, C. P. Stainier, Esq. mwmn inme.
'i'&e church is dedicated to St. Andrew.

+: HOPE-MANSELL, & : parish is.the w of

412

from.

HOP

GREYTRER, county of Henzromrp, 5 miles (8.E. bp &)
from Ross, containing 146 inhabitants. The living:isa
rectory, in the archdeaconry and diocese of Hereford;
rated in the king's hooks at £86. 5., and in the pnu-ﬂ
of the Crown. The church is dedicated to St. Mi i
Limestone abounds in the parish. Courts leet are occa-
sionally held here.

HOPESAY, a parigh in the bundred of Pursrow,
county of SarLop, 6 miles (8. E.) from Bishop’s Castle,
containing 612 inhabitants. The living is & rectory, in
the archdeaconry of Salop, and diocese of Hereford,
rated in the king's books at £16. 12. 6. M. Pilkington,
Esq. was patron in 1803. The church is dedicated to
St. Mavy.

HOPLEY'S GREEN, a township in that part of the
parish of ALMELEY which is in the hundred of WorLrny,
county of Hererorp, The population is returned with
the pavish.

HOPPEN, a township in the parish and ward of
BamBrougs, county of NORTHUMBERLAND, 4} miles
(8.E. by E.) from Belford, containing 29 inhabitants.

HOPPERTON, a joint township with, and in the
parish of, ALLerToN-MAULEVERER, upper division of
the wapentake of Craro, West riding of the county of
Yorx, 54 miles (N. by E.) from Wetherby. The popu-
lation is returned with the township of Allerton-Mau-
leverer.

HOPSVFORD, a hamlet in the parish of Wrray-
BROOK, Kirhy division of the hundred of KNiGuTLOW,
county of Warwick, 74 miles (N.E. by E.) from Co-
ventry. The population is returned with the parish.

HOPTON, a townsehip in that part of the parish of
WirksworTH which is in the hundred of WinksworTa,
county of DErsy, 1§ mile (W. by 8.) {from Wirksworth,
containing 116 inhabitants, manyof whom ave employed
in working the lead mines here.  Hopton was the pro-
perty and residence of the zealous parliamentarian - offi-
cer, Sir John Gell, who, when Chaxrles I. had raised the
royal standard at Nottingham, proceeded to Derby, as-
sembled a strong body of troops for the parliament, and
performed a conspicuous part throughout the war. Alms.
houses consisting of two rooms each, for four
persons, were erected, in 1719, by Sir Philip Gell, Bart.,
and endowed hy him with a rent-charge of £92. 6,
which is paid to the inmates by weekly instalments of
two shillings each. Military wenpons and some: other
relics of antiquity have been discovered here. '

HOPTON, & joint liberty with Coton, in that part of
the parish of St. Mary, LicarieLn, which -is in the
southern division of the hundred of PrrzsiLy, county
of Srarronp, 2§ miles (N.E. by N.) from Btafferd, con+
taining 517 inhabitants, There is & lunatic asylum
within the liberty, containing upwadl of one hundred

atients.

¥ HOPTON, = parish in the hmﬁreduf Bucmm,
county of SurroLK, 7§ miles (N.8.) from Ixworth, eon-

taining 524 inhabitants. The is e disch reos
tory, in the vof | k, and -diocese  of
Norwich, mated in the king's books at £13. 6., and i
bhe[mtmwnfthem Tilechurchn med
to All Sgints.

HOPTON, swmh in the hmdred of Mmmﬁq
LoTmimgraxs; comnty. of SurroLx, 4% miles (N

containing 274 inhabtwmm ;
jo.» perpstasl curacy, in the archdeaconsy: dm;
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fnd diocese of Norwich, and in the patronage of the
Dean and Chapter of Norwich. The church is dedi-
eated to St. Mary. The parish is bounded on the east
by the North sea.

%+ . HOPTON (CASTLE), a parish in the hundred of
PursLow, county of SaLop, 9 miles (8.8.E.) from
Bishop's Castle, containing 150 inhabitants, The living
is & rectory, in the archdeaconry of Salop, and diocese
of Hereford, rated in the king's books at £5, and in the
patronage of Thomas Beale, Esq. The church is dedi-
cated to St, Mary. Hopton castle, of which there are
now but slight remains, was given by Henry IL to Wal-
ter de Clifford ; it was held for the king during the par-
liamentary war, but surrendered after a fortnight's siege,
upon which most of the royalists who formed the gar-
rison were put to the sword, and the governor was con-
veyed to Ludlow castle, and there imprisoned.

HOPTON in the HOLE, a parish in the hundred
of MunsLow, county of Savoe, 5 miles (N.E. by N.)
from Ludlow, contaming 24 inhabitants. The living is
a perpetual curacy, in the archdeaconry of Salop, and
diocese of Hereford, endowed with £115 private bene-
faction, and £ 1000 royal bounty. Sir C. N. Broughton,
Bart. was patron in 1518,

HOPTON (MONK), a parish within the liberty of
the borough of WeNLocCk, county of Savor, 44 miles
(S.) from Much Wenlock, containing 168 inhabitants,
The living is a perpetual curacy, annexed to the vicar-
age of Much Wenlock, in the archdeaconry of Salop, and
diocese of Hereford, endowed with £800 royal bounty.
Sir R. Lawley, Bart. was patron in 1620. The church
is dedicated to St. Peter.

HOPTON-WAFERS, a parish in the hundred of
StoTTESDEN, county of Saror, 2§ miles (W.N.W.) from
Cleobury-Mortimer, containing 459 inhabitants. The
living is a rectory, in the archdeaconry of Salop, and
diocese of Hereford, rated in the king's hoocks at
£5. 16. 5§. Thomas Botfield, Esq. was patron in 1520.
The church is dedicated to St. Mary. At an early pe-
riod here was a castle of great strengih, which, in

'1648, during the parliamentary war, was scized for the
king,

ngHOPWAS-HAYES, an extra-parochial liberty, lo-
cally in that part of the parish of Tamworth which is
in the southern division of the hundred of Orrrow,
county of Sra¥rorp, £ miles (W. by N.) from Tam-
worth, containing 3 inhabitants. The Birmingham and

Fageley canal passes through this liberty. Thomas

Barnes, in 1724, gave a messvage and croft for the resi-

dence of a schoolmaster, or mistress : the annual value

is £14, for which twenty children are instructed by a

istress.

JBOPWELL, a liberty in the parish of SAwLEY, hun-
dred of MorresToN and LiTcHURCH, county of Dersy,
7 mallee’(R.) from Derby, containing $4 inhahitants.

s HOPWOOD, a township in the parish of MippLE-
roN, hmndred of SaLrorp, county palatine of Lancas-
TZR; R miles (N, by E.) from Middleton, containing
1364<inhahitants,

+HORBLING, a parish in the wapentake of Avs-
LAND, parts of KesTEvEN, county of LiNcoww, 3}
wallen: (&, by ¥.) from Falkinghom, containing 491 in-
hebitants, The Hving is a discharged vicarage, in the
mehdondonry ‘and diocese of Lincoln, i

Ming's books st £4. 30.; endowed with £200 private be-
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nefaction, and £200 royal , and in the pa

of the Bishop of Lincoln, l.m';;:;y;a!:urﬂh, whicll: m
cated to St. Andrew, combines portions in the Norman,
early, decorated, and later English styles, of architecture :
the font i« richly senlptured in the decorated style.

HORBURY, a chapelry in the parish of Wake.
FIELD, _luwur division of the wapentake of AGBRIGG,
West riding of the county of York, 3 miles (S.W.
by W._)‘frum Waukeficld, containing 2475 inhabitants.
The living is a perpetual curacy, in the archdeaconry
and diocese of York, endowed with £15 per annum
and £200 private henefaction, and £400 royal bounty,
and in the patronage of the Vicas of Wakefield. The
church, dedicated to St. Peter, is a handsome edifice,
erected hy Mr. J. Carr, a respectable architect, at an ex-
pense of £8000, defrayed hy himself: one hundred and
fifty-two free sittings have recently been added, by
means of a grant of £150 from the Incorporated So-
cicty for the enlargement of churches and chapels.  The
manufacture of cloth is considerable in this chapelry.
A school for ten children has an income of £15. 15, per
annum, appropriated from the town lands: the master
has a residence rent-free, likewise a rent-charge of £,
the gift of Richard Wormuld in 1781.

HORDERLEY, an extra-parochial liberty, in the
hundred of Pursrow, county of Savor, 6 miles (E.
by 8.) from Bishop's Castle, containing about 150 inha-
bitants.

HORDLE, a parish in the bundred of Crrisr-
cuvecH, New Forest (West) division of the county of
Sournamrron, 44 miles (W.S5.W.) from Lymington,
containing 517 inhabitants, The living is a perpetual
curacy, annexed to the viearage of Milford, in the arch-
dezcoury and diocese of Winchester.  The church is
dedicated to All Spints. The parish is bounded on the
south by the Fnglish channcl.

HORDLEY, a parish in the hundred of PruyuiLe,
county of Savor, 3 miles (S.8.W.) from Ellesmere,
containing 308 inhabitants. The living is a rectory,
in the archdeaconry of Salop, and diocese of Lichficld
and Coventry, rated in the king's books at £3, 19. 2,
J. K. Powell, Esq. was puatrom in 1803, The church
is dedicated to St, Mary. The Ellesmere canal passes
through the parish.

HORFIELD, a parish in the lower division of the
bundred of BerkerLzy, county of Grouvcsster, 23
miles (N.) from Bristol, containing 198 inhabitants,
The living is a perpetunl curacy, endowed with £ 1000
private benefaction, £ 1200 royal bounty, und £600 par~
liamentary grant, and in the peculinr jurisdiction and
patronage of the Bishop of Bristul. In this parish are
stone quarries and some mineral springs.

HORHAM, = parish in the hundred of Hoxne,
county of Surrork, 44 miles (E.S8.E) from Eye. con-
taining 4¢3 iphabitauts, The living is a rectory, in
the archdeaconry of Suffolk, and diocese of Norwich,
rated in the king's books at £12.7.1. Lord Hunting-
ficld was patron in 1803, The church is dedicated to
St. Mary. There is a place of worship for Baptists,

HORKSLEY (GREAT), a parish in the Colchester
division of the hundred of Lexpen, county of Essex,
12 mile (8.8.w.) from Nayland, containing 623 inha-
bitants, The living is a rectory, in the archdeaconry
of Colchester, and diocese of London, rated in the
king's books at £15. The Countess de Grey was pa-
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troness in 1817. The church is dedicated to All Saints,
The navigable river Stour runs on the northern side of
this parish.

HORKSLEY (LITTLE), a parish in the Colchester
division of the hundred of Lexpen, county of Essex,
24 miles (5. W. by 8.) from Nayland, containing 238 in-
habitants. The living is a perpetual curacy, in the arch-
deaconry of Colchester, and diocese of London, endow-
ed With £1200 royal bounty. Mrs, Warren and E. C.
Warren, Esq. were patrons in 1825. The church is de-
dicated to St. Peter and St. Paul. Here was a priory of
Cluniac monks, subordinate to the monastery of Thetford
in Norfolk, founded in the reign of Henry L. by Robert
Fitz-Godebold, and Beatrix his wife, and valued at the
dissolution at £27. 7. 11. per annum. The navigable
river Stour runs along the northern side of this parish.

HORKSTOW, a parish in the northern division
of the wapentake of YARBOROUGH, parts of LINDsEY,
county of LincoLw, 4} miles (8.W. by W.) from Barton
upor Humber, containing 200 inhabitants. The living
is @ discharged vicarage, in the archdeaconry and dio-
cese of Lincoln, rated in the king's books at £4. 18. 4.,
and in the patronage of Lord Yarhorongh. The church
is dedicated to St. Maurice. This village is pleasantly
situated beneath a range of hills: in 1796 fragments of
three tesselated pavements werce discovered near Hork-
stow hall, the largest of which is divided into three
compartments, one of them exhibiting a curious repre-
gentation of a chariot race. Roman coins have becn
discovered here.

HORLEY, a parish in the hundred of Broxmawm,
county of Oxrorp, 3% miles (N.W.) from Banbury,
containing, with the chapelry of Hornton, 846 inha-
bitants. The living is a vicarage with that of Hornton,
in the jurisdiction of the peculiar court of Banbury,
belonging to the Dean and Chapter of Lincoln, rated in
the king’s books at £16. 13. 4., and in the patronage of
the Crown. The church is dedicated to St. Ethelreda,
Here is a place of worship for Wesleyan Methodiste.
A free scheol was endowed by Michael Harding, in the
reign of Charies I, with houses and land : the present
income is £4% per annum,

HORLEY, a parish in the first division of the hun-
dred of Re1GATE, county of SUrrEY, 5§ miles (8.8.E.)
from Reigate, containing 1063 inhabitants. The living
is a discharged vicarage, in the archdeaconry of Surrey,
and diocese of Winchester, rated in the king’s books at
#14. 1. 04, and in the patronage of the Governors of
Christ's Hospital. The church is dedicated to St. Bar-
tholomew,

HORMEAD (GREAT), a parish in the hundred of
EpwinsTREE, county of HERTFORD, 24 miles (E.) from
Buntingford, containing 564 inhabitants, The living is
-a discharged vicarage, in the archdeaconry of Middlesex,
and diocese of London, rated in the king's books at
£6. 3. 9., endowed with £200 royal bounty, and in
the patronage of the Master and Fellows of St. John's
College, Cambridge. The church is dedicated to St.
Nicholas. :

- HORMEAD (LITTLE), .2 parish in the bundred of
EpwineTrEE, county of Hentrorn, 24 miles (B by 8.)
from Buntingford, containing 112 inhabitants, -The
*living is o rectory, in the jurisdiction .of the Commis-
asiry of Hasvsex and Herts,: with the Con-
-aistavial .Court of the Bishop of, ated in. the
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king's books at £10, and in the patronage of thé
Master and Fellows of St. John's cfﬁgge, m
The church is dedicated to St. Mary. . B

HORN, & parish ir the hundred of Arsrox, county
of Rurranp, 6 miles (N.W. by W.) from Stamford;
containing 10 inhabitants. The living is a rectary,
united to the vicarage of Exton, in the archdeaconry
of Northampton, and diocese of Peterborough, rated in
the king's books at £1. 6, B. Sir Gerard Nuel, Bart.
was patron in 1825. The church, which was dedicated
to All Saints, is supposed to have been destroyed by
Oliver Cromwell : the inhabitants resort to the church
at Exton.

HORNBLOTTON, a parish in the hundred of
WuitestoNE, county of Somerser, 4% miles (N. W,
by W.) from Castle-Cary, containing 111 inhabitants.
The living is a rectory, in the archdeaconry of Wells,
and diocese of Bath and Wells, rated in the king's
books at £7. 2. 1. John Roberts, Esq. was patron in
1825, The church is dedicated to St, Peter, The old
Roman Fosse-way skirts the north-west boundary of
this parish.

HORNBY, a chapelry (formerly & market town)
in the parish of MrrLLinG, hundred of LoNspaLg, south
of the sands, county palatine of LANCASTER, 9% miles
(N.E) from Luancaster, containing 477 inlabitants.
The living is a perpetual curacy, in the archdeaconry
of Richmond, and diocese of Chester, endowed with
£7 per annum and £400 private benefaction, &£800
royal bounty, aud £800 parliamentary grant, and in
the patronage of the Heirs of John Marsden, Esq.
The chapel, dedicated to St. Margaret, has a window
with a fine puinting representing the Ascension of Our
Saviour. Hornby castle, originally founded soon after the
Norman Conquest, was subsequently the baronial resi-
dence of the Stanleys, Lords Monteagle, and is now fitted
up as a modern mansion, In thie chapelry arealso the
ruins of a fortress ascribed to the Saxons. The ancient
weekly market on Friday is disused; but s market
for cattle, held every Tuesday fortnight, is well fre-
quented; and there is likewise an annual cattle fair on
the 30th of July. A charity school was established here
in consequence of a bequest of £ 20 per annum by David
Murray, in 1822 ; but the property devised having been
since claimed by the heir of the testator, the school has
been discontinued. There are some remains of a priory,
dedicated to St. Wilfrid, which was & cell to the Pre-
monstratensian abbey of Croxton, and the revemue of
which, at the dissolution, was valued at £26.

HORNBY, a township in that part of the parish of
GrEAT SMEETON which is in the. take of ALLER-
ToNsHIRE, North riding of the cowmty of York, 7§
miles (N.) from North Alerton, containing 238 inha.
bitants. There is & place of worship for Wesleyan
Methodists, g - o nuaed

division of the
wapentake of Hane, Morth'fiding of the county @
with Holthy, -
.exclusively of portions of the .townships
thorne and Hunton, which are in this parish, 315 i
bitants, of whiahnmubur, 102
Horuby, which is partly within
of Yors, 4miles (8.8. W.) t
isa-discharged vicarage, in the peculiar j
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mthsm:ndﬂhnpmonm,ntedinthe
'8 at €6. 15. 8. The church is dedicated
to St. Mary. ' There is a small endowment for the in-
struction of children. In Hackforth is a school for
‘twenty poor boys, to which the Duke of Leeds allows
£20 per annum, as a salary for the master. Hornby
castle, anciently the seat of the family of St. Quintin,
and now belonging to his Grace the Duke of Leeds, is
a spacious mansion in different styles of architecture,
containing superb apartments, and, by its situation,
commanding a fine view of the rich valley of Bedale.
HORNCASTLE, a market town and parish in the
soke of HouNcasTLE, parts of Linpsey, county of
Linconn, 21 miles (E.) from Lincoln, and 134 (N.)
from London, containing 3058 inhabitants, From its
gituation, and the circumstance of a very extensive
castle having been erected here (a portion of the
remaing of which is still visible,) this place has, with
great probability, been considered the Bannovellum of
the Romans, mentioned by the geographer of Ravenna.
Its present name is evidently a corruption of Hyrn-
castre, as it was denominated by the Saxons, from hyrn,
an angle, or corner (the town being situated within an
angle formed by the confluence of the rivers Bane and
‘Waring), and castrum, a fort, or castle. The vallum,
or fortification constructed by the Romans having been
considerably strengthened by Horsa, roon after the
arrival of the two Saxon brothers, was afterwards
demolished by Vortimer, the brave king of the Britons,
and the castle was taken and destroyed, after a victory
obtained by one of his generals over the Saxon
prince, at the ncighbouring village of Tetford, At
the period of the Norman survey, the manor and soke
(the latter comprising, besides the town, the parishes of
West Ashby, Coningsby, Haltham, Langrick Ville, Mare-
ham le Fen, Mareham on the Hill, Moorby, Roughton,
Thimbleby, Thornton le Fen, High Toynton, Low Toyn-
ton, Wilksby, and Wood-Enderby,) belunged to the king,
previously to which they had formed part of the
possessions of Editha, Queen of Edward the Confessor,
It does not appear at what time the manor first came
into private hands, but, after varicus grants and
reversions, it was sold, in the reign of Henry IIL, to
Walter Mauclerke, Bishop of Carlisle; to whom that
monarch granted three charters, conferring various im.
munities on the inhabitants of the town and soke,
whereby Horncastle, from an insignificant village, became
the general mart for the surrounding district : with the
exception of a short interval during the reign of Ed-
ward VI, it has contimued to belong to that see ever
since. :
The town, whick is neat and well built, occupies
& low but pleasant sitnation at the foot of the Wolds.
®rom a plan made by Dr. Stukeley, in 1722, it ap-
pears to have been scarcely half so laige as it ic at
X + and the houses, then bailt with clay-walls, and
with thatch, have been succeeded by respectable
10X edifices : the generel ce of the neighbour-
‘hes aled been fmproved by the enclosure
‘Sl lastdy, under the authority of an act obtained in 1808.
[Here is's i library, formed in 1790, and con-
Muining #bout one thoussnd volumes; and the clerical
Tbrary, !il - High.street, comprises some respectable
wd' works,  Formerly, many of the inhabitants

ere'etiployed i tanning leather, but about fifty years
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ago this branch of trade here experienced a rapid de-
f:lme, 80 that there are now but two tan-yards remain-
ing. The prosperity of the town has been in a great
degree advanced by an act obtained in 1792, under the
powers of which a canal was constructed, communica-
ting with the river Bune, which was thus made navigable
to the Witham ; and by this means a junction has been
formed with the Trent and its numerous ramifications,
Since the completion of this undertaking, in 1501, ton-
giderable commerce has been carried on in corn and
woal, about thirty thousand quarters of the former, and
three thousand packs of the latter, having been an-
nually sent from this place to different parts of England.
The market is on Saturday ; and the fairs are, one con-
cluding on the 22nd of June, which is chartered for
eight days, but seldom Jasts more than three : the second
terminates on the 21st of August, after having con-
tinued about ten days, although the charter limite its
duration to seven: it iy the lurgest fair for horses in
the kingdom, many thousands being exhibited for sale
during its continuance, and it is resorted to by deslers
from all parts of the country, from the continent, and
from America, The third fair, held on the 28th and
29th of October, was removed hither from Market-
Stainton, in 1768, for a consideration of £200 paid to
the lord of that manor. In the 47th of George 111, an
act was passed for establishing a court of requests for
the recovery of debts under five pounds, which is held
here every fourth Thursday, its jurisdiction extending
over *“the sokes of Bolingbroke and Horncastle, and
the wapentake of Candleshoe, (except the parishes of
Hagnaby, Welton in the Marsh, Steeping-Magna, and
Firsby,) in the county of Lincoln, and for the wapen-
takes of Gartree, Louth-Eske, Ludborough, Calceworth,
Hill, and Walshceroft, the north and south divisions of
the wapentake of Yurborough, such parts of the wap-
entake of Manley as lie cast of the river Trent, and
the parishes of Faldingworth, Buslingthorpe, Snarford,
Friesthorpe, and Hanworth.,” The charter granted by
Henry IIL to the bishop, as lord of the manor, gave
authority to try fclons and to hold a court leet, and ex-
empted the inhabitants from toll and several other pay-
ments and gervices, besides protecting them from arrest
by the officers of the king or the sheriff.  On the cast-
ern boundary of the parish is a spot called Hangman's
Corner, where criminals capitally convicted in the court
of the manor were exeented : but these manorial rights
and privileges, except the court lect, have been long dis-

The living is a vicarage, in the archdeaconry and dio-
cese of Lincoln, rated in the king's booksat £14. 4. 2.,
and in the patronage of the Bishop of Carlisle. The
church, dedicated to St. Mary, appeurs, from the few re-
maining portions of the original edifice, to have been
erected ubout the time of Henry VIL : it comprises a
north and a south aisle, continued on each side of the
chancel : the aisle north of the chancel was rebuilt in
1620, and part of the aisle south of the nave, in 1821 :
the interior is exceedingly neat, and there are eeveral
interesting monuments to different members of the
family of Dymoke, of Scrivelsby, holding the office of
hereditary champion of England., Baptists, Indepen-
dents, and Primitive and Wesleyan Methodists, have each
s place of worship. The free mar school was
founded by Edward, Lord Clinton and Saye, Lord High
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Admiral of England, by virtue of letters patent granted
in 1562 : its endowment consists of houses and land at
Horncastle, Hemingby, Sutton, Huttoft, and Winthorpe,
the average rental of which is about £200 per annum ;
£80 per annum is paid to a master and £30 to an
usher; in addition to this, each boy pays two guineas
a yeur for instructiun in writing and arithmetic. The
management of the affairs of this school is entrusted to
ten individuals, who aré a body corporate, posscssing &
common seal. They are also trustees of another charity
school, founded by Mr. Richard Watson, in 1784, wherein
poor children are instructed to read, sew, and knit, by
a teacher whose stipend is £17 per annum, with a re-
sidence rent-free. A National school for boys and girls,
and a school on the Lancasterian plan, are supported by
subscription, and afford the means of education to about
four hundred children. A general dispensary was opened
in 1789. The poor in general derive considerable as-
sistance from numerous benefactions recorded on a
mural tablet in the church, The remains of the an-
cient fortress of Horncastle merely serve to exhibit its
form and magnitude : it appears to have enclosed an
area of about six hundred feet in Jength, and in breadth
three hundred and fifty on the east, and three hundred
on the west. A little south-westward from the town,
near the union of the rivers, was one of those Roman
labyrinths called the Julian bower. Many urns, cuins,
Sibule, and other vestiges of that people, have been dis-
covered at different periods.

HORNCHURCH, a parish within the liberty of
Havering atte Bower, county of Essex, 144 miles
(E. N.E.) from London, containing 1938 inhabitante.
The living is & vicarage not in charge, in the jurisdic-
tion of the peculiar court of Hornchurch and Havering
atte Bower, and in the patronage of the Warden and
Feilows of New College, Oxford, The church is dedi-
cated to St. Andrew. Here is a small endowment for
the instruction of children. An iron-foundry has heen
rec _1}' established ; and a considerable quantity of
britks is made here. A priory, dedicated to St. Nicholas
and St. Bernard, a cell to the bospital of Monte Jovis
in Savoy, was founded here about the reign of Henry 11,
aud was purchased in that of Richard I1., by William
of Wickham, for his foundation of New College, Oxford.
This parish extends from the great London road between
Romford and Brentwood on the north, to the Thames
on the south.

HORNCLIFFE, a township in the parishof Noruawm,
otherwise Norhamshire, county palatine of Durmam,
though locally to the northward of the county of North-
umberland, 5 miles (W.S.W.) from Berwick upon Tweed,
containing 351 inhabitants, From Horncliffe hall is a
fine prospect of the extensive plain of Merse, and the
luxuriant banks of the Tweed.

HORNDON (EAST), & parish in the hundred of
BarsTaBLE, county of Essrx, 4 miles (8. E) from
Brentwood, containing 459 inhabitants. The living is
a rectory, in the arch of Essex, and diocese of
London, rated in the king's booksat £10, Earl Brown-

low and others were patrons in 1795. The church,
dedicated to All Saints, is & emall ar structure,
with several chapels, which contain ons in different

styles of architecture: the font is in the Normsn style.
“HORNDON on the HILL, & parish in the hundred

of BaRT4BLE, county of Easxx, 10§ miles (8. by, ¥.)
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from Chelmsford, containing 420 inbabitants.  The
living is a discharged vicarage, in the archdeaconry of
Essex, and diocese of London, rated in the king's booke
at £14. 6. 8., endowed with £225 private benefaction,
and £200 royal bounty, and in the patronage of the Dean’
and Chapter of St. Paul's, London. The church is de-
dicated to St. Peter. Here was formerly a market on
Saturday. A fair for wool is held on the 29th of June.

HORNDON (WEST), a parish in the hundred of
BarsrARLE, county of Essex, 5§ miles (8. 8. E.) from
Brentwood, containing 45 inhabitants. The living is o
rectory, united to that of Ingrave, in the archdeaconry
of Essex, and diocese of London, rated in the king's
books at £14, 13, 4. Thomas Newman, Esq. was pa-
tron in 1797. The church is dedicated to St. Nicholas.

HORNE, a parish in the first division of the hun-
dred of TAnDrRIDGE, county of Surrey, 6§ miles
(8. 8. w.) from Godstone, containing 555 ‘inhabitants.
The living is a rectory, in the archdeaconry of Surrey,
and diocese of Winchester, rated in the king's books
at £4. 17. 11. Thomas Poynder, Esq. was 'patron in
1818. The church is dedicated to St. Mary. This
parish participates in the benefits of Evelyn's school at
Godstone.

HORNING, u parish in the hundred of TunsTEAD,
county of NorruLk, 6 miles (N. N. W.) from Acle, con-
tajining 440 inhabitants. The living is a discharged
vicarage, in the archdeaconry of Norfolk, and diocese
of Norwich, endowed with £800 royal bounty, and in
the patronage of the Bishop of Norwich. In the
reign of Henry III, here was an hospital, dedicated to
St. James, and under the government of the almoner
of St. Benedict's abhey ; it was given to the Bishop of
Norwich, The mitred abbey of $t. Benedict was only
a hermitage in the year 800, and was raised into a
monastery of Black monks before 1020, by Canute : the
barony and reversion were given in exchange to the
Bishop of Norwich, in 1535 ; its revenue was valued
at £583. 17.

HORNINGHOLD, a parish in the hundred of
GArTREE, county of Leicksrer, 4% miles (W.8 W.)
from Uppingham, containing 97 inhabitants, The Bving
is a discharged vicarage, in the archdeaconry of Lei-
cester, and diocese of Lincoln, rated in the king's books
at £6. 16. 8., and endowed with £400 royal bounty.
Mrs. Hollsnd was patroness in 1813. The church, de-
dicated to St. Peter, i ancient and curious, exhibiting
specimens of pure Saxon architecture. There is & chapel
of ease at Blaston, in this parish. - S

HORNINGLOW, a township in that part of the
parish of Burton upon Trent which i in the northern
division of the hundred of OrsLow, conntyof STarrorp,
14 mile (N. W. by N.) from Buarton upon Trent, con-
taining 341 inhabitants. The Grand Trunk canal passes
through this township. A ;

HORNINGSEA, a parish in the hundred of Frzs-
prsH, county of Camsminow, 4% miles (N.E) from
Cambridge, containing 465 ingpbitants. The living is
a perpetunl curmcy, in the péculiar furisdiction -of the
Bishop of Ely, and inthe patronage of the Maqtet and
Fellows of St,John's College, Cambridge. The . chuxeh,
is dedicated to S¢.Peter. At an early period bereé won;
a comsidersl hhhym{th of ro Yﬂs‘fmﬂmmi bk A

HORNINGSHAM, & parish in the hungdiad of 3
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TedaURY, county of Wiurs, 4% miles (8. W.) from
Warminster, containing 1267 inhabitants. The living
is a perpetual curacy, endowed with £400 private bene-
faction, £200 royal hounty, and £2400 parliamentary
grant, in the peculiar jurisdiction of the Dean of Salis-
bury, as Dean of the church of Heytesbury, and in the
patronage of the Prebendery of Horningsham in the
collegiate church of Hevteshury. The church is dedi-
cated to St. John the Buptist. There is a place of wor-
ship for Independents.

HORNINGSHEATH, a parish comprising the con-
solidated parishes of Great and Little Horningsheath,
in the hundred of TrRINGOE, county of SUFFOLK, 2 miles
(8. W. by W.) from Bury-St. Edmund's, and containing
539 inhabitants, The living is a rectory, in the archdea-
conry of Sudbury, and dincese of Norwich, rated jointly
in the king's books at £13. 13. 9., and in the patronage
of the Marquis of Bristol. The church is dedicated to
St. Leonard, and although much modernised, retains
portions in the decorated and later styles of English
architecture : that of Little Horningsheath has gone to
ruing. Fifty children are educated in an endowed school,
which is supported chicfly by u rent-charge on lands in
Denston : the school-house was built by the Marquis of
Bristol.

- HORNINGTOFT, a parish in the hundred of Laow-
#prrcH, county of Norronk, 5 miles (8. by E) from
akenham, containing 254 inhabitants. The living is
@ discharged rectory, in the archdeaconry and diocese
of Norwich, rated in the king's books at £6, 17. 84
F. R. Reynolds, Esq. was patron in 1826. The church
is dedicated to St. Edmund.
: HORNSEA, a market town and parish, in the
rthern division of the wapentake of Howbprrness,
Bost riding of the county of Yonx, 42 miles (E. hy 8.)
from York, and 190 (N.) from London. containing,
Awith the hamlet of Burton, 790 inhahitants. This
jplace, which is situated within less than a mile of the
Germun ocean, was formerly more than ten miles dis-
tant from it, but by the encroachment of the waters,
which is still in regular progression, the village of
Hornsea Beck was not many years since totally de-
sstroyed. The town consists of four irregular strects,
jand conteins some good inns, and respectable lodg-
ing-houses for the accommodation of visitors who
ifrequent this place for sea-hathing during the sea-
gon. There is a fine chalybeate spring in the town:
the environs are pleasant, ahounding with picturesque
scenery. On the western side i a beautiful and ex-
ensive luke, covering ncarly five hundred acres, con-
aiding fresh-water fish of every description, and heau-
fifully interspersed with wooded islands, the resort of
umerous aquatic hirds; the banks are in many places
antoed with alders, and form a delightful promenade:
paces are held here annually, between the 17th and
pdth of July. The market is on Monday, but it is
Fapidly falling into éisusc: the fairs are, August 13th
o' Deeomiber 18th, for hogees and cattle. The living is
vicaragawrith the rectory of Long Reston, in the arch-
eatony “the Fast riding, and diocese, of York, rated
he'king's books at £18. 3. 4., and in the patronage
the Uvow;: The church, dedicated to St. Nicholas,
Ipacions strwbture in the decorated style of English
tecture, with insértions of a later date; the ‘spirve,
R e jivox lend-guerk, was blown down
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more than a century since. There are places of worship
for Independents and Wesleyan Methodists.

HORNSKEY, a parish in the Fingbury division of the
hundrr;d of OssgLsTONTE, county of MinoLesex, 55 miles
(N. by'W.) from Londos. comprising the greater part of
the village of Highgate, and the hamlets of Crouch-End,
Muswell 1ill, and Stroud Green, and containing 4122
inhabitants. The manor of Hornsey, anciently called
Haringay, has from a remote period belonged to the sec
of London, and the bishops had formerly a park, in
which was a Jodge, or fort, memorable as the place
where, in 1386, Thomas of Woodstock, Duke of Glou-
cester, and other noblemen, assembled to form a league
against the fuvourites of Richard 11, ; and here Edward V.,
and Henry V1L, on their succeeding to the crown, re-
spectively, were met by deputations from the citizens of
London. The village is agreeubly situated in a vale,
through which passes the New River, and is encircled
by hills commanding varied and beautiful views ot
London and the adjoining country : it contains many
clegant mansions and detached villas, with gardens anid
pleasure grounds, rendering it one of the most agreeable
places of residence, or occasional resort, in the vicinity
of the metropolis. Lands held under the lord of the
manor descend, according to the custom of gavelkind
in common to all the sons or daughters of a customary
tenant. The parish is within the jorisdiction of the
court of requests held in Kingsgate-street, Holborn,
for the recovery of debts under 40s.  The living is a
rectory, within the jurisdiction of the Commissary of
London, concurrently with the Consistorial Episcopal
Court, rated in the king's books at £22, and in the pa-
tronage of the Bishop of London. The church, dedi-
cated to St. Mary, is a plain structure, with an embat-
tled western tower, and is said to have been built about
the year 1500, from the ruins of the fortress in the
hishop's park. A new church is about to be erected, in
pursuuuce of an act of parliament, at Highgate, which
will be sepurated from Hornsey, and converted into a
district parish. At Crouch-End there is a place of wor-
ship for Baptists. Here is a National school for about
fifty hoys, who also receive clothing; ana another for
fifty girls. Several benefactions have becen made for
apprenticing poor boys, and for other charitable pur-
poses, At Muswell Hill, to the north of Hornsey, was
anciently a chapel, dedicated to Our Lady of Muswell,
much resorted to by pilgrims before the Reformation,
on account of a mineral spring called Mouscwell, or
Muswell, famed for the supposed miraculous cure of a
king of Scotland, and still iu repute for its medicinal
properties : the chapel was an appendage to the priory
of Clerkenwell ; and the manor of Muswell, though
locully in the parish of Hornsey, is subordinate to
that of Clerkenwell.

HORNKTON, a parish in the hundred of Broxmam,
county of Oxrorp, 64 miles (N. W.by W.) from Ban.
bury, containing 529 inhabitants, The church is dedi-
cated to St. John the Baptist. The living is a vicarage
not in charge, with that of Horley, in the jurisdiction of
the Dean and Chapter of Lincoln in the peculiar court
of Banbury. Here is 2 school wherein about thirty
children are educated : the master's stipend arises fron
a rent-charge on land given by Joha Fox, amounting
to £12, 12. per annum.

" HQRSEHEATH, a parish in the hundred of Cric.
' 3 H
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FORD, county of CaMarinGE, 3} miles (B.-by N.) from
Linton, contmnmg 413 inhabitants. Tht living is a
rectory, in the archdeaconry and diocese of Ely, rated
in the king's books at £13. 6. 8,, and in the patronage
of the Governors of the Charte.r—hausc, London. The
church is dedicated to All Saints.

HORSEHOQUSE, a chapelry in the parish of Cover-
nHam, western division of the wapentake of Haneg,
North riding of the county of York, 7 miles (8. W.)
from Middlcham. The population is returned with the
parish, The living is a perpetual curacy, in the arch-
deaconry of Richmond, and diocese of Chester, en-
dowed with £200 private benefaction, and £800 royal
bounty. The Rev. S. Hardcastle was patron in 1809.

HORSELEY, a township in the parish of Eccrrs-
HALL, northern division of the hundred of Prresiny,
county of Starrorp, 24 miles (5. W.) from Eeccleshall,
cantaining 487 inhabitants.

HORSELL, a parish in the first division of the hun-
dred of GopLey, countyof Surrey, 44 miles (N.W.hy w.)
from Ripley, containing 617 inbabitants. The living
is a perpetual curacy, in the archdeacoury of Sarrey,
and diocese of Winchester, endowed with £400 royal
bounty, and £ 1400 parliamentary grant, and in the
patronage of certain Trustees. The church is dedi.
cated to St. Mary.

HORSEMONDEN, a parish in the hundred of
Brencorry and Horsemonbpen, lathe of AyLEsrorbD,
county of Kent, 24 miles (N. E. by N.) from Lamber-
hurst, containing 1224 inhabitants. The living is a
rectory, in the archdeaconry and diocese of Rochester,
rated in the king's books at £26. 3, 9. Sir J. W.

‘Smith, Bart.,, W. A. Morland, and J. P. Ince, Esqrs.,
were patrons in 1825. The church, situated at the
extremity of the parish, is dedicated to Sti. Murgaret,
A school for the instruction of poor children in read-
ing and writing was endowed, in 1792, by means of
a bequest of £1000 from Sir Charles Booth, vested
in trustees, and now producing £44. 15. 6. per anuum :
an uadditional benefaction of £200 was made by Dr,
Marriott, the late rector, which produces £8, 11, 4. per
anpum, meking a total of £53. 6. 10.: a school on
Dr. Bell's system affords the means of instruction to
about fifty boys and forty girls. A fair for cattle and
toys is held on the 26th of July. This parish is bound-
ed on the east by the river Tair.

HORSENDON, a parish in the hundred of AyLes-
sury, county of Buckingmam, 7 miles (W. by N.)
from Great Missenden, containing 50 inhabitants. The
living is a discharged rectory, in the archdeacoury of
Buckingham, and diocese of Lincoln, rated in the king's
books at £6.17. — Grubb, Esq. was patron in 1811,
The church is dedicated to St. Michacl. During the
parliamentary war the manor-house, then the property
of Sir John Denbam, was occupied by a garrison for
the king.

HORSEPATH, a parish in the hundred of Burring-
TON, county of OXFoRD, 4 miles (E. by 8.) from Oxford,
containing 264 inhabitants. The llving is & perpe‘bual
curacy, in the archdeaconry and diocese of Oxford, en-
dowed with £400 private benefaction, and £400
mtzi ?\Ed in the patronage of the Pﬁ:@‘ and F;i:

agdalene Uxfi charch is
dicated to St. Giles, Calege: D
HORSEPOOL, a township in the phﬂlih of TaoRN-
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Tox, hundred of SearkENHOE, county of LEicEeTeR,
Timllee (N.W. by W.) from Leicester. The populatioit
is returned with the chapelry of Stanton nnder Bardon,

HORSEY next the SEA, a parish in the hundred
of Harring, county of NorroLk, 84 miles (N.N.W.)
from Caistor, containing 95 inhabitants. The living is
a discharged vicarage, in the archdeaconry of Norfolk,
and dincese of Norwich, rated in the king's books at
£3. 1. 5., endowed with £500 royal bounty, and in the
patronage of the Governors of North Walsham school.
The church, now in ruins, was dedicated to All Saints.
This parish principally consists of low marshes and
bogs : it is nearly insulated by the sea on the east ; the
Hundred stream, or river, which separates Happing from
East Flegg, on the south ; and Eelfleet dyke and Horsey
mere on the west and north,

HORSFORD, & parish in the hundred of Taver-
HAM, county of NorrorLk, 5 miles (N. N. W.) from
Nurwu.h (.nutmnmq 51¢ inhabitants, The living is a
discharged vicarage, in the archdeaconry and diocese of
Norwich, rated in the king's books at £4. 5. 2%., en-
dowed with £200 royal bounty. Viscount Ranelagh
was patron in 1812, The church is dedicated to All
Saints.

HORSFORTH, a chapelry in the parish of GuisLey,
upper division of the wapentake of Skyrack, West
riding of the county of Yorx, 54 miles (N. W, by w,)
from Leeds, containing 2824 inhabitants. The living is
a perpetual curacy, in the archdeaconry and diocese of
York, endowed with £200 private benefaction, £600
royal bhounty, and £1400 parliamentary grant, and in
the patronage of the Vicar of Guisley. A chapel was
erected on the site of the ancient structure, in 1758,
chiefly by the Stanhope family. There are places of
worship for Baptists and Wesleyan Methodists, In
1819 a bridge was built over the Aire, at an expense of
£1500, by John Pollurd, Esq. Special sessions are held
here once a fortnight. The manufacture of cloth is car-
ried on to a considerable extent in this chapelry, and
there are some bleaching-mills,

HORSHAM, a borough, _
market town, and parish, in f<¥
the hundred of FIsHERGATE, (34 2
rape of BraMBER, county¥\¥
of Sussex, 20 miles (N.E.) J3
from Chichester, and S854%°
(8.8.W.) from London, con-
taining 4575 inhabitants,
This place is supposed to \l
have derived its name from MR
Horsa, the brother of Hen-
gist, who is said to have been

il d Arms,
interred in the immediate vicinity, after the battle with
Vortimer, near Aylesford, in 457, in which he was slain,

The town is pleasantly & on & branch of the
river Adur, and in the dentre of u fertile district sur-
rounded byvm-iedmdhm«ﬁngscmery it consists
incipally of eme ‘wiweet, from which others
ranch off in verigds ditectiong: the houses ave in g
nerﬂwnbuﬂtmﬂﬂMhthab;m Teading wg
church dre wlym rows of trees:
mwniqwoﬁwﬁwmhsmeioundmthewgw
myply supplied with water. A mechanies’
Han mﬂyembluhed,nmo)gw
mmamhed and in which lectures on tmeckis-




HOR'

nies -and scientific: subjects are. periodically delivered.
The approaches to the town are formed by excellent
turnpike roads from London, Worthing, Brighton,
Guildford, Arundel, and Chichester, and its situstion as
a thoroughfare is the principal source from which its
trade urisee, A great quantity of poultry is reared
in the neighbourhood, for the supply of the London
market. There are quarries of excellent stone in the
vicinity, which is used for paving, flooring, and roofing.
The market days are Monday for poultry, and Saturday
chiefly for corn: the fairs, principally for sheep and
lambs, are April 5th and July 18th, and for horses and
cattle on the Monday hefore Whitsuntide and Novem-
ber 27th ; on the Saturday after the July fair is a fair
for pedlary and toys, and on November 17th is a large
fair for Welch cattle, called St. Leonard's fair, from
its having been formerly beld in an adjoining forest
of that name. The town is governed by a steward
and two bailiffs, chosen annually at the court leet of
the lord of the manor, at which constables and other
officers are also appointed. The Lent assizes for the
county, and the Midsummer quarter sessions for the
division, are held here. The town-hall and sessions-
house is a handsome building with a stone front; it has
been recently enlarged by the Duke of Norfolk, for the
accommodation of the judges of assize. The county
gaol, a spacious and commodious building ncar the
south-eastern extremity of the town, is adapted to the
claseification of prisoners, and comprises fifty-six wards,
seven day-rooms, and four airing-yards. Horsham is
a8 borough by prescription, and has returned two mem-
hers to parliament since the 23rd of Edward I.: the
right of election is vested in the burgage-holders, of
whom there are twenty-four, in the interest of the Duke
of Norfolk : the hailiffgare the returning officers.

The living is a vicarage, in the archdeaconry and
diocese of Chichester, rated in the king's books at
£25, and in the patronage of the Archbishop of Cun-
terbury. The church, dedicated to St. Mary, is a spa-
cious and venerable structure in the early style of Eng-
lish architecture, with a lofty tower surmounted by a
spire : the east window of the chaneel is of beautiful
design, and the interior, which prescrves its original
character nearly throughout, coutains scveral ancient
and interceting monuments. There arc places of wor-
ship for Baptists, the Society of Friends, Independents,
and Wesleyan Methodists, and a Roman Catholic cha-
pel. The free school was founded in 1532, by Richard
Collier, citizen and mercer of London, who endowed it
with houses and tencments producing more than £500
per annum, for the instruction of sixty boys of this
parish in reading, writing, and asrithmetic, of whom
some of the upper cless are taught Latin : the master
has @ sulary of £110, and the usher one of £73. 6. 8,
per anpurg : the school is under the direction of the
Master and Wardens of the Mercers’ Company, and the
bays are nominated by the vicar and the churchwar-
dens, sl by two !M wardens annually elected by
ﬂlc Mhimﬂ premises comprise a good school-

ﬂ’wemng houses with gardens for the mas-

schools, in which two hundred boys

ﬂd m hmdmd sn'ls are instructed, and an infant
school, &re suppapted by subscription ; and there are
Fuﬂ MM ‘hquuts for distribution among
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HORSHAM (ST. FAITH), a parish in the hundred of
Taveruam, county of NorroLk, 4§ miles (N.by w.) from
Norwich, containing 785 inhabitants. Thelivingis & vicar-
age, in the archdeaconry and diocese of Norwich, endowed
with £400 royal bounty, and £ 1200 parhamentary grant,
Viscount Ranclagh was putron in 1812. A priory of
Black monks, dedicated to St. Faith, was founded here
in 1105, by Robert Fitzw calter and Sibell de Cayneto, his
wife; it was ut first a cell to the abhey de Cenchis, in
Normandy : at the dissolution its revenue was esti-
mated at £193. 2. 3.  Attached to this institution was
an hospital, formerly belonging to the Knights of St.
John of Jerusalem.

HORSINGTON, a parish in the southern division of
the wapeutake of GARTREE, parts of Linpsey, county of
LincowLn, 43 miles (W.) from Horncastle, containing
322 mhablta.nts The living is e discharged rectory, in
the archdcaconry and diocese of Linmln, rated in the
king's books at £9. 11. 8., ecndowed with £200 private
benefaction, and £200 royal bounty, and in the patron-
age of the President and Fellows of Magdalene College,
Oxford. The church is dedicated to All Saints,

HORSINGTON, a parish in the hundred of Hore-
THORNE, county of SoMERSET, 4 miles (8. by W.) from
Wincanton, containing 925 inhabitants. The living is
& rectory, in the archdeaconry of Wells, and diocese of
Bath and Wells, rated in the king's books at £18. 6. 04,
G. Whitchurch, Esq. and others were patrons in 1795,
The church ig dedicated to St. John the Baptist: two
hundred free sittings have recently been added, towards
defraying the cxpense of which the Imeorporated So-
ciety for the enlargement of churches and chapels con-
tributed £150. There is a place of worship for Bap-
tists. Martha Wickham bequeathed an aunuity of £5
for the education of twelve poor children.

HORSLEY, a parish in the hundred of MorLesTON
and Litcuurch, county of Drrmy, comprising the
townships of Horsley, Horsley-Woodhouse, and Kil-
bourne, and containing 1714 inhabitants, of which
number, 624 are in the township of Horsley, 6% miles
(N.N.E.) from Derby. The living is a discharged
vicarage, in the archdeaconry of Derby, and diocese of
Lichficld end Coventry, rated in the king's books at

7. 5. 5., endowed with £200 royal bounty, and £800
parliamentary grant, and in the patronage of the Earl
of Chesterficld. The church, dedicated to St. Clement,
is spacious and handsome, and is surmounted by a
spire of curious wurkmanship : over the south door is
a very antique crucifix in a perfect state. Six boys of
the township of Horsley are eligible as scholars and
pensioners to Richurdson's school at Smelley. A Na-
tional school was erccted in 1828, and is supported by
voluntary contributions, At Denby, in this parish, is a
school founded and endowed, about the year 1739, by
Mrs, Jane Massey, with land now producing £30 per
annum. The Little Eaton railway passes through this
parish, On the summit of a hill, about a mile from the
church, are the ruins of the ancient baronial castle of
Horestan, or Horston, said to have been built in the
twelfth century. In the time of Elizabeth this edifice
was in the possession of the Stanhope fnmily and was
then in “ neatly good repair.’

HORSLEY, a parish in the humdred of LoneTaEE,
county of vacnﬂn, 3 miles (8.W.byw.) from
Minchin-Hampton, containing, wlﬁs; .I:l small partion of
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chapelry of Nailsworth, 3565 inhabitants, The
iving is & discharged vicarage, in the archdeaconry
nd diocese of Gloucester, rated in the king's books at
E7. 11. 5%, endowed with £200 private benefaction,
nd £600 royal bounty, and in the patronage of the
3ishop of Gloucester. The church is dedicated to St.
Martin. There are places of worship for Baptists and
Nesleyan Methodists. Xdward Webb, in 1744, guve
£200 in trust for endowing a school, to which, in 1775,
Elizabeth Castleman added £30, and Ann Wright £100:
he present income is £60 per annum ; and one hun-
Ired children are instructed on Dr. Bell's plan: the
wchool-room was erected, in 1823, at an expense of
£230, defrayed by subscription, aided by contributions
rom the National School Society in London, and from
‘he Diocesan Society in Gloucester. Here is a house of
:orrection, containing a tread-mill and forty firc-proof
cells, or slecping-rooms, for prisoners, who are divided
mto five classes. The petty sessions for the district of
Longtree are held at Tetbury, Rodborough, and Horsley,
in rotation.

HORSLEY, o township in the parish of OviNeram,
cgetern division of TinpbaLr ward, county of Norru-
UMBERLAND, {,l4 miles (W. by N.) from Newcastle upon
Tyne, containing 257 inhabitants.  There is a pluce of
worship for Presbyterians, with an endowment of
£37. 5. per annum, also one for Independents.

HORSLEY (EAST), a parish in the second divi-
sion of the hundred of Woxing, county of Suriey, 5}
miles (8. W.by W.) from Leatherhead, containing 192
inhabitants. The living is a rectory, in the peculiar
jurisdiction and patronage of the Archbishop of Cauter-
bury, rated in the king's books at £1¢. 16. 5. The
‘hurch, dedicated to St. Martin, has portions in the
:arly style of English architecture.

HORSLEY (LONG), a parish in the western divi-
sion of MonrreTE ward, county of NORTHUMBERLAND,
B% miles (N. W. by N.) from Morpeth, comprising the
townships of Bigge's Quarter, Freeholders' Quarter,
Longshaws, Riddle's Quarter, Stanton, Todburn, Win-
gates, and Witton-Shiels, and containing 1006 inhabit-
auts, The living is a vicarage, in the archdeaconry of
Northumberland, and diocese of Durham, rated in the
king's bouks at £7. 13. 4., and in the patronage of the
Crown. The church, dedicated to St. Helen, is a neat
edifice of stone, situated nearly half a mile from the
village, and was rebuilt in 1783 : the comumunion table
and rails were made out of an oak tree that was found
buried in a neighbouring peat-moss a few years ago.
There are both coal and lime works in the parish. A
strong ancient tower, near the western extremity of the
village, has been converted into 2 Roman Catholic
chapel, with a residence for the priest. A National
school, partly supported by subscription, was established
in 18‘.’.6.

HORSLEY (WEST), a parish in the second divi-
sion of the hundred of Woking, county of SURREY,
64 miles (W.8. W.) from Leatherhead, containing 611
inhabitants. The living is a rectory, in the archdes-
conry of Surrey, and diocese of Winchester, rated in
the king's books at £32.17.1. .H. P. Weston, Eag.
was patron in 1816. The church is dedicated: to 8t.

. A Sunday school was founded jn. 1813, and en-
dowed by the Rev, Weston Fullerton; m&ﬁﬂﬂﬁ; me
children gre taught on the National spstem.
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HORSLEY-WOODHOUSE, a township in the
parish of HomsrLey, hundred of Monuesron and
LrtcHURCH, county of DERBY, 6} miles (N, N. E.) from
Derby, containing 592 inhabitante.

HORSTEAD, a parish in the hundred of Taver-
uam, county of Norrork, § a mile (W.) from Coltis-
hall, containing, with Staininghall, 492 inhabitants. The
living is a rectory, in the archdeaconry and divcese of
Norwich, rated in the king's books at £7. 10, The
church is dedicated to All Saints, Here was an Alien
priory, a ce¢ll to the convent of the Holy Trinity at
Cacn in Normaudy, the revenue of which, at the sup-
pression, was appropriated as part of the endowment of
King's College, Cambridge.

HORSTED (LITTLE), a parish in the hundred of
Rusamonoen, though locally in that of Loxficld-Dor-
set, rape of PEvENsEY, county of Sussex, 2 miles (8.)
from Uckfield, containing 286 inhabitants. The living
is a rectory, in the archdeaconry of Lewes, and diocexe
of Chichester, rated in the king's books at £7, The
Rev. John Hubbard was patron in 1523,

HORSTED-KEYNES, a parish in the hundred
of Daneninu-Honrstew, rape of Pevensey, county of
Sussux, 6 miles (E. N. k) from Cuckfield, containing
713 inhabitants. The living is a rectory, in the arch-
deacoury of Lewes, and diocese of Chichester, ruted in
the king's books ut £13, 6. K. F. M. Austen, Esq. was
patron in 1812, The church, dedicated to St. Giles, has
portions in the early and decorated styles of English
architecture. The free school was founded and endowed
with an estate and £400, by Edward Lightmaker, in
1708, for twenty children; there being no salary the
master teaches twelve children for his rent-free resi-
dence. Here is a smull school on the National system,

HORTON, a hamlet in the parish of IvinguoE,
hundred of CorrEsLok, county of Buckinguam, 2%
miles (N.N.w.) from Ivinghoe, containing, with Seu-
brook, 139 inhabitants.

HORTON, a parish in the hundred of Stokg,
county of Buckineuam, 1% mile (8.8.W.) from Coln-
brouk, containing 796 inhabitants, The living is a rec-
tory, in the archdeaconry of Buckingham, and diocese of
Lincoln, rated in the king’s books at £22. 9. 4. The
Rev. W, Browne was patron in 1796, The church,
dedicated to St. Michael, contains a doorway with a
circular arch, enriched with Saxon mouldings, and is
surrounded by a Roman wall. A large peper-mlll on
the banks of the Coln affords employment to between
forty and fifty persons. The Colnbrook cattle fairie held
in this parish. The parents of Milton the poet resided
here, and his mother, who died in 1687, is interred in
the church; a few of the Jmﬂluh yearl of the peet
himself were passed at this place.

HORTON a township in the pu'kh of Tu.amn,
higher division. of the hundred of Brox?oN, county
palatine of Cugsrer, 2§ miles (NW. by:W.) from. M&L
pas, containing 141 inhahitants.

HORTON, a joint. tosmship with Pesle, in that plm-
of the parish of Tarvex which is in the second division
of the hundred of EpnisaUry, county palatine of Cmms-
iR, 74 miles (B. N.JI-) from Cheater, contsining 36 i in-
habitants. - .

HORTON, a mm the hundred of lhn'm,
Shastan.. (Eut of the county of Doresw, b
miles (§.8. W.) from Cranborae, oontnmtq mw
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bitants. The living is a discharged vicarage, with the

of Kuowlton, in the archdeaconry of Dorset, and
diocese of Bristol, rated in the king's books at £7.13.10.
The Earl of Shaftesbury was patron in 1816. The church
is dedicated to St. Wolfrida. An abbey, founded herc
in 970, by Ordgar, Earl of Devonshire, became a cell to
Sherborne Abbey in 1122. At Knowlton, formerly a
hamlet in this parish, now depopulated, but still giving
name to a hundred, are the remains of a chapel, which,
with the cemetery, are surrounded by a deep circular
intrenchment, comprising one acre of gronund within its
area, and containing several tumuli ; in the vicinity are
several other works of this kind. A fair formerly held
at Knowlton was removed to the adjoining parish of
Woodlands, about the year 1730, where it takes place
on the Gth of July, for horses, cheese, and toys.

HORTON, a pariesh in the upper division of the
hundred of GrRumsALD's AsH, county of GLOUCESTER,
34 miles (N. E.) from Chipping-Sodbury, containing
385 inhabitants. The living is a rectory, in the arch-
deaconry und diocese of Gloucester, rated in the king's
books ut £16, and in the patronage of Thomas Brooks,
Esq. The church is dedicated to St. James.

HORTON, a chapelry in that part of the parish of
CHAarTRAM which is in the hundred of Bripce and
PeTuam, lathe of Sv. Avcusting, county of KenT,
3 miles (S. W. by W.) from Canterhury. The population
i# returned with the parish.

HORTON, a parish in the hundred of WymEeRsLEY,
county of NorTaasmpron, 64 miles (S.E.) from North-
ampton, containing 87 inhabitants. The living is a
vicarage with the curacy of Piddington, in the archdea-
conry of Northampton, and diocese of Peterborough,
rated in the king's books at £7. 17. 1., and endowed with
£ 400 parliamentary t, and in the patronage of Sir
R. Gunning. Bart. The church is dedicated to St. Mary.
Charles Montague, first earl of Halifax, was horn at
Horton house in 1661.

HORTON, a parish in the castern division of CasTLE
ward, county of NORTHUMBERLAND, comprising the
townships of Bebside, Cowpen, East Hartford, West
Hartford, and Horton, and containing 2099 inhabitants,
of which number, 139 are in the township of Horton,
74 miles (8. E.) from Morpeth. The living is a perpe-
tual curacy, in the archdeaconry of Northumberland,

;and diocese of Durham, endowed with £200 private
“henefaction, and £600 royal bounty, and in the patron-
Eage of the Vicar of Woodhorn. The church was rebuilt
;im }9%8, at an exponse of upwards of £500, raised by
subscription. Horton formed part of the parish of Wood-
horn until the year 1768, when it was severed from it.
There are mines of coal in the parish, Here was for-
merly a strong e belouging to the Delaval family,
which was to the in 1809, and the in-
trenchments levelled. This parish is bounded on the
north by the river Blyth.
- HORTON, a hamlet in that part of the parish of
Bzcxyzy -which ie in the hundred of BuLiineron,
county of Oxyorp, 74 miles (N.E.) from Oxford, The
populstion i¢ returned with the chapelry of Studley.

HORTON, & township in that part of the parish of
Wllghich is in the Whitchurch division of the hun.-
dred 87 Baanrony ( ), county of Sarop, 14 mile

(Nerth
4W. by K.).flox Wem, containing 99 inhabitants.
: mlﬁh in the northern division of the

421

HOR

hqmlred of TormonsrLow, county of Starrorp, 23
miles (W. by N.) from Leek, containing, with the town-
ships of Blackwood with Croborough, and Horton-Hay,
942 inhabitantz.  The living is a perpctual curacy, in
the archdeaconry of Stafford, and diocese of Lichfield
and Coventry, endowea with £200 private benefaction,
£200 royal hounty, and £200 parliamentary grant, and
in the patronage of G. C. Antrobus, Esq. The church,
dedicated to St. Michacel, is a stone edifice with a tower,
A considerable quantity of cheese is made in this neigh-
boarhood.  Near Horton is the reservoir belonging to
the Caldon canal; it is « mile and three quarters in
Tength, and a quarter of a mile in breadth, and will
contain two million four hundred and forty thousand
cubic yards of water,

HORTON, a chapelry iu the parish of Braprorb,
wapentake of Morury, West riding of the county of
Yorx, 2 miles (S.W. by W.) from Bradford, containing
7192 inhabitants, The living is o perpetual enraey,
in the archdeaconry and diocese of York, endowed with
£200 royal bouuty, and £1500 parliamentary gront,
and in the patronage of the Vicar of Bradford. There
is a place of worship for Wesleyan Methodists.  The
manufacture of cotton and woollen goods is carried on
here. The free grummar school was founded and en-
dowed by Christopher Scott, in the reign of Charles 1.
with a school-house and an annuity of £ 18, since ang-
mented to £65 per annum : all applicants are admitted,
and about two hundred children are instructed here ;
but classical education has been discontinued. A school-
room end dwelling-house were erected in 1805, and en-
dowed with £600, raised by contributions, for the edu-
cation of children and young persous residing in the
hamlete of Stanbury and Haworth : the income is £30
per annum, and there are sixty free scholars.

HORTON, a township in the parish of Gispurx,
western division of the wapentake of Staincrisre and
Ewcross, West riding of the county of York, 94
miles (W. by 8.) from Skipton, containing 187 inha-
bitants,

HORTON (KIRBY), a parish in the hundred of
AxTon, Dartrorp, and WiLmineTon, lathe of SutrTon
at Ho~e, county of KenT, 4 miles (8.8.E.) from Dart-
ford, containing 537 inhabitants. The living is a dis-
charged vicarage, in the archdeaconry aund diocese of
Rochester, rated in the king's books at £5. 7. 6., co-
dowed with £200 private benefaction, and £200 royal
bounty, and in the patronage of the Rev. P. Rashlcigh.
The church, dedicated to St. Mary, is & cruciform struc-
ture, with a tower rising from the intersection, and sur-
mounted by a spire, Here are extensive remains of a
castle, founded by the family of Ros about the time of
the Conquest, which have been partially converted into
the manorial farm-house. This village is situated upon
the castern bank of the river Darent,

HORTON (MONKS), a parish in the hundred of
StovTinG, lathe of SHEPWAY, county of KENT, 5 miles
(N.N.W.) from Hythe, containing 186 inhabitants.
The living is a discharged rectory, consolidated with
the vicarage of Brabourne, in the archdeaconry and
diocese of Canterbury, rated in the king's books at
£7. 10. 8. The church, dedicated to St. Peter, is
principally in the early style of English architecture.
Here was a cell of Cluniac monks, founded in the reign
of Henry II, subordinate to the priory of Lewes, and
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dedicated to St, Mary, St. Jobn the Evangelist, and
St. Pancras : its revenue, at the dissolution, was valued
at £111. 16, 11.: the remains of the priory are in the
Norman style, with later insertions, and have been
converted into a dwelling-house : & large circular arch,
a short diftance, curiously ornamented, is supposed to
have been the entrance into the church.

HORTON in RIBBLESDALFE, a parish in the
western division of the wapentake of Staincrirer and
Ewcross, West riding of the county of Yorxk, 54 miles
(N.) from Scttle, containing 558 inhabitants. The
living is a perpetunl curacy, in the archdeaconry nnd
diocese of York, endowed with £400 private benefaction,
£600 royal bounty, and £1200 parliamentary grant,
The Rev, G, Holden, L.L.1)., was patron in 1798. The
church is dedicated to St. Oswald. A free grammar
schonl was endowed, in 1725, by John Armitshead, with
land and £ 200 for the support of a schoolmaster: the pre-
sent income is £ 160 per annum, and the average number
of scholars is fifty, some of whom are tanght the classics,

HORTON-GRANGE, a township in the parisii of
PoxtTeLann, western division of CasTLye ward, county
of varmmnr:m.mrn, 9 miles (N.N.W.} from New-
castle upon Tyne, containing 66 inhabitants,

HORTON-HAY, a township in the parish of
Horrox, northern division of the hundred of Tor-
MONSLOW, county of STAFFORD, 5% miles (N.W. hy w.)
from Leck.  The population is returned with the parish.

HORWICH, a chapelry in the parish of Dxan,
hundred of Savrorp, county palatine of LANCASTER,
43 miles (W.N.W.) from Great Bolton, containing
2573 inhabitants, The living is a perpetual curacy, in
the archdeaconry and diocese of Chester, endowed with
£400 private benefaction, and £400 royal bounty, and
in the patronage of the Vicar of Dean. A new district
church, or chapel, has been recently erected by the
commissioners for huilding churches. There are places
of worship for Indcpendents, Presbyterians, and Wes-
leyan Mcthodists. Bleaching and cotton-spinning are
carried on here to & considerable extent. Two stone
pillars on Wildersmoore hill are intended, according to
tradition, to record the death of two hoys in the snow,
on going to the grammar school at Rivington,

HORWOOD, a parish in the hundred of FrEming-
ToN, county of DEvon, 34 miles (E.N.E.) from Bide-
ford, containing 144 inhabitants. The living i¢ a dis-
charged rectory, in the archdeaconry of Barnstaple, and
diocese of Exeter, rated in the king's books at £7. 8. 4,,
and in the patronage of the Rev. J. Dene. The church
15 dedicated to St. Michael.

HORWOOD (GREAT), a parish in the hundred
of CorTEsLok, county of BuckiNcHAM, 24 miles (N.)
from Winslow, containing, with the hamlet of Single-
borough, 688 inhabitants, The living is a rectory, in
the archdeaconry of Buckingham, and diocese of Lin-
coln, rated in the king's books at £14. 4. 2., and in the
patronage of the Warden and Fellows of New College,
-Oxford. The church is dedicated to St. James. There
is a place of worship for Independents. Here was for-
merly a weekly market on Wednesday, granted to the
‘Bociety of New College in 1447, with a fair for tlﬂue
days 6t the festival of St, James. : -

HORWOOD (LITTLE), a pavish in ‘the: hundred
of CorTrEsLox, cointy of Buekiweman, 2} ‘miles
(M., by N.) from Winslow, contsinimg 429 inhabitents.
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The living is a discharged vicarage, in the archdeacanry
of St. Alban's, and diocese of London, rated in the king's
books at £5. 6. 8., endowed with £400 private hene-
faction, and 5600 royal bounty, and in the patronage
of the Bishop of London. The church iz dedicated to
St. Nicholas,

HOSE, a parish in the hundred of Framranp,
county of LeicksTer, 63 miles (N. by W.) from Melton-
Mowbray, containing 3¢5 inhabitunts, The living isa
discharged vicarage, in the archdeaconry of Leicester,
and diocese of Lincoln, rated in the king's books at
£7. 2. 6., and endowed with £200 royal hounty., The
King presented by lapse in 1801.  The church is dedi-
cated to St. Michael,

HOSPITAL, u tything in that part of the parish of
FarnrxgpoN which ix in the hundred of Farrinepon,
county of Berks. ‘The population is returned with
Waudlley.

HOTHAM, a parish in the Hunsley-Beacon division
of the wapentake of Harroiin, East riding of the
cvounty of Yorx, I mile (N.N.&.) from North Cave,
containing 293 inhahi!.nnts The living is a rectory,
in the archdeaconry of the East riding, and diocese of
York, rated in the king's books at £10. 0, 71, and in
the patronage of the Crown, The chureh is dedicated
to St. Oswald. Near this village is a Roman road,
passing in a direction towards North and South New-
bald.

HOTHERSALL, a joint township with Alston, in,
thut part of the parish of Ripcuester which is in the
hundred of AmounpERNESS, county palatine of Lan-
CASTER, 7 miles (N.E. by E.) from Preston. The pupu-
lation is returned with Alston.

HOTHFIELD, a parish in the hundred of Coanr
and LonGBRIDGE, lathe of Scray, county of Kent,
3} miles (W.N.W.) from Ashford, containing 438 inha-
bitunts. The living is a rectory, in the archdeaconry
and diocese of Canterbury, rated in the king's books
at £17. 5., and in the patronage of the Earl of Thanet.
The church i8 dedicated to St. Mary. A school for girls
was endowed, in 1720, by Thomas, Earl of Thanet, and
his Countess, with a rent-charge of £15 per annum,
for a schoolmist.rcﬂs, and a tenement for her residence;
likewise with £100 in the four per cents, : twelve boys
and twelve girls are taught gratuitously, In this pa-
rish is “Jack Cade's field,” said to have been the
hiding-place of that rebel in the reign of Henry VI,
whence he was dragged to execution by Alexander ldon
FEsq., sheriff of Kent,

HOTHORPE, a hamlet in that part of sthe pmsh
of THEDDINGWORTR Which is in the hundred of Rorw-
WELL, county of NorTHAMPTON, 4} miles (W.B. W)
from Market-Harborough, 68 inbabitants.

HOTON, a chapelry in-the plmshaof PresTWOouLD,
eastern division of the hundred of TE, county of
LxicesTer, 8 miles (N.E. by E.) ' Loughborough,
containing 412 inhsbitants. -There h a place of Wﬂl‘ﬁip

- for Wesleyan Methodists.

HOUGH, & township in the pamh of Wynns-
BURY, hundred of NanTwios, county palstingé -of
Cnns‘rnﬁ 4 miles-{B; by 8.) from Nantwich, eont.inmg
2092 :nhsbimma Sy

HOUG-Hmt‘neHILL npuish in theﬂm
of Lovepxx, parts of Kxsrevey, eomry -of. m@ge
7 miles- (H.}"ﬁ_un ‘Grantham, ' containing,
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bamlets of Brandon and Gelston, 533 inhabitants. The
living is & vicarage, in the archdeaconry and diocese of
Lincoln, rated in the king's books at £15. 6. 8., and in
the patronage of the Crown. The church is dedicated
to All Saints. Here was an Alien priory of Augustine
canons, a cell to the abbey of St. Mary de Voto, at Cher-
burgh in Normandy, the revenue of which was valued at
£20, when it was granted by Richard Il to the Car-
thusians at Coventry: at the dissolution it was a cell
to the priory-of Montgrace in Yorkshire,

HOUGHAM, a parish partly in the bundred of
Brwspsorovcs, lathe of Str. AuvGusTing, and partly
within the jurisdiction of the Cinque-port liberty of
Dovor, though locally in the hundred of Folkstone, lathe
of Shepway, county of Kent, 24 miles (W.8.W.) from
Dovor, containing 834 inhabitants. The living is a vi-
carage, in the archdeaconry and diocese of Caunterbury,
rated in the king's hooks at £6. 18, 4., und in the pa-
tronage of the Archbishop of Canterbury. The church,
dedicated to St. Lawrence, is principally in the early
style of English architecture, This parish is bounded
on the east by high chalk cliffs, which command a
fine view of the hills of Boulogne, across the channcl.
A great number of persons who died of the plague in
London, in 1665, was buried here, at a place called the
Graves.

HOUGHAM, a parish in the wapentake of Love-
pEN, parts of KesTevEN, county of LincoLuw, 63 miles
(N.N.w.) from Grantham, coutaining 290 inhabitants,
The living is a rectory with that of Marston, in the
archdeaconry and diocese of Lincoln, rated in the king's
hooks at £33. 8, 64. The church is dedicated to All
Saints,

HOUGHTON, a township in that part of the parish
of Stanwix which i8 in Eskpane ward, county of
CumpEnLAND, ¢ miles (N, by E.) from Carlisle, con-
taining 288 inhabitants.

HOUGHTON, a parish in the hundred of Hugst-
INGSTONE, county of HuNTINGDON, 2 miles (W. by N.)
from St. Ives, containing 427 inhabitants. The living
is a rectory with the curacy of Witton, in the archdea-
conry of Huntingdon, and diocese of Lingln, rated in
the king's books at £34. 17. 8§, Mrs. Peck was pa-
troness in 1811,  The church is dedicated to St. Mary.

HOUGHTON, a township in the parish of Maxn-
cuester, hundred of Sanrorp, county palatine of
LANcAsTER, 37 miles (N.E,) from Stockport, containing
2084 inhabitants. The name is probably a corruption of
High Town, from the district being the most elevated
pert of the parish of Manchester. There is a place of
worship for Wesleyan Methodists, The manufacture of
wotton and hats affords employment to about
seven hundred und fifty persons. An abundance of coal

is obtained fh this township.
" HOUGH a joint township with Middleton and
Arbary, m ‘arish of Winwick, hundred of Wesr

Derny, county palatine of LANCASTER, 4 miles (8. E.
by E.) fram Newton in Mackerfield, containing 280 inha-

HOUGHTON, a joint township with Clowhouse, in
that part of  the parish of Heppox on the WaLr which
is in the eastern division of TiNDALE ward, county of
Nowmravmazriixp, 74 wmiles (W, by N.) from Newcastle
wpon ; cotining 100 inhabitants.

HQEGW,';I. parish in the Hatfield division of
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the wapentake of BasseTrAw, county of NoTTINGHAM,
3% miles (N. W. by w.) from Tuxford, containing, with
the township of Serlby, and exclusively of Styrrup, a
portion of which is in this parish, 40 inhabitants. The
Fhurch is in ruins. There is a small cndowment for the
instruction of children, @

HOUGHTON, a parish partly in the hundred of
KinG's Bompoury, Andover division, but chiefly in that
of Bupprescate, Fawley division, of the county of
SovTHAMPTON, 2 miles (8. W. by 8.) from Stockbridge,
containing, with the tything of Houghton-Drayton, 365
inbabitants. The living is a rectory, in the peculiar. ju-
risgdiction of the incumbent, rated in the king's books
at £28, 2. 81, and in the patronage of the Bishop of
Winchester.  The church i dedicated to All Saints.
The river Test passes on the verge of this parish.
Courts leet and baron ure held onee a year, In this
parish is Stockbridge race-course, considered to be one
of the finest in the kingdom ; the races, held annually
in June, are well attended : uear the down are extensive
training-stables.

HOUGHTON, a parish in the hundred of Busy,
rape of AruNDEL, county of Sussex, 31 miles (X))
from Arundel, containing 162 inhabitants. The living is
a vicarage, united to that of Amberley, in the archdea-
conry and diocese of Chichester, and in the patronage
of the Bishop of Chichester. The church is in the
carly style of English architecture, with later insertions.
The navigable river Arun runs through the parish.

HHOUGHTON, East riding of the county of York.
—Sec SANCTON with HOUGHTON.

HOUGHTON (ST. GILES in the HOLE), a parish
in the northern division of the hundred of GrERNROE,
county of Nonrork, 3 of a mile (8.W.) from Little
Walsingham, containing 206 ivhabitants. The living is
a discharged vicarage, in the archdeaconry of Norfolk,
and diocese of Norwich, rated in the king’s books at
£8, and endowed with £400 royal bounty. D. H. Lee
Warner, Egq. was patron in 1507.

HOUGHTON (GLASS), a township it the parish of
CasTLEFORD, upper division of the wapentake of Os-
Gonperosg, West riding of the county of Youx, 23 miles
(N.w.) from Pountefract, containing 412 inhabitants,

NNOUGHTON (GREAT), & purish in the hundred of
WymeRSLEY, county of NorTRAMPTON, 27 miles (E.S.E.)
from Northampton, containing 249 inhabitants. The
living is a rectory, in the archdeaconry of Northampton,
and diocese of Peterborough, rated in the king's books
at £22, and in the patronage of the President and Fel-
lows of Magdalene College, Oxford. The church is de-
dicated to St, Mary.

HOUGHTON (GREAT), a township in that part of
the parish of DarrFieLp which is in the northern divi-
sion of the wapentake of Srrarronts and Ticxainr,
West riding of the county of York, 74 miles (E. by N.)
from Baruesley, containing 287 inhabitants. A small
school, in which ten poor children are instructed gra-
tuitously, was founded and endowed with £3. &. per
annum, and a house for the master, by a member of
the family of Rhodes.

HOUGHTON (HANGING), a hamlet in the parish
of Lamrort, hundred of OmrineBury, county of
NortHAMPTON, 8 miles (N.) from Northampton, con:
taining 111 inhabitants, Here was anciently a chapel
l:gUGl:lTON on the HILL, a parish in the hun



HOU

dred of GARTREE, county of LEICESTER, 64 miles
(E. by 8.) from Leicester, containing 874 inhabitants,
The living is a rectory, in the archdeaconry of Leices-
ter, und diocese of Linculn, rated in the king's books
at £16. 1, 04., and in the patronage of the Rev. Sher-
rard CW\. The church is dedicated to St. Cathe-
rine.

HOUGHTON on the HILL, a parish in the south-
ern division of the hundred of GrurNHOE, county of
NorvoLk, 4% miles (N.W.) from Watton, containing 34
inhabitants. The living is a rectory, with that of
North Pickenham, in the archdeaconry of Norfolk, and
divcese of Norwich, rated in the king's hooks at
£4.18. 9. The church is dedicated to St. Mary.

HOUGHTON (LITTLE), a parish in the hundred
of Wymenrsrey, connty of Nortnamrron, 31 miles
(E. by 8.) from Northampton, containing 501 inhabit-
ants. The living is a vicarage with that of Brafield
on the Green, in the archdeaconry of Northampton,
and diocese of Peterborough, rated in the king's books
at £6. 9. 2. The Rev. J. Johngon was patron in L35,
The church is dedicated to St. Mury.

HOUGHTON (LITTLE), a township in the parish
of Lose Hoveuron, seuthern division of BaMprovueH
ward, county of NorruvMnewLasp, 3§ miles (N.E,
by B.) from Alnwick, containing, with the township of
Little Mill, 77 inhabitants.

HOUGHTON (LITTLE), a township in that part
of the parish of Darrierp which is in the northern
division of the wapentake of Srrarront and Tick-
aiLL, West riding of the county of Yok, 64 miles
(E.) from Barncsley, containing 112 inhabitants,

HOUGHTON (LONG), a parish in the southern
divicion of Bamrroven ward, conuty of NorTRum-
BERLAND, comprising the townships of Bonlmer with
Seaton House, Little Houghton, Long Houghton, and
Little Mill, and containing 650 iuhabitants, of which
numbher, 469 are in the township of Long Houghton,
3% miles (E.N.E.) from Alnwick. The living is a dis-
charged vicarage, in the archdeaconry of Northumber-
Tand, and diocese of Durham, rated in the king's books at
£9. 9. 4, and in the patronage of the Duke of North-
amberland. The church iz dedicated to St. Peter.
A little westward of the village is a romantic and lofty
eminence, called Ratcheugh Cray. Boulmer bay, in this
parish, is a natural basin, eight hundred yards in length,
and four hundred in breadth, with 2 commodious en-
trance twelve feet decp at low water, and being already
cavironed by the rocks, it is capable of being formed
into an excellent harbour : at present only fishing-boats
are moored here,

HOUGHTON (NEW), a parish in the hundred of
GarLow, county of NorroLK, 94 miles (W. by B,) from
Fakenham, containing 209 inhabitants, The liviag is
a discharged vicarage, in the archdeaconry of Norfolk,
and divcese of Norwich, rated in the king's books at £5,
and endowed with £200 parliamentary grant. The
Marquis of Cholmondeley was patron in 1822, The
church is dedicated to St. Martin, '

HOUGHTON le SPRING, a parish in the northern
division of Eastneron ward, county palatineof Duasian,
congprising the market town of Houghton le Spring,
the chapélries of Painshaw and West Rainton, and the
mvmi'_iip?s of South Bidick, Bourn-Moor, Cocken, Great

Eppletos; Little Eppleton, East and Middle Herrington,
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West Herrington, Hetton le Hole, Moorhouse, Moorsley,
Morton-Grange, Newbottle, Offerton, East Rainton,
and Warden-Law, and containing 12,550 inhabitants,
of which numher, 2905 are in the market town of
Houghton le Spring, 6} miles (N.E.) from Durham,
and 266 (N.N.W.) from London. This place, which,
according to some antiquaries, takes the adjunct to its
nume from a family who resided here after the Norman
Counquest, and according to others, from the chalybeate
springs in the parish, is pleasantly situated at the head
of u rich and fertile vale, which expands towards the
west, and is sheltered by a range of hills to the north
and cust. The town hag heen rapidly improving within
the last twenty years, and contains several large and
handsome houses. A mechanicg’ institution was es-
tahlished in 1425, The trade of this place arises chiefly
from its numerous mines, producing the finer sorts of
coul, which cominand the highest prices in the London
market : these are conveyed from the mines by rail-
roads to the river Wear, which flows within four miles
of the town, and forms the northern boundary of the
parish, and thenee Ly keels or barges to Sunderland.
The adjoining district, which is rich in mineral produce,
coutains extensive (uarrics of limestone and freestone,
in which many of the inhabitants of the surrounding
villages find employmwent.  The market, established in
1525, is on Friday, but, from its proximity to those of
Durham and Sunderland, it is not well attended, A fair,
or wake, on the festival of the saint to whom the church
is dedicated, commences on the Sunday after New Mi-
chaclmas day, and continues for three or four days,
dnring which, races and other amusements take place
in the town and the several villages in the parish.  The
county magistrates hold a petty session for the division
every alternate Thursday, at the White Lion Inn, and
the seneschal, or deputy of the Bishop of Durham,
the lord of the manor, holds a halmote court for petty
cases of assault, and suits for the recovery of debts
under 40s.

The living is a rectory, in the archdeaconry and dio-
cese of Durham, rated in the king's books at £124, and
in the patrogage of the Bishop of Durham. The church,
dedicated to St. Michael, is & spacious cruciform strue-
ture, in the early and decorated styles of English archi-
tecture, with a tower rising from the intersection : the in-
terior contains scveral ancient monuments, among which
is one to the memory of the Rev. Bernard Gilpin, many
years rector of the parish, who, during the reigns of
Mary and Elizaheth, was styled the Apostle of the orth,
und was cqually distinguished for his great learning aud
beuevolence, There are places of worship for Baptists,
Independents, and Wesleyan Methodists. The free gram-
mar school was founded in 1574, By fhe Rev. Bernard
Gilpin, and John Heath, of Kepyer, Esq., who jointly en«
dowed it with lands and tenements; the endowmemd
has been augmented by subsequent benefactions, but th
arc at present no scholars on the foundation. Hy
Broughton, an eminent Hebrew scholar, and Dr. Ge
Carleton, Bishop of Chichester, and biographer of Gi
received the rudiments of their education in this
under the superintendence of the founder, who also.
an almshouse for the maintenance of the poor sc
and for three sged men or women. This hospital,
was rebuilt and endowed by George Lilburne, F
the Rev, Gwrgh'plvenpott, rector of the pgrish,
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of a centre and two wings. The Blue-coat school for
girls was founded by Sir George Wheeler, Knt., who be-
queathed £ 600 for that purpose, which has been since
invested in land ; the building was enlarged for an ad-
ditional number of girls in 1803 : there ure at present
forty instructed, twelve of whom are also clothed. On
the south side of the town is a ficld, called Kirk Ley,
where some religious establishment formerly existed, of
which there are no distinct records. Several coins,
carved stones, and other vestiges of antiquity, have
been discovered here ; and a few years since a large oak,
more than sixty feet in length, and a cart load of nuts,
were dug up at Warden-Law hill ; and several human
skeletons and bones, together with the horns of deer,
were found near the township of Newbottle. Dr. Samuel
Ward, an eminent divine, and master of Sydney Sussex
College, Cambridge, who died in 1643, was born in this
rish,

HOUGHTON (WEST), a chapelry in the parish of
Dgan, bundred of SaLrorp, county polatine of Lan-
CASTER, 43 miles (E.) from Wigan, containing 4211
inhabitants. The living is a perpetual curacy, in the
archdeaconry and diocese of Chester, endowed with
£400 private benefaction, £600 royal bounty, and £200
parliamentary grant, and in the patronage of the Vicar
of Dean. The church is dedicated to St. Mary. There
is a place of worship for Wesleyan Methodists. A free
school was built by subscription in 1742, and enlurged
in 1784 : the present income is sbout £20 per annum,
and thirteen children are educated free. The manufac-
ture of muslin and jaconet prevails to a considerable
extent : in 1812, a manufactory was burnt down here
by the rioters on the Luddite system, four of whom
were exccuted.

HOUGHTON-CONQUEST, a parish in the hun-
dred of REDBORNESTOKE, county of Bepronrp, 24 miles
(N. by E.) from Ampthill, containing 651 inhabitants,
The living is a rectory, with which that of Houghton-Gil-
dable was united in 1687, in the archdeaconry of Bed-
ford, and diocese of Lincoln, rated jointly in the King's
booke at £25. 18. 9., and in the patronage of the Master
and Fellows of St. John's College, Cumbridge. The
church, dedicated to All Saints, contains several monu-
ments to the Conquest family; besides one to the memory
of Thomas Archer, rector of the parish, who made a cu-
rious entry in the register respecting his own coffin,
dated in 1623 ; and another to that of Dr. Zachary
Grey, editor of Hudibras, and a8 commentator on Shak-
speare, also incumbent of this parish. There is a place
of worship for Wesleyan Methodists. This place de-
rives the adjunct to ite name from the family of Con-
quest, lords of the menor prior to the thirteenth century,
hose mansion, ornamented with grotesque carvings, is
ow 8 farm-house : here James 1. sojourned twa days,
‘1605, on & visit to Sir Edmund Conquest. A free
Hichoo] and almshouses for six poor persons were founded
il endowed by Sir Francis Clerke, in 1632 : the salary

Whe master is £16, and the almspeople receive £8
mnum, which is divided amongst them. In 1691,
ind Wylde, Esq. bequeathed £ 140 to be expended
nd, desiring the rental to be applied to the repair
léss premises, and the surplus to be given to the
“people : there are twenty-two scholars. Houghton
khouse, now destroyed, was a celebrated seat of the
¥ .of Brogg, Earls of Eigin and Aylesbury.
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HOUGHTON-LEE-SIDF, a township in that part
of the purish of Gaixrorp which is in the south-
eastern division of DarrLiNgroN ward, county palatine
of D‘lJl_lH.\M, 64 wiles (N.w. by N.) from Darlington,
containing 122 inhabitaute,

HOUGH'TON-REGIS, a parish in the hundred of
MansuEAD, county of Brorowp, 14 mile (N.) from
Dunstable, containing 1283 inhabitants, The living is
a discharged vicarage, in the archdeaconry of Bedford,
and diocese of Liucoln, rated in the king's books at
£11.3. 4. The Duke of Bedford was patron in 1519,
The church, dedicated to All Saints, contains an ancient
monument, with the statue of a man in armour heneath
@ highly decorated arch, in the early style of English
architecture. A free school was founded and endow-
ed, in 1654, by Thomas Whitchend, with an estate and
£250, for the education of twenty poor children : the
annual income is £50, and sixteen boys ure instructed.
This place, as its name imports, was anciently held in
royal demesne,

HOUGHTON-WINTERBORNE, a purish in the
hundred of Pimperse, Blandford (North) division of
the county of DorskeT, 41 miles (W. 5. W.) from Bland-
ford-Forum, containing 203 inhabitants. The living is
a rectory, in the archdeaconry of Dorset, and diocese of
Bristol, rated in the king's books at £13. 13. 4. E. M.
Pleydell, Esq. was patron in 1823, The church is
dedicated to St, Andrew,

HOUND, a parish in the hundred of Manssrinee,
Fawley division of the county of Sournamrron, 32 miles
(8. L. by E.) from Southampton, containing 387 inhabit-
ants.  The living is a discharged vicarage, in the arch-
deaconry and diocese of Winchester, rated in the king's
books at £5. 4. 7., and in the patronuge of the Warden
and Fellows of Winchester College.  The church is de-
dicated to St. Mary. This parish lies on the verge of
the Southampton water, at a short distance from the
banks of which, and surrounded by well-wooded and
gently-rising grounds, are the celebrated ruins of Netley
abbey, founded, in 1239, for monks of the Cistercian
order, the revenue of which was valued at the dissolu-
tion at £160. 2. 9.: the remains of the chapel, which
is cruciform, are particularly beautiful ; the length is
two hundred feet, the breadth sixty, and the length of
the trausept one hundred und twenty. Here is also
an ancient crypt, forty-eight feet long, and eightecn
wide, commonly called the Abbot's Kitchen : the addi-
tional ruins are, parts of the chapter-house and refec-
tory, the richly-ornamented east window, with & cireu-
lar compartment, an arch of the west window, richly
mantled with ivy, and the south transept. Near the
abbey, und more contiguous to Southampton water, are
the remains of a small fort, called Netley Custle, erected
by Henry VIII,

HOUNDSTREET, a tything in the parish of
Markssury, hungred of KEynsuawm, county of Som-
ERRET, 2} miles (S.E. by E.) from Pensford, contain-
ing 73 inhabitants.

HOUNSLOW, a chapelry (formerly a market town)
partly in the parish of IsLkworTH, but chiefly in that of
Heston, hundred of IsLewonrTs, county of Mippug-
seX, 0} miles (W. 8.W.) from London. The population
is returned with the respective parishes. This place,
anciently called Hundeslawe, is situated on the principal
road to the West of England : it consists chiefly of along
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street, extending from east to west, irregularly paved,
hut lighted with gas; and the inhabitants are well sup-
plied with water. A priory of friars, of the order of
the Holy Trinity, was founded here in the thirteenth
century, the revenue of which, at the dissolution, was
€50. 15. 0. I 1206, a chuarter was granted to the
prior, for a weekly market on Thuorsday, and an annnal
fair : the former has been discontinued for more than
thirty years ; but fuirs are held on Trinity Monday and
Tuesday, and the Monday following Michaelmas-day,
for the sale of horses, cattle, &c¢.  Adjoining to the
town, on the west, was formerly an extensive heath,
which had been the site of ancient encampments, and
was at different periods s militury station, or place of
rendezvous  for troops, especially in the reigns of
Charles L and James IL : the latter monarch was visit-
ing his army encamped here, in June 1688, when he
was alarmed by the acclamations of the soldiers, on the
arrival of the news of the acquittal of the “ seven
bishops,” who had been tried for a supposed libel
against the government,  On this heath, about forty
vears since, harracks for cavalry were erected, which af-
ford accommodation for three hundred and sixty men,
with their horses. The huildings consist of a centre
forming the ollicers’ apartments, and east and west
wings, with some additional erections, within an enclo-
sure of nearly four acres in extent ; and at a short dis-
tance is the ground for military exereise,  The heath
has been enclosed, in pursuance of an act of parliament
passed in the 53rd of George 111., sinece which many
buildings have been erected here. About two miles to
the south-west of Hounslow are the exteusive gnnpow-
der-mills of Messrs. Curtis aud Tlarvey, which have
been very much improved within the last few years, and
where a curious pump, worked by wind-sails, raises from
thirty to fifty tons of water in a minute. Here is also
another gunpowder-mill, and a mill for dressing fiax.
Hounslow is within the jurisdiction of & court of re-
quests for the recovery of debts under 40s., held at
Brentford during the suminer half year, and at Ux-
bridge during winter. The living is a perpetual curacy,
in the archdeaconry of Middlesex, and diocese of Lon-
don, and in the alternate patronage of the Bishop of
London, and the Dean and Canons of Windsor.  The an-
cient chapel of the priory, which, since the Reformation,
had been used as a chapel of case to Heston, was taken
down, aud in June 1828, the erection of a new church on
its site was commenced, which was completed in December
1520, at an expense of £53810. 10., defrayed partly by the
purliamentary commissioners, and partly by voluntary
contribution : it is a fine edifice in the later style of
English architecture, with a low spire and two turrets ;
and it contains one thousand and thirty-five sittings, of
which, four hundred and cighteen are free. Hounslow
18 about to be constituted a distinct parish, so far as re-
gards ecclesiastical affuirs. There age places of worship
for Independents and Wesleyan Methodists.

HOUSHAM, a township in the parish of Cap»ey,
southern division of the wapentake of YARBOROUGH,
WME)U; Lin (zsl.:;:yd'f county of LixcoLx, 4 miles (8.E.

-) from G ord-Bri The population is Te-
turned with the parish, i o

HOVE, a parish in the bundred of PresTon, rape
of Lxwxs, county of Susskx, 2 miles (W.by N.) from
Brighton, containing 312 inhabitants. The livingis s
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vicarage not in charge, with that of Preston, in the
archdeaconry of Lewes, and diocese of Chichester. The
church, dedicated to St. Andrew, is in the early style
of English architecture. This was a considerable village
for a long time subsequently to the Norman Conquest,
but is now almost swallowed up by the encroachments
of the sea.

HOVERINGHAM, a parish in the southemn division
of the wapentake of THURGARTON, county of NoTTiNG-
HAM, 5 miles (8.) from Southwell, containing 335 inha-
bitants. The living is a perpetual curacy, in the arch-
deaconry of Nottingham, and diocese of York, endowed
with £200 royal bounty, and £400 parliamentary grant,
and in the patronage of the Master and Fcllows of
Trinity College, Cambridge. The church, dedicated to
St. Michael, has a Norman porch.

HOVETON (ST.JOHN), a parish in the hundred of
Tunsrean, county of NorroLk, 24 miles (E. 8. E.) from
Coltishall, containing 270 inhabitants. The living is
u discharged vicarage, united with that of Hoveton St.
Peter (neither of them rated in the king's books), in
the archdeaconry and diocese of Norwich, endowed with
£200 royal bounty,

HOVETON (ST. PETER), u parigh in the hundred
of TunsTEAD, county of Norrork, 24 miles (E. by S.)
from Coltishall, containing 117 inhabitants. The living
is a discharged vicarage, with which that of Hoveton
St. Jolin is united, in the archdeaconry and diocese of
Norwich, and in the patronage of the Bishop of Nor-
wich,

HOVINGHAM, a parish comprising the township
of Scackleton, in the wapentake of Bunmer, and the
townships of Aryholme with Hawthorpe, Cotton, Fryton,
Hovingham, South Holme, and Wath, in the wapentake
of RyepaLg, North riding of the county of York, and
containing 1115 inhabitants, of which namber, 649 are
in the township of Hovingham, 8 miles (W. N. W.) from
New Malton. The living 18 a perpetual curacy, in the
archdeaconry of Cleveland, and diocese of York, endowed
with £200 private benefaction, £400 royal bounty,
and £1500 parliamentary grant, and in the patronage
of the Earl of Carlisle. The church is dedicated to All
Saints. There is a place of worship for Wesleyan Me-
thodists. A small sum was bequeathed, in 1716, by
Mrs, Frances Arthington, for the instraction of six poor
children : the income is £%. 8. per annum, and four
children are edncated. A school was endowed in 1504,
by a bequest of £200 from the Rev. James Graves, by
means of the dividends upon which twelve children are
educated. In a fild about one mile from the village
are three springs of sulphureous, chalybeate, and clear
water : the medicinal properties of ¢he first have attract.
ed many visitors. Hovingham-hall, ancieatly the seat of
Roger de Mowbray, is now the property of the Worsley
family : in 1745, a Roman hypocsest and bath, with a
piece of tesselated Roman , were discovered in
the garden, and near the buth some &ins from Antoninuy
Pius to Constantine : on the side of an adjoining hill js
& breast-work, h::'be of Roman ur{l-igin. A vi-
cinal way is believed o have passed through the village,
from Malton to Aldborough. i

HOW-BOUND, & township in the parish of Caerrz-
Sowgrpy, Leara ward, county of Cumssrraxy, 3§
miles (8. E. by B.) from Hesket-Newmarket, containing
279 inhabitants. Om the summit of Howiill, in this
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parish, is an enclosure surrounded by 2 mound of stone
and earth, and arowned with several large oaks.

HOW-CAPLE, a parish in the hundred of Grey-
TrEE, county of HErErorp, 6 miles (N.N.E.) from
Ross, containing 117 inhabitants. The living is a rec-
tory, united to that of Sollers-Hope, in the archdeacoury
and diocese of Hereford, rated in the king's books at £9.
The churech is dedicated to St. Andrew.

HOWDEN, a parish in the wapentake of Howprn-
BHIRE, Bast riding of the county of York, comprising
the market town of Howden, the chapelries of Barmby
on the Marsh, and Laxton, and the townships of As-
gelby, Balkholme, Belby, Cotness, Kilpin, Knedlington,
Metham, Saltmarsh, Skelton, Thorpe, and Yorkfleet, and
containing 4443 inhabitants, of which number, 2060
are in the town of Howden, 21 miles (8.E. by 8.) from
York, and 184 (N. by W.) from London. This place,
which is of considerable antiquity, was chicfly dis-
tinguished for its collegiate establishment, founded by
Robert, Bishop of Durham, in 1266, for secular clerks,
and dedicated to St. Peter and St. Paul: there were ori-
ginally five prebends, to which a sixth was subsequently
added : the agpregate revenue, at the dissolution, was
£101. 18. A palace was erccted here in the fourteenth
century, by Walter Skirlaw, Bishop of Durhum, as a
summer residence for the prelates of that see, the re-
mains of which have been converted into furm-buildings,
The town is pleasantly situated in a richly-cultivated
and level tract of country, about a mile from the north
side of the river Ouse : the houses are in general built
af brick, but of mean appearance; the streets arce
roughly paved, partially lighted with oil, und the inha-
bitants are but indifferently supplied with water.  There
is no particular branch of trade carried on, the labonr-
ing class being principally employed in agriculture : therc
is a ferry over the river sbout a mile from the town, also
& small harbour for boats. The market is on Saturday :
the fairs are on the second Tuesday in January, April
15th, the second Tuesday after the 13th of July, and
every fourth Tuesday in the year, for horses and cattle.
Courts leet and baron are held occasionally, in 2 room
belonging to the ancient episcopal palace; and o court
of requests for the recovery of debts under 40s., was
formerly held, but has fallen into disuse. The living is
& vicarage not in charge, in the jurisdiction of the
peculiar court of Howdenshire, and dioccse of York,
endowed with £200 parliamentery grant, end in the

ronage of the Crown. The church, dedicated to St.

ter, and formerly collegiate, is a spacious and
stately cruciform structure, partly in the carly, but
principally in the decorated, style of English archi-
tecture, with a lofty equare embattled tower rising
from the intersection, of which the upper part, raised
by Bishop Skirlaw, is in thc later English style; the
west front of the chwrch is of bold end simple character,
but a fine compositien, and the cast end, now in ruins,
‘was one of the richest specimens of the decorated style
i the ki : the chancel having fallen into decay,
the'nave was fitted up for the performance of divine
service in 16386 ; the roof is supported by finely-clus-
tered columns and pointed arches, and in the north aisle
of the choir,snd in & chapel near the south traneept, are
two finely-executed monuments in the decorated style.
The chapter-house, the roof of which has fallen, was a
superb ootagonal edifice, inferior only in dimensions to

427

HOW

the chapter-house at York : it containg thirty canopied
st_al!% richly ornamented with tabernacle-work, and ex-
hibiting @ considerable degree of perfection in the prin-
cipal detuils, which are extremely beautiful.  There are
places of worship for Independents, Wesleyan Metho-
dists, and Sandemanians, A free school, in which
sixteen children are instrocted, is supported by a be-
quest from Robert Jefferson, of £21 per annum, which
is paid to the master, and by o rent-charge of £2. 8.
A National school, in which three hundred children of
both sexes are instructed, is supported hy subscription ;
and there ure Sunday schools in conuexion with the es-
tablished church and the dissenting congregations, Some
considerable benefactions have been made for apprentic-
ing poor children, and for other charitable purposes.

HOWDEN-PANS, a township in the parish of
WarLLsEnD, castern division of Caste ward, county
of NoRTHUMBERLAND, 2% miles (%, W) from North
Shiclds. The population is returned with the parish.
Here are places of worship for Wesleyan Methodists
and those in the New Connexion,  This village is situ-
ated on the viver Tyne, ut the foot of some lofty emi-
nences.  Glass-works were in operation here in the
sixteenth and seventeently centuries, atterwards nume-
rous salt-pans, but at present the coal trade chicfly
prevails, large quantities being shipped for London and
other places from the staiths,  Frigates and vessels
for India were built here during the American war, but
now only those employed in the exportation of coal are
built or repaired. Here is on extensive rope-walk ; and
at East Flowden is a large manufactory for lamp-black
and coal-tar.

HOWLE, a parish in the hundred of CraverinNg,
though locaily in that of Henstead, county of NORFOLK,
64 miles (8. 8. E.) from Norwich, containing 99 inhabit-
ants.  The living is a discharged rectory with Little
Poringland, in the archdeaconry of Norfolk, and diocese
of Norwich, rated in the king's books at £8. 13. 4., and
in the patronage of Mrs. Wheler.  The church, dedi-
cated to St. Mary, has a eircular tower,

HOWE, & township in that puart of the parish of
Pickuins which is in the wapentake of HALLIKELD,
North riding of the county of Yorxk, 5% miles (W. 5. w.)
from Thirsk, containing 32 inhabitants,

HOWELL, a parish in the wapentake of Aswarp-
HURN, parts of KesTeEveN, county of LINCOLN, 5 miles
(E. by N.) from Sleaford, containing 67 inhabitants.
The living is u rectory, in the archdeaconry and diocese
of Lincoln, rated in the king's books at £13. 10. Mrs,
Reynolds was patroness in 1812, The church, dedi-
cated to St, Oswald, has portions in the Norman, with
insertions in the early and decorated styles of English
architecture ; the font is in the later style,

HOWGILL, a chapelry in the parish of SEpsracn,
western division of the wapentake of STAINCLIFFE and
Ewcross, West riding of the county of York, 3 miles
(N. W. by N.) from Sedbergh. The population is re-
turned with the parish. The living is a perpetual
curacy, in the archdeaconry of Richmond, and diocese
of York, endowed with £800 royal bounty, and in the
patronage of the Vicar of Sedbergh..

HOWGRAVE, a joint township with Sutton, in the
parish of KirgringTON, wapentake of Havrrxxip,
North riding of the county of Yorx, 5% miles (W.8.W.)
from Thirsk, containing 122 inhabitants.
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HOWGRAVE, a joint township with Nunwick, in thut
part of the parish of Rirox which is within the liberty
of Ripon, though locally in the lower division of the
wapentake of Claro, West riding of the county of Yorx,
5 miles (N.) from Ripon, containing 28 inhabitants.

HOWICK, a township in the parish of Penwor-
THAM, hundred of LrvyLanp, county palatine, of Lan-
CASTER, 2§ miles (W.S$. W.) from Preston, containing
136 inhabitants. A free school was built in 1729, by
Christopher Walton and others :  the income is £29. 5.
per annum, and about thirty children are instructed.

HOWICK, an extra-parochial liberty, in the upper
division of the hundred of CaLpicorT, county of Mon-
MovuTH, 34 miles (N. W. by W.) from Chepstow, con-
taining 34 inhabitants. The tithes of this liberty are
claimed by the rector of Itton.

HOWICK, u parish in the southern division of
BamprouH ward, county of NORTEUMBERLAND, 53
miles (N.E. by E.) from Alnwick, containing 234 in-
habitants. The living is a rectory, annexed to the
archdeaconry of Northumberlaud, divcese of Thirkam,
rated in the king's books at £36. 18. 4., and in
the patronage of the Bishop of Durhuwm, The church
is dedicated to St.Mary. A free school was founded
and built by the first Sir Ilenry Grey, Bart., who en-
dowed it with £10 per annum charged on the Howick
estate, with a house and garden for the master: the en-
dowment was sugmented by Mrs. Magdalen Grey, of
Durham, with a rent-charge of £13. The school-room
has been recently rebuilt, and the master receives £5
per annum from Earl Grey, in addition to the previous
endowment. In the park of Howick hall, the seat of
Earl Grey, is a finc trout stream, crossed by a bridge
of ashlar work : on the eastern side are the remains of
a Roman encampiment, where, more than half a cen-
tury ago, epears, swords, coins, gold rings linked toge-
ther in the form of a gorget, were discovered. In the
vicinity were also found several large urns and some
haman bones, four feet beneath the surface of the earth.
Howick confers the inferior title of viscount upon the
family of Grey.

HOWSHAM, a township in the parish of Scray-
INGHAM, wapentake of Buckrosy, East riding of the
county of York, 74 miles (8, 5. W.) from New Malton,
containing 225 inhabitants.

HOWTELL, a township in the parish of Kirk-
Newron, western division of GLENDALE ward, county
of NORTHUMBERLAND, 8 miles (N. W.by W.) from
Wooler, containing 190 inhabitants,

HOXNE, a parish in the hundred of Hoxxg, county
of SurroLx, 3} miles (N.E.) from Eye, containing
1066 inhabitants, The living is a vicarage, annexed to
that of Denham, in the archdeaconry of Suffolk, and
diocese of Norwich, rated in the king's books at
£12, 8. 64. The church is dedicated to St. Peter snd
St.Paul. A free schoul was founded and cndowed by
Lord Maynard, in 1761 : the premises cousist of school-
roome and residences for the master and the mistress :
about forty boys and twenty girls are instructed, and
some of the children are occasionally apprenticed:
the master's salary is £42 per annum, and that of
the mistress £12. Here was a priory of Benedictine
monks, subordinate to that at Norwich, the revenue of
which, at the dissolution, was valued at £18. 10, par
wonnum.
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HOXTON, a district parieh in the Tower division
of the hundred of OssvrLsTONE, county of MippLESEX,
4 & mile (N.E.) from London. The population is re-
turned with the parish of St. Leonard, Shoreditch. This
place, formerly a hamlet in the parish of St.Leonard,
has been greatly enlarged within the last few years,
aud having become an extensive and populovs district,
was constituted a parish by act of parliament in 1830,
It is divided into Hoxton Old Town, and Hoxton New
Town ; the former containing many ancient and spa-
cious houses, some of which have fallen into decay, and
others have been converted into private lunatic asylums;
and the latter, consisting of numerous well-formed
strects and neat ranges of modern buildings, occasion.
ally interspersed with pleasant cottages. The town i
well paved, lighted with gas, and amply supplied with
water. The principal manufactories are for machinery
of vavious kinds, pins, vinegar, &c.: there are an ex-
tensive saw-mill, and nwmnerous lime and coal wharfs on
the banke of the Regent's cunal, which pusses through
the northern part of the parish, Hoxton is within the
jurisdiction of a court of requests held at Whitechapel,
for the recovery of debts under 40s.

The living is a vicarage not in charge, in the archdea-
conry of Middlesex, and diocese of London, and in the
patronage of the Deanof St. Paul's. The church, dedicated
to St.John the Baptist, and containing one thousand nine
hundred and ninety-five sittings, of which one thousand
are free, was erected, in 1826, by grant from the parlia-
mentary commissioners, at an expense of £13,000 : it
is & hundsome edifice of light brick, with a cornice and
ornaments of stone, and a steeple consisting of succes-
sive stupes of campanile turrets crowned with a dome.
There are places of worship for Independents, Wesleyan
Methodists, and Methodists of the New Connexion.
The ancient cemetery of the Jews is in this parish. A
apacious National school is supported by subscription, in
which about five hundred children are instructed ; and
an infant school, in which are two hundred children,
was established in 1829, Lady Viscountess Lumley
founded almshouses, and endowed them for three aged
persons of the parish of St. Botolph, Aldgate, and thres
of the parish of St. Botolph, Bishopsgate : they were
rebuilt in 1822, The Huberdashers' almshouses were
founded, in 1692, by Robert Aske, who endowed them
with estates in this parish und at Ashford in Keat, for
the residence and support of twenty poor members of that
company, and for the elothing, maintenance, and edu-
cation of tweuty boys, sons of freemen of the company:
the old buildings were taken down jn 1825, and the
present hanf@some structurc erected on the site. The
premises occupy three sides of & quadrasgular ares, in
the centre of which is & statue of tlie fomnder : the
centre comprises a handeome el, with-a pnftleoaf
the Grecian Doric arden. on #ide of which are
epartments for the chaplainand sthoolmaster, school-
room and dormitory for the boys and domestic officesy
the wings, in front of which.is 8 aglonnade, are approp-
priated to the aged men, whe have each & separate honse,
and are in other mespeets comfortably provided. fop.
William Fuller, Bag., in: 1795, founded and endowed
almshouses for twelve women, who have a weekl
sllowance of meney, & chaldron of coal m%
and also ‘other almshouses. in -Gloucester-stract,
sixtecn aged .women, whe receive 8 similar allowsnge
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Almshousee near Gloucester-terrace were founded in
1749, by Mrs. Mary Westby, who cndowed them for
ten aged women,

HOYLAND (HIGH), a parish in the wapentake of
Staincross, West riding of the county of Yorr, com-
prising the townships of West Clayton and High Hoy-
land, andgcontaining, exclusively of a portion of the
township 8f Skelmanthorpe which is in this parish,
1122 inhabitants, of which number, 268 are in the
township of High Hoyland, 54 miles (N.W. by w.) from
Barnesley. The living is a discharged rectory, former-
ly in- medietics, now united, in the archdeaconry and
diocese of York, each rated in the king's books at
£5, 3. 4., the first endowed with £200 private benefac-
tion, and £200 roysl bounty, and in the patronage of
T. W. Beaumont, Esq. The churchis dedicated to All
Saints.

HOYLAND (NETHER), & chapelry in the parish
of Warn upon DEARN, northern division of the wapen-
take of StrarrorTH and TickuiLL, West riding of
the county of Yorg, 5 miles (8.5.E.) from Barnesley,
containing, with Upper Hoyland, 1229 inhabitants.
The living is a perpetual curacy, in the archdeaconry
and diocese of York, endowed with £800 private bene-
faction, £200 royal bounty, and £ 1300 parliamentary
grant, and in the patronage of the Viear of Wath upon
Dearn. A new church is being erected by means of &
grant from the parliamentary commissioners. Ten
peor boys and ten poor girls are educated for £10 per
annum, paid by Earl Fitzwilliam.

HOYLAND-SWAINE, a township in the parish
of SiLksToNE, wapentake of STaincross, West riding
of the county of York, 2 miles (N. E.) from Penistone,
containing 738 inhabitants.

HUBBERHOLME, 8 chapelry in that part of the
parish of Arncrierk which is in the eastern division
of the wapentake of StaincrLiFre and Ewcross, West
rding of the county of York, 18 miles (N.E. by N.)
from Settle. The population is retarned with the parish.
The living is a perpetual curacy, in the archdeaconry
and diocese of York, endowed with £200 private bene-
faction, and £800 royal bounty, and in the patronage
of the Vicar of Arncliffe. The church is dedicated to
St. Michael.

HUBY, a township in the parish of SurTon on the
Forgest, wapentake of BuLmer, North riding of the
county of Yorxk, 9 miles (N.N. w.) from York, contain-
ing 497 inbabitauts. Here are places of worship for
the Society of Friends, anid Primitive and Wesleyan Me-
thodists.

HUCKING, a parish in the hundred of Evmornz,
lathe of AyLesvorD, county of KenT, 7 miles (E. by N.)
from Muidstone; containing 158 inhabitauts. The living
is-a perpetual curiicy, with the vicarage of Hollingbourn,
in the .archdeacwnry emd diocese of Canterbury. The
church is: dedieated to Bt. Margar®t, The village stands
on the ridge of & line of chelk hills, and was anciently
callend Howkynge, fremmn its elevated situation.

+FIUOKLE-COT, & hamlet in the parish of Crurca-
poWwWN; upper division of the hundred of DupsTone and
King's Binrow, county of GLOUCESTER, 24 miles (E.
8,B.) frorn' Gloucester, containing 439 inhebitants.

» S HUOKLOW (GREAT), s hamlet in the parish of
Horn, hundred -of Hiom Prax, county of Dersy, 24
miler {3 8. ) frem Tidswall, containing 74 inhubitants.
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There are places of worship for Presbyterians, Wesleyan
Methodists, and Unitarians.

HUCKLOW (LITTLE), a liberty in the parish of
Hork, hundred of Higr Peak, county of DErsY, 2
miles (N.N.E.) from Tidswell, contaiuing 218 inhabit-
ants.

HUCKNALL onder HUTHIWAITE, a hamlet in
the parish of Surron in AsarieLp, northern division
of the wapentake of Broxrow, county of NoTTINGEAM,
5 miles (W. by 8.} from Mansfield, containing 712 inha-
bitants. This place is within the ecclesiastical jurisdie-
tion of the peculiar court of the manor of Mansficld.
There is a place of worship for Wesleyan Methodists.

HUCKNALL-TORKARD, a parish in the north-
ern division of the wapentake of Broxtow, county of
Norrincuam, 6 miles (N. N. W.) from Nottinghum,
containing 1940 inhabitants. The living is a discharged
vicarage, in the archdeaconry of Nottingham, and dio-
cese of York, rated in the king's books at £4. 18, 14.,
endowed with £400 royal bounty, and £200 parliameu-
tary grant, and in the patronage of the Duke of Portland.
The church, dedicated to St. Mary Magdalene, is an
ancient edifice, countaining several monuments in
memory of different members of the Byron family:
here lie the remains of the late celebrated poet, George
Gordon, Lord Byron ; he died at Missolonghi, in Western
Greeee, in 1624, and was interred here, on the 16th
of July in that year, in the family vault, which is
beneath the comrmmnion table, and contains twelve
leaden coffins : in the chancel is a neat mural monu-
ment, with an appropriate inscription, to his memory,
placed there by his lordship's sister, the Hon. Augusta
Mary Leigh. In the church is a book wherein the
names of scveral hundred visitors to the poet’s tomb
are entered. There is ulso a monument to his ancestor
Richard, Lord Byron, who, with the rest of his family,
being seven brothers, faithfully served Charles I. during
the civil war, and sustained great losees and hard-
ships on nccount of his loyalty to that monarch: he
died in 1679. Here are places of worship for Gencral
Baptists, and Primitive anid Wesleyan Methodists, A
Sunday school is endowed with £18 per annum, being
third portion of the proceeds of a bequest for charitable
purposes by John Byron, in 1571 : a parochial school-
room was built by subscription in 1815, Frame-work
knitting is carried on to a great extent in the parish.
On the enclosure of the waste lands twenty-five acres
were allotted for the benefit of poor housekeepers, now
yielding the sum of £22. 10, per annum,

HUDDERSFIELD, a parish in the upper division
of the wapentake of Acnrics, West riding of the
county of York, comprising the market town of Hud-
dersficld, the chapelries of Lindley, Longwood, Scam-
monden, and Slaithwaite, and a portion of Marsden,
and the fuownship of Golcar, and containing 24,220
inhabitants, of which number, 13,284 are i the town
of Huddersfield, 40 miles (8. W.) from York, and 189
(N.N.W.) from London. The town possesses no claim
to antiquity, having sprung up within the last century,
almost entirely in consequence of the progress of the
woollen manufacture, of which it is one of the principal
marts in the county. The origin ‘of its name is uncer-
tain, though Gough, in his additions to Camden, is of
opinion that it is derived from Hudard, a Saxon, whom he
supposes to have gained a victory here. The town is situ«
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ated on the river Colne, on the high road between Leeds
and Manchester, partly on the declivity, and partly on
‘the summit, of an eminence, which is surrounded by
others of superior height. The streets are regular and
well paved, and contain several houses of considerable
respectability : but the chief ornaments of the town
are the churches and chapels, which are principally
constructed of stonc : there are also several extensive
mills, erected lately, for the manufacture of woollen
cdoth. 1In 1765, Sir John Rameden, of Byram, near
Ferrybridge, to whom nearly the whole of the town
belongs, erected @ hall for the accommodation of the
manutacturers, in which they expose their goods for sale :
it is a large circular building, consisting of two storics,
and the interior is divided into two courts, or semicircular
arens: the light is admitted through windows fronting
the inner areas, the outer wall being a perfect blank :
the hall is divided into avenues, and the cloth exposed
for sale upon stalls, Above the cntrance door is a
handsome cupola, in which are placed a clock and a bell,
the market opening and closing at the round of the
latter. The town is lighted with gas, under the manage-
ment of a joint-stock company; and supplied with water
from reservoirs at Longwood und Nettleton hill, an act of
parliament appointing commissioners for that purpose
having been recently obtained. The chief articles of manu-
facture are woollen cloth (broad and narrow), serge, ker-
seymere, and corduroy, with a variety of fancy goods to
a very considerable extent : the fancy manufacture of this
town and neighbourhood has been established within the
present century, and, besides the articles already referred
to, includes a great varicty intended for waistcoats and
pantaloons, made of worsted and cotton., The silk
valentias, now 80 commonly exposed in the shops of the
drapers throughout the kingdom, are the produce of
this neighbourhood, and, for beauty of design and tex-
ture, possess superior merit. An immense quantity of
these articles is exported to the continent, and their
manufacture affords employmeat to several thousand
individuals. The manufacture of shawls, toilinets,
capinets, &ec., has zlso been introduced with success,
and the shawls arc acknowledged to equal the French
merinos, though fabricated from British wool. The
town is advantageously situated for commerce, and the
mhabitants enjoy the benefit of that line of inland na-
vigation which extends mcross the kingdom from the
Atlantic to the German ocean. The Huddersfield canal,
constructed pursuant to an act of parliament obtained
in 1774, commences here, and, taking a south-westerly
course, enters a tunnel near Marsden, which is about
three miles and a half in length, under Pule hill and
Standage, and emerges near Digloe mill, in Saddleworth,
about two miles and a half from Dobcrose ; and after
crossing the winding course of the Tame, in several
places, it leaves the county near Lydgate, and joins the
Ashton and Oldham canal near Ashton under Line,
whence the line extends to Manchester and Liverpool.
The Ramsden canal, which commences at the King's
mills, close to the town, unites with the Calder at
Cooper's bridge ; then, by means of that river, the Aive,

ding towns of Halifax, Wak Mq,mdﬂm
market is on Tuesday, when the dears of
opened esrly in the morning, and closed
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eleven ; but are again opened at three, for the removal of
cloth, &c. There are three fairs, viz,, on the 31at of Mgrch,
4th of May, and 1st of October, chiefly for cattle. A con-
stable for the town, and a deputy constable, are chosen
annually. The petty sessions for the upper-division of
Agbrigg are held here : and there is a court baron for the
liberty and honour of Pontefract, for the wecovery of
debts under £5; also a court of requests, instibuted under
an act of pn.rliament passed in the 33rd of George IIL,
for the recovery of debts under 40s. Besides these
there are courts leet and baron for the manor of Al
mondbury, the former of which is held here, and the
latter at Almondbury, lluddersfield being within its
Jjurisdiction.

The living is & discharged vicarage, rated in the
king's books at £17. 18. 4., in the peculiar jurisdiction
of the manorial court of Marsden, and in the patronage
of Sir John Ramsden. The church, dedicated to St.
Peter, is an ancient and spacious, but plain, cruciform
edifice, having a tower with battlements and piunacles
rvising from the intersection. There is also a chapel de-
dicated to the Holy Trinity, an elegant structure, occu-
pying un clevated situation on the north-western side of
the town : it was begun in 1817, and consecrated on the
10th of October, 1819, having been built at the expense
of B. Haigh Allen, Esq., and contains more than one
thousand five hundred sittings, of which one third are
free. The living is a perpetual curacy, endowed with
£1000 purliamentary grant, and in the patronage of
B.Huigh Allen, Esq.  Christ church, at Woodhouse, con-
secrated on the 28th of October, 1824, was built by John
Whitacre, Esq., who holds the presentation. There are
also three chapels of ease, viz., at Longwood, Deanhead,
and Slaithwaite; and three new churches have been re-
cently built at Paddock, Golcar, and Lindley, by grants
from the parliamentary commissioners, all of which are
within the parish, and in the prescntation of the Vicar,
Besides these, another church is now being erected
in Huddersfield, to be dedicated to St.Paul. Here are
places of worship for Baptists, the Society of Friends,
Independents, Primitive and Wesleyan Methodists, and
Methodists in the New Connexion, Southcotians, and
Roman Catholics ; those of the Independents and the
Wesleyan Methodists are large and handsome buildin
A National school, huilt ig 1820, on ground given for t
foundation of a school by John Rameden, Esq in 1681,
is supported by voluntary contributions, and about five
hundred children at present are educated in it. There
is also a school of industry for girls, recently established
by the ladies of Huddersfield; and two infant schools
are about to be erected. - A machanies' fustitute, with
a library attached to it, was founded.in. 1825, and a

savings bank in 1818, A disp was established
in 1814 ; and an i is mow heffig erected at the
estimated expense of bel;ween £4000 and£5000. Sul-
phureous and chalybeste.aprings bave been discovered

at Erringden and Slafthweitey in this parish, and st
other places in the eighine --"' public bﬁﬁl
threequﬂrtalpfi‘- & Sl 1d. Thenohg
gant and commodions ' - were first openad -to the

public in 1827 3 they are built of stome, and:

hrmava-;wwmm, they uubwhg
supplied with theaps water, and the charges and dires-
tion of the Whole are regulated by a committer of shae
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holdérs, tnder fhe t of an experienced
steward. 'The spa water is said to possess qualities
highly beneficial in glandular, rheumatic, gouty, and

dym complaints.

DINGTON, a parish in the middle division of
the hundred of OswaLpsLOW, county of WORCESTER, 4}
miles (8.8.E.) from Droitwich, containing 125 inha-
bitants. The living is a perpetual curaey, in the arch-
deaconry and diocese of Worcester, endowed with £600
royal bounty, and £200 parliamentary grant, and in the
patronage of the Earl of Shrewsbury. The church
i8 dedicated to St. Michael.

HUDDLESTON, a joint township with Lumby, in
that part of the parish of Suernury which is in the
upper division of the wapentake of BarksronEe-Ash,
West riding of the county of York, 7 miles (N. N. w.)
from Ferry-Bridge, coutaining 184 inhabitants. Here
is & quarry of fine stone, which, although soft at first,
acquires considerable hardness by exposure to the at-
mosphere : the chapel of Henry VIL, in Westminster
abbey, was partly built of this stone.

HUDNALL, a hamlet in the parish of EppLes-
BOROUGH, hundred of CorTrsLoE, county of Buckine-
HAM, containing 91 inhabitants.

HUDSWELL, a chapelry in that part of the parish
of Carrerick which is in the western division of the
wapentake of Hawne, North riding of the county of
York, 2} miles (W.8.W.) from Richmond, containing
305 inhabitants. The living is a perpetual curacy, in
the archdeaconry of Richmond, and diocese of Chester,
endowed with £600 royal bounty, and in the patronage
of the Vicar of Catterick. A free school is supported by
the proceeds of an allotment assigned on the enclosure
of wastc lands, now emounting to £18 per annum, for
which twelve children are educated gratuitously. Here
are an extensive lead mir- and a colliery.

HUELSFIELD, county of GLOUCESTER.— See
HEWELSFIELD.

HUGGATE, a parish in the Wilton-Beacon division
of the wapentake of HamrrmiLy, East riding of the
county of Yorx, 7% miles (N.E.) from Pocklington,
containing 413 inhabitants, The living is a rectory,
in the archdeaconry of the East riding, and diocese of
York, rated in the king's hooks at £15, and in the pa-
tronage of the Crown. The church is dedicated to St.
Mary. There is a place of worship for Wesleyan Me-
thodists, The inhgbiteants are supplied with water
from a well one hundred and sixteen yards in depth.
Races are held in July.

HUGGLESCOTE, a joint chapelry with Donning-
ton, in the parish of IneTock, hundred of SpArkENHOE,
county of LxicesteR, 6 miles (8. B. by B.) from Ashby
& 1o Zouch, contpining 683 inhabitants.

“ HUGHLEY, a parish  within the liberty of the
bérough of Wenrock, county of Savor, 4§ miles
(W8, w.) from Muck Wenlpck, containing 101 in-
. The livifg ¢ a discharged rectory, in the
sichieaconryof Snltz, énd diocese of Hereford, rated
in “‘the king's boo¥s®t £4. 11. 8, endowed with £200
rivate benefaction, ind £200 #oyal bounty; and in the

] e of ‘the Earl of Bradford. The church ie de-
wted'to St John tire Baptist. The woods in this parish
anciently sfforded & eccure retreat to robbers, since, in the
of Richard 1., & special commission was issued to

s dhdimmlefitors in the woods of Hughley,
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HUGIL, a chapelry in that part of the parish of
Kenpar which is in Kenpar ward, county of Wesr
MORLAND, 6} miles (N.W.) from Kendal, containing
300 inhabitants. Tbe living is a perpetual ruracy, in
the archdeaconry of Riclimond, and diocese of Chester,
endowed with £200 private benefaction, and £ 600 royal
bounty, and in the patronage of the Landowners. The
chapel, rebuilt in 1743, by Robert Bateman, stands
in the village of Ings, which is in this chapelry. The
free school was endowed with land, in 1650, by Rowland
Wilson, producing at present £12 per annum : the
average number of hoys is twenty-five : this endowment
was augmented with £8 per annum, by Robert Bateman,
who also gave £1000 for purchasing an estate, and
crecting eight almshouses for as many poor families.
hesides a donation of £12 per annum to the curate.
This worthy benefactor was horn here, and, from a state
of indigence, succeeded in amassing considerable wealth
by mercantile pursuits: he is stated to have heen
poisoned in the straits of Gibraltar, on his voyage from
Leghorn, with a valuabl cargo, hy the captain of the
vessel, Bobbin-turning and the manufacture of woallen
cloth are carried on here. On the summit of High
Knott is a circular obelisk, erected by the Rev, Thomas
Williamson, to the memory of his father.

HUISH, a parish in the hundred of SueBsBEAR,
county of Devon, 43 miles (N.) from Hatherleigh, con-
taining 118 inhabitants. The living is a discharged rec-
tory, in the archdcaconry of Barnstaple, and diocese
of Exeter, rated in the king's books at £7. 19. 10., and
in the patronage of Lord Clinton. The church is de-
dicated to St. James.

HUISH (NORTH), a parish in the hundred of
STannoroveH, county of DeEvon, 44 miles (N.E.) from
Modbury, containing 440 inhabitants, The living is a
rectory, in the archdeaconry of Totness, and diocese of
Exeter, rated in the king’s books at £29, 18, 114., and
in the patronage of Sir John Perring, Bart. Here is
an almshouse, endowed, in 1517, by T. Tremayne, Esq.
The river Avon separates this parish from that of Dipt-
ford.

HUISH (SOUTH), a parish in the hundred of
STANBOROUGH, county of Devox, 3§ miles (8.W.) from
Kingsbridge, containing 383 inhabitants. The living s
a perpetual curacy, aunexed to the vicarage of West
Allington, in the archdeaconry of Totness, and diocese
of Exeter. On the rorks near the sea are the re-
mains of an old castle, which, according to tradition,
suffered from Cromwell's party during the civil war:
a cannon ball and a curious untique key were found,
about seven years since, within the walls, At Wood-
ville, in this parish, lemons, oranges, citrons, and olives,
flourish against the garden walls, with only & temporary
protection from the weather : about seven years since
the Meditcrranean aloe blossomed in open ground, and
attained the height of twenty-seven fect, but died
immediately, though not twenty years of age, leaving
numerous suckers, The fishing cove in Bighury bay
called Outer Hope, is in this parish.

HUISH-CHAMPFLOWER, a parish in the hun-
dred of WiLrLrToNn and FREEMANNERS, of Som-
erseT, 2} miles (W. by N.) from Wiveliscombe, con-
taining 317 inhabitants. The living is a rectory, in the
archdeaconry -of Taunton, and diocese of Bath and
Wells, rated in the king's books at £13, 9. 4§. Sir J.
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'hevdmhm-mpmm.inm& MMis
dedicated to St. Peter.

HUISH—EPISCOPL a pu'uh in. thc w din-
don.ofthe hundred of Kingssury, though locally in
the hundred of Somerton, wmﬁym’m;n
mﬂe(n.)ﬁ-omlaugput,eonhahg 'hhbim

The li a discharged

pocnlm' jurisdiction and p
B e . of Pesifrnd
Cathedral Church of Wells, rated in the king's books
at £14. 10. 5., endowed with 5900

; HUISB-ROAD &chpdvy in the pensh and hun-
dred of CA!MM ~county of So:unu-r, 4 miles
(8.5.) fram Dunster.. . The population is returned with

.G'HOLOM a township in the parish of
‘onk-m southern division of EasiNeToN
ard, county palatine of Duraam, 12§ miles (N.) from

Tees, containing 16 inhabitants.
HUM,I hamlet in the parish of EasToN-NEs-
N, hundred of CreLey, county of NorTHAMPTON, 13
(N. E. by E.) from Towcester. The population is
ed with the parish.
'HULCOTT, a parish in the hundred of AyLesBURY,
ty of BuckingHAM, 3 miles (N.E. by E.) from
mbw containing 139 inhabitants, The living is a
,in the arch of B and dio-
' Lincoln, rated in the king's books at £10. 0. 2%.

oqu.mpmmww. The church,
dicated to All Saints, is a small structure with a

& joint township with Appleton, mﬂnt;mt
rish of Grear Bupworta .which is in the

‘nconn:y of the town of).—See xmes'mn
KVLL(BISHOFS). a pu‘iqh lnthehududof

YR

43¢

part of the ' ’
hundred of NorTEWICH, county palatine ol’ Onm
24 miles (S.E. by E.) from Middlewich, owhinhg
inhabitants.

HULME, a chapelry in the pu-nh of Ihncnmn,
hundred of SaLrorp, county palatine of LANCASTER,
24 miles (8.E. by 8.) from Manchester, containing 4234
inhabitants. The chapel is dedicated to St. George.

HULME, a joint township with Weston-Coyney, in.
the parish of Caverswarw, northern division of the
hundred of TormoNsLow, county of STAFFORD, 44 miles
(W. by N.) from Cheadle, containing 527 inhabitants.

HULME (CHURCH), a chapelry in that part of the
parish of SANpBACH which is in the hundred of NorTa-
wicH, county palatine of Cursrer, 34 miles (E. ‘by N.)
l}ﬁ'mn Middlewich, containing 397 inhabitants. m

ving is a perpetual curacy,
daor:gle of Chester, endowed with &mprivm bmefuk
tion, and £200 royal bounty, and in the of
the Vicar of Sandbach. Thomas Hall, Esq., in 1708,
gave a ~of £14 for the instruction of boys
and girls, which, in 1718, he augmented with another
of £4.10., for clo them. There is also & small
nm,thcgtﬁ:ofhliah ﬁortachingmdnpm

EULME (LEVENS), ‘a township in. the h of
MancuesTER, hundred of SaArromrp, county )
of Lummn,a} miles (8.E.) from u—m m
768 inhabitants.
- HULME-WALFIELD, a township h m
e somlepghen . 1o .
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Cistercian monks, in honour of the Blessed Virgin containing 184 inhabitants. On a rising gmihdnhr

: bs ﬂie purm: of Dana
‘Sneyd. DINGTON, eastern dlviuion of Gr.mu.i*wwd
. An abbey of of NorruumserLAND, 1 mile (W. N. W.) from Woolbr

w**W;h:M*Mﬂmdowy the Humbleton-Bourn is an ancient - encampment, called
‘of which, at the dissolution, was £76. 14. 11.: Green Castle; and on a hill in the vicinity is a circular
'mhnhmmmdmtoafmhm ¢ iatrenchmenththahrgecai:m the declivity of the

. HULVERSTREET, a hamlet in that part of the hill forms several terraces, each twenty feet deep, rising

wﬁ HexsreAD which is in the hundred of WANG- one above another. A pillar of stone has been set
FORD, Meﬂrﬁmmn&dﬁng“thhm on the plain, in commemoration of a great bnt:bp
_ , a parish in the hundred of Worrmy, fought in 1402, when ten thousand Scots under Earl
of Hererorp, 4 miles (S.E. by E.) from Leo- Douglas, who had previously plundered the country as
MMWMMWQIQ far as Newcastle, were totally defeated by Lord Percy
Mm The living is a discharged rectory, in the and the Earl of March: the field is still termed Red-
archdeaconry and diocese of Hereford, rated in the ﬁggsanmedmvedﬁomtheungumnymtunof
king's books at £5. 16, 3., endowed with £ 200 private the conflict. A stone coffin, enclosing the remains of a
benefaction, and £200 royal bounty, and 'in the patron- gigantic &keleton and an urn, was' discovered here in

age of the Crown.. ThechumhudediwedtoSt.Mary 18N

HUMBERSHOE, a hamlet in that part of the . HUMBLETON, upanshm the middle division of the
Mt@ Srupmam which is in the hundred of Mans- - wapentake of Bor.nnmu, East riding of the county
HEAD, mty of Bunmn, conhimng 363 mlubit- of Yorxk, comprising the chapelry of Elstronwick, and
ants. the townships of Danthorpe, Fitling, Flinton, and Hum-
ﬂmn&smn,umh mthewupenukeof bleton, and containing 586 inhabitants, of which num.-

\hum.n-llﬂm, parts of Linpsey, county of ber, 136 are in the township of Humbleton, 9% miles

LincoLn, 44 miles (8.E.) from Great Grimsby, con- (N.E. by E.) from Kingston upon Hull. 'Q:elivingisn
mmeuwm The living is a discharged discharged vicarage, in the archdeaconry of the East
emhthquehdumrymddinmofl.meoln riding, and diocese of York, rated in the king's books
rated in the king’s books at £5. 18. 4., endowed with at£10. 1. 0}, endowed with £600 royal bounty, and
Aum mm;.m £200 whummygrm mthepntrompoftheCrown The church is dedicated
the patronage of Lord Carrington. The church, to St. Peter. Francis Heron, in 1718, devised certain
_was rebuilt, except the tower, houmfo:ndlan;l: novspmduci?ﬁmn;m ‘income of
cen at the expense of £70, teaching and apprenticing ei
mbetnonﬂsq ,who of both sexes. AtEknonmekiatschoul%ﬁe
support of which, £11. 10. is paid mnullytollghodf
mnmlfwmthepaoneom
HUMBY (GREAT), a hamlet in the of
Somerny, wapentake of Winnisrices and Tureo,
parts of Klmvnx,conntyuf Lmoomr,dmﬂel W. by
8.) from Falkingham. The population is vnth
the parish.
HUMBY (LITTLE), a hamlet ln"the ptrhh of .
the Ropsiry, wapentake of WinNisrices and Trureo, parts
| of Kesrevew, mntynf L'moduc, 54 miles (W. byr}
from 65 inhabitants.

parish ofSudw-




ma melmz‘emdhndhz.ﬂ Richar
1699, an anuual rent-charge of £6, together pro-.
ducing about £17 per annum, for the support of a free
school, in which eleven children are educated.
HUNDERTHWAITE, lm in the parish of
Romarn-Kirxk, western ( of the wapentake of

Gruuing, North _of the county of Yomx, 5}
miles (N. W,byw,) from Barnard-Castle, containing
313 '

HUNDLEBY a po,rlsh in the eastern division of

e soke ﬁMﬂlwu,pnm of LinpsEey, county

LixcoLn, 1 mile (N.W. by W.) from Spilsby, con-
i The living is a

: by sequestration, in. the archdeaconry
qﬁ,. cese of Lincoln, rated in the king's hooks at
7. 19. 4., and endowed with £200 royal bounty.
church is dedicated to St. Mary.
HUNDON, apmshmthehnndredofnum,
of Svnou. 3} miles (N.N.W.) from Clare,
mu&mgoscinhabimu Thehvmgmndnschnsod
,inthearchdeamnry Sudbury, and diocese

con- extremity of a

sound of ahruenhorn,mdtohuvebenmn
thetowmmenbyJOhnofGﬂmt. S

dedicated to St. wnnne,ilahmdm
mounted by a square embattled tower : it wuenchd
on the site of the former church, in 1814, at
pleasant walk, shaded by lofty trees, on
the western side of the town, A window of painted
glass, representing theﬂsm ;
prenentedhyMrColhmof
afthehml in the north a




435

HUN

of Dick- lately received an addition of five hundréd and seventy

"HUNNINGHAM, « parish in the
log bundred of KniGurLow,

Mhﬁmhundreduf BI.AVG!!N,
mmwwm(w by 8.) from Sawbridge-
‘ whmmu ‘The living is a rec-

v of Middlesex, and diocese of
,' Wiboob at £12. N. Calvert,
1 m church has mp:lf
de, belonging to the ly
id at the weht end ‘an em-

‘»dkchlrgedv‘l
"tndﬂloeeueofNorwleh,mdinﬂn

~ which family belonged the celebrated

smlng- of which five hmm'w.mmmam
for the enlargement of churches
expense. A little to the eastward of it are the remaing

) building, encompassed by a moat. There dre
Mofmh:pfmwmym Methodists and those

in the New Connexion. This place, formerly the seat
of the and Nevilles, has of late years, from
its vicinity to Leeds, mdtheesubnshneatofmmw

HUNSONBY, a township in the parish of Ammcc-
mAM, Leatn ward, county of CumBrErLAND, 7 miles
('r; ‘E.) from Pennth containing, with the towmhnp of

inskill, 151 mhtbnants There is a place of worship
for Wuleynn ‘Methodists. Mr. Joseph Hutchinson, in
1726, devised an estate at Gartree, now let for £40 a
year, for teaching children.

HUNSTANTON, a parish in the hundred of Smiry-
poN, county of Norrorx, 10 miles (W.) from Burnham-
Westgate, containing 433 inhabitants. The living is a
in the - of Norfolk,

's books at
p of Ely:. ‘The
8

£12, and in the patro of the
chnrch dedicated to St. , is a large
tower risi fromthewutendoﬂhemﬁ
it contains several memorials of the Le Slnnyl *’tb
political writer, Sir
Roger le Strange, who was born here in 1616 : on the
breaking out of the civil war he espoused the royal cause,
and intending to surprise Lynn, was betrayed by two of
his associates, seized, and condemned to death, vhidx
sentence was afterwards commuted for o in
New, Escaping from prison he fled to the continent,
et Sgiont pﬂ‘:rgtothz Restoration, and- afterwards
published a newspaper, called “ The Public Intelligencer
and the News,” which was suppressed, and the London
Gazette substituted, the first number of which was
published, February 4th, 1666. - hemap-
pointed licenser of the press, wro te“'l‘heOhaer'Mor in
defence of Government, and on the accession of James II.
was knighted ; he died in 1704. There mmhgu of

! mmhmeh:pelm&.&lmdl ahig!rchﬂ'
45 'BON,“:*tomep in the ptn-h of Wy-
nm:, ‘hundred of NantTwicH, county palatine of

Onm Gmﬂu (! n.)'!mn waich,amdnmgm
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of Tioalinh mmm The Arundel and Port
§ T i TR ,s.y," it
n NSTONW. ﬁm, S g i
division of -

thﬂihpm-h and
;:r:i.duce “annually n.bou.t thu\tym m” d pigs of
" HUNSWORTH, a townshig ﬁ&mofmw
uu,,wupentlkeofm ‘est riding of the county
onou,a mg;@ﬁmword containing

‘manufacture of oollengoodau

‘HUNTINGDON, a bo-
yo) rough and market town, hav-

Zing te jurisdiction, lo-
il callyinthehundred of Hurst-
U)) ingstone, county of Hunr-

INGDON, 59 miles (N. by W.)
i from  London, ~containing
412806 inhabitants. This place,
called by the Saxons Hunt-
antun, and in the Norman
" survey Hunters dune, appear-
, w,hnve derived name
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Mud!hm “he was
from the insults of a Mm“b:‘;l 1745,
mﬁ p wwxhhgww

to support.

claims of the Pretender, u&nhdnltgemm(
money by subscription for that purpose. ok, A
Thetown hplennﬂymd*mmgmthmeﬁﬂq

on the northern bank of the river Quse, over which an
mcmtmbndgeofdxuchummuumw-
manchester : it consists of one - ‘street, extend-
ing a mile in length, and intersected at right angles
by several smaller streets: the houses are in general
large, well built, and of handsome appearance; the town
is well paved, lighted during the winter season, and
amply supplied with water. The environs are pleasant,
and from the Castle hill the prospect is rich, varied, and
extensive. Within a quarter of a mile of the town is
a luxuriant meadow, calledponhnln, more than two
miles in circamference, and preserving an entire gand

beautifal level, environed by the river, which is of -gon- -

siderable breadth, and lhndedmiamubym“
stately poplars and ‘willows, ' On this

plain, which forms one of the ﬂwmh»h

kingdom, races take
theﬂmT\msdaylnAn‘:::

, and eo

during which, and usually for afmﬁtmﬁu‘ ﬁb .

theatre, a small edifice erected in 1500, is opép. There
are three literary institutions, or reading-sociéties, and a
pubﬁcmhlcnptim ,md,inlﬂﬂ;nhorﬂ
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m ubulge:mf-'wu»t handsome structure i
er style of Eaglieh axchitéetife, Witk & fie
embattled tower, strengthened with buttress
fusely ornamented with niches and sculpture ; the nave
is separated from the aisles by finely-pointed arches and
octangular and circular columns alternately ; the font
is of an octagonal form, and supported on a column en-
circled by small pillars : in the chancel are several
e monuments, and in other parts of the church
are some mural tablets highly finished, together with
several marble slabs, from which the brasses were torn
away by the parliamentary soldiers, There are places
of worship for Baptists, the Society of Friends, Inde-
pendents, and Wesleyan Methodists. The free grammar
school, which is of uncertain origin, is endowed with
part of the revenue of the ancient hospital of St. John,
in the chapel of which it is kept: the number of scho-
lars is mot limited, and they are instructed on the
Eton plan, There is a scholarship for a boy from this
school at Peter House, Cambridge, founded by Thomas
Miller, who gave for that purpose land now producing
£20 per annum, tenable from admission nntﬂobhin:g
the of M.A.: there is also a scholarship founde
in t's College, Cambridge, for a native of Hunting-
don. A charity school is mpmmby‘&e sur-
plus benefactions of Mr. Richard rn, Mr. Lionel
Walden, and Mr. Gabriel Newton, and by subscription,
for the maintenance, clothing, and education of thirty
boys, of whom six go out every year, uc‘eivi;gl” £10 8
an apprentice fee: twelve girls are also ¢ and
instructed from the proceeds of Mr. Fishborn’s charity.
National schools, under the patronage of the Bishop
of the diocese, were established in 1813, and :e m
ported by subscription: the boys' school-room, in which
onehm:{led boys are instructed, is a neat building at
the northern extremity of the town; opposite to
is that for the , of whom about seventy are tanght.
Mr. Richard born, in 1625, gave £2000 in trust to
. the Company of Mercers, in London, for the mainten-
- ance of a lecture, a grammar school, and an almshouse,
, in this town ; which sum, together with £4560 arising
fmmMm,m;h‘l:lao,MIntt: e
- of the manor of Chalgrave, in the county .
e now - £700 per annum, of which £ 60 is paid
< toa rer, £175 per annum to the corporation for
charitable uses, of which £35 per annum is appropriated

g
A
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latter part ot the sxxteenth century, the site of the friary
belonged to Rolert Cromwell, whose son Oliver became
Lord Pmtector of England. Here was also an hospital
dedicated to St. Margaret, for a master and leprous bre-
thren, to which Malcolm, Earl of Huntingdon,~md King
of Scotland, was a benefactor, and which was, in 1445,
annexed to Trinity Hall, Cambridge, by letters patent of
Henry VL. ; besides an . dedicated to St. John
the Baptxst founded in the rexgn of Henry IIL, by
David, Earl of Huntingdon, the revenue of which, at
the dissolution, was £0.4.: the chapel, which is all
that remains of the ancient building, i8 appropriated to
the use of the free grammar school, A stone coffin,
containing a human skeleton, 'was dug up on the castle
hills, about twenty years - The learned Henry of
Huntingdon, author, of y of England continued
to the reign of Stephen ;‘r‘,‘ the noted Oliver Crom-
well ; were natiy town. Huntingdon gives the
title of carl to the family of Rawdon-Hastings.
HUNTINGDONSBIRE, an inland county, bounded
on the north and west by the county of Northampton,
on the south-west and south by the county of Bedford,
and on the east by the county of Cambridge: it ex-
tends from 52° 7/ to 52° 32, (N. Lat.),md m 0° 2’
(E. Lo‘n) to 0° 81’ (W, Lon.), in its broadest part ;
‘and it contains about two hundred and . thirty-six

‘thousand eight hundred acres, or about three hundred

and seventy square miles; The population, in 1821,
‘amounted to 48,771. = Before the Romans obtained
possession of this part.of Britain, the territory now
included in‘ the -small ‘eounty of Huntingdon formed
/the western extremity of the country of the Icemis: it
- subsequently became part of ‘the great division.of Ro-
; man Britain, called Flavia Cesariensis, and.on the estab-
| hphmeut of the Saxon octarchy, it was at;ﬁmtr:imluded
in the ldngdom of Eut Angl ,.hqt, X i
nexed, by of -

session of its earldom be wyd faﬁuw of Scotlmﬂ, :
% additional

which furnished the two crowns with an

object of contention and mugnnl -annoyance, A short

time before the Norman Conguest, the earldom, or go-

mnqnhxp, of this shire (being then an office granted at 1

pleasure, and not an heredi

j hmmu'wuhdd'y
m;eSusvnrd,whowaﬂinﬁ‘tf;W ) Earl

prince,

events, or in the favour of ‘the
earldom was sometimes in t!
of Matilda by Simon de St.
of her p;lstemy by l;'erw !
enry, son o latter, was
ted. earl ; butrfm his father's refusal ’ﬁo
Su-phm. ‘Count of Blois, as.
the exclusion: of #he Empress ﬁtﬂda, Stqhen,
all his possessions in England, restored this e Jdon
to the young Simon de St. Liz. When m:ba
war hetween the two countries (in which both
David, and his son; Prince Henry, invaded Englugi
the head of a large army,) was terminated by the media-
tion of the Empress, one of the conditions of the peace
then concluded was, that the counties of Northumbers
land and Huntingdon should remain in the government ¢
Prince Henry, as heir to them by maternal right,
that for these lands, he and his successors, Prin
Scotland, should do homage to Stephen and his suc
sors, Kings of England. Nevertheless, the possession
of . these counties was afterwards the objéct of frequent
disputes between the two crowns. On the accession
Henry's grandson, Malcolm, to the: Scottish throne, i
the age of thirteen, he was summoned to Lond, ‘
Henry II., to do.homage to him for 4 of
berland, Northmnberlnnd and Hu \
losing them ; and not long af e
a second summons, commandi
where he had assembled a parl
of having in the late can
th::%mg Henry had carried him
the plans of the English army,
forfeit his English possessions, _ bcm
comtnes«md, but. it termi
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the parliamenta m in the west, had suddenly inundation ; for although they have a more elevted sur-
entered the as eastern counties, n Hun- face than those which lie between them and the sez, yet
was sceneofuputofthe ilities they are much worse drained, in consequence, as it is

occuiomd,k\tm by the appearance in arms of the
Earl of Holland, the Duke of Buckingham, and others
in the royal cause, with an immediate view to the
relief of Colchester. The Earl of Holland, after being
driven by some of the parliamentary troops from his
quarters at Kingston upon Thames, and wandering over
e country with about a hundred horse, came to St.
Neots, in this county, where he was beset by his pursuers,
and surrendered himself without resistance, two of his
officers at the same time-being killed upon the spot, and
the Duke of Buckingham making his escape by forcing
hm way through the enemy.
- Huntingdonshire is included in the diocese of Lin-
'coln and province of Canterbury, and forms an arch-
deaconry comprising the deaneries of Huntingdon, St.
Ives, Leightonstone, St. Neots, and Yaxley, and con-
taining ninety-three parishes, of which fifty-seven are
rectories, t.wgnty-nine vicarages, and the remainder
perpetual cura.cles, or united with other parishes. For
civil purposes it is divided into the four hundreds of
Norman-Cross, which includes the northern part of the
‘gounty ; Toseland, the southern; Hurstingstone, the

_eastern ; and tonstone, the western It contains
¢ “the borough and market town of Huntingdon, and the
market to: mbolton, Ramsey, St. Ives, and St
Neots. Two are returned for the shire, and two

the h of Huntingdon. This
il*inMd in the Norfolk cu-cm;ng the assizes
sic ¢ held at Huutingdon, where

‘there are twenty-two acting
A peculiarity in the civil
e is, that it is included
with Cambridgeshire ; the
one year from the county

'om the Isle of Ely, and the
’ﬂu rates rdised in the
h 25th, 1627, amounted
to £48276. 12., of

asserted in the report of the survey, of some defect in
the original plan of the dykes. The county is rather bare’
of timber, which is owing to the very great demand for
it in the fens. Turf is used as fuel in nearly half the
parishes ; but the inhabitants generally use wood and
coal also, though in many places very little of the latter
is burnt: in the cottages of the lower class, stubble,
bean straw, reeds, and dried dung, are alsoused as fuel.
The only rivers of magnitude are the Ouse and the Nene,
The Ouse enters the county at St. Neots, whence it flows
northward to Huntingdon : in the vxc'mty of that town
it takes an easterly course by 8t. Ives, and having
formed the bounda.ry between this county and that of
Cambridge, it enters Cambridgeshire near Earith, being
navigable in the whole of its course through this county.
The Nene forms the northern boundary of the county,
separating it from Northamptonshire, and is navigable
in all that part of its course. The greater part of the
county, owing to the want of springs, is supplied with
water from ponds. The great north road from London
to Edinburgh enters the southern border of the county
near St. Neots, and passing through Buckden, Stilton,
and Yaxley, enters Northamptonshire at Wansford
bridge. The turnpike roads are numerous, and most
of them very good and well formed : in consequence of
the scarcity of materials in many parts, a power is
given to the commissioners to pick off all the stones
that can be found on any of the farmers' lands.

The principal Roman stations in Huntingdonshire
were Duroliponte and Durobrive, the sites of which
are respectively at Godmanchester, or Huntingdon, and
near Dornford Ferry. Of the ancient roads the three
prineipal were as follows : — The British Ermin-street
appears to have entered the county from the neighbour-
hood of Cmsar’s Camp, in Bedfordshire, and to have
run by Crane hill, in the track since known by the
name of Hell lane, whence, passing through Toseland,
Godmanchester, and Huntingdon, and by Alconbury,
Weston, and Upton, and i into the line now
called the Bullock road, it entered Northamptonshire
at Wansford. The Roman Ermin-street entered this

_county from Cambridgeshire, in the vicinity of Pap-
worth-St. Agnes, and proceeding, nearly in the line of

the high road, to Godmanchester, thence followed

 the course of the British Ermm-ntreet, to the vicinity of

, where bran off to the eastward, it re-

lunedthclineofthepmenthigh road, through Sawtry,

 Stilton, and Chesterton, to the station of Durobrive, where
fit:ﬂtend Northamptonshire. The Via Devana entered

hire, in the neighbourhood

¢ of Fen-Stanton, and proceeded, in the line of the pre-

N
O

uumed.h‘“

W.W'P

a

sent‘tumpnke-road, to Godmanchester, whence purlning
of (ke British Ermin-street to Alconbury, it

o the north of Buckworth and Old Weston, and

amptosshire in the vicinity of Clapton..

Numemtm'eoim have been discovered at God-

manchester : coins, coffins, urns, lachrymatories,

have been found near the site of the station Durobrive ;

Cars-dyke, supposed to hav. “'".:mm‘
the Romans, enters Hun i



the la)ncwnt and mitmd msey,
mrkahleehurchumthngoh it
St. Neots, Godmanchelta',“
Amongtheaucwutmmdm
ing, fmmthelranuquityud
Buckdmpuhce, he
Kimbolton castl

) a ptruh in the hundred of
coul gfﬁumqudu (W.8. W.) from
) , containing 386 inhabitants, The living is
' ,quh Mof Cookley, in the archdeaconry of
‘and diocese of Norwich, rated in the king's
. books at £13. 6. 8,, and in the patronage of Lord Hun-
. tingfield. The church is dedicated to St. Mary. Berry
- Snelling, in 1725, left a rent-charge of £4 a year for
- the instruction of children. Huntingfield gives the title

- of baron to the family of Vanneck,

HUNTINGFORD, a tything in the pnmh of
;Vorron under Em:}ngmdlvimnofztt:hnndndof
. BERKELEY, county LOUCESTER, population
| is returned with the

HUNTINGTON, a township in that of the
- parish of St. OswaLp, Cugster, which is in the lower

. division of the hundred of Broxtox, county pdlﬂne

HUNTISHAM, a towns
ricu, lower division of the
of Hn.mn Thp'

and in. thep-tmnageoftheRevJobnMorn. The
church, dedicated to St. John the hll lm re-
ceived an addition of one hundred and five

the Incorporated Society for. theenlugemmt of ehm'ctel
and chapels having granted £30 toward

expense. There is a trifling endowment for teaching twe
children.

HUNTON, a parish in the hnndnd of TWYFORD,
lathe of Avvresrorp, county of Kenr, 6 miles (8. W.
by 8.) from Maidstone, containing 683 inhabitants.
The living is a rectory, rated in the kinga hooks
#£16, 18, 14., and in the peculiar juris
age of the Archbishop of erbur
dicated to St. Mary, is a neat. edific
handsome monuments of chennm who:
at Burston is now used as a farm-hou
desecrated. The river Beult runs
and falls into the Medway at Yddin
plmtatmns ofhopu: In the




eaconry and diocese of Exeter, rated in the king's
s at £10.12. 11, William Troyte, Esq. was patron
ﬂ H AW, a parish in the hundred of FrEMING-
ToN, county of Devoxn, 3 miles (N. N. E.) from Great
T 1, 291 inhabitants. The living is
of le, and
king’s books at £11.7.1.
The Earl of Orford was patron in 1787. The church
‘dedicated to St. Mary Magdalene. John Lovering,
“bequeathed £200 to purchase lands, a moiety
of which, viz., £16, is applied in teach-
sixteen children. Huntshaw has also the right of
oehdingt!:gpoor boys to the school at Weare-Giffard.
shidle PILL, a parish comprising the tything
of Aston-Morris, in the hundred of BempsToNE, but
chiefly in the hundred of HuntsriLn and Purrron,
county of SomerseT, 74 miles (N. by E.) from Bridg-
water, and containing 1337 inhabitants, The living is
a rectory, in the archdeaconry of Wells, and diocese of
Bath and Wells, rated in the ki
and in the patronage of the Master and Fellows of
Balliol College, Oxford. The church is dedicated to All
Saints. Here isa place of worship for Baptists. This
parish Borders on.the Bristol channel, and is situated
at the mouth of the river Parret, which is navigable
% s of considerable burden up to Highbridge,
h hamlet it is crossed by a bridge. A market
s#merly held here has been long discontinued. There
ee fairs ree ; one at Huntspill on June 29th,
al on August 10th and December
How, in 1817, bequeathed a
jon of ten children. Beauti-
rap and Helix species,
ip with Helmington, in
T, ANDREW, AUCKLAND,
vision of DARLINGTON

,

’s books at £72. 5. 5.,"

_the old mansion at
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vicarage, in the of Berks, and diocese of
Salisbury, rated in the king's books at £6. 13. 64., and
m_hep o olfl'lfheﬂan.Mr.Fbwu‘. The church,

cated t. Mary, has portions in the Norman
style of architecture, the supposed remains of a chapel
belonging to a priory of Black monks, dedicated to the
Virgin Mary, a cell to the abbey of Westminster, which
was founded, in the of William the Congueror,
by Godfrey de Mandevill, and the revenue of which, at the
dissolution, was valued at £134. 10. 8. : its site is now
occupied by a mansion called Lady Place, in a vault
beneath which were held the mectings of the confederate
lords for promoting the Revolution, in 1688, among
whom Lord Lovelace distinguished himself in bringing
about the abdication of James II., and the elevation of
William' and Mary to the throne. On a tablet at one
end are recorded the visits of William II1., George I1I.
and his Royal Consort, and of the celebrated General
Paoli, to this dark recess. The adjoining stable was
once the refectory of the priory, the windows of which
are s;tﬁ remaining. The river Thames runs through the
parish.

HURN, a joint tything with Parly, in the parish
and hundred of CmrisrcuurcH, New Forest (West)
division of the county of Sovurmameron, $3 miles
(N.W. by N.) from Christchurch, with which the popu-
lation is returned.

HURSLEY, a parish in the hundred of BupprLEs-
cAaTE, Fawley division of the county of Sovrmameron,
44 miles (S. W. by W.) from Winchester, containing 1302
inhabitants, The living is a vicarage, with the perpetual
curacy of Otterbourne, in the peculiar jurisdiction of the
incumbent, rated in the king's books at £9, and in the
patronage of Sir W. Heathcote, Bart. The church is dedi-
cated to All Saints. Hursley is within the jurisdiction
of the Cheyney Court held at Winchester every Thursday,
for the recovery of debts to dny amount. At Merdon, in
this parish, are some remains of a palace of the bishops
of Winchester, which was erected by Bishop De Blois,
and became ruinous so 1 as the fourteenth
century. It was at this place, called by the ancient
chroniclers Merantune, that Kynewulph, King of the West
Saxons, was murdered by Kyenard, brother to Sigebert,
whom he had succeeded on the throne, but who had af-
terwards been driven into exile, Merdon belonged to the
Protector, Richard Cromwell, in right of his wife Dorothy,
eldest daughter of Richard Maijor, Esq., of Hursley, In
Richard resided during
ygreat part of the time that his father held the Protec-
hither, also, he retired for a short period prior
Restoration and to his voluntary exile on the
‘his death, in 1712, he was interred in the
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St. Nicholas, contains, among other handsome monu-
ments, one to the memory of Margaret, wife of Sir
Henry Savile, founder of the Savilian Profesgorship at
Oxford, and another to Sir Richard Harrison, who twice
raised, at his own expense, a troop of cavalry for the
gervice of Charles I. An hospital was founded here by
William Barker, Esq., who died in 1685, fer eight poor
persans, to each of whom he gave three shillings and
sixpence weekly., Dame Dorothy Harrison, in 1690,
gave £7 per annum for the instruction. of eight boys ;
and Edward Polchampton, in 1721, erected a chapel,
school-room, and dwelling-house, which he endowed
with £40 & year, for a clergymean to officiate in the
chapel and teach ten boys.

HURST, a parish partly within the liberty of Rom-
NEY-MarsH, but chiefly in the hundred of STreET,
lathe of SuEPWAY, county of KenT, 54 miles (W.) from
Hythe, containing 30 inhabitants. The living is a rec-
tory, in the archdeaconry and diocese of Canterbury,
rated in the king's books at £4. 18. 4, Miss Carter
was patroness in 1818, The church, dediceted to St
Leonard, being in ruins, the inhabitants attend divine
worship at Aldington. The Grand Militury canal passes
through the parish.

HURST, a township in the parish of Woobprogn,
eastern division of MoreeTH Ward, county of NorTH-
UMBERLAND, 5% miles (E. by N.) from Morpeth, con-
taining 42 inhabitants. Hurst castle was one of the
fortresses erected in this part of the kingdom to repel
the incursions of the Scots.

HURST (LONG), a township in that part of the
parish of BormArLr which is in the eastern division
of MowreTu ward, county of NORTHUMBERLAND, 21
miles (N. E.) from Morpeth, containing 176 inhabitants,

HURST (OLD), a parish in the hundred of HursT-

INGSTONE, county of HunTinGgDON, 4} miles (N. by w.)

from St. Ives, containing 156 inhabitants. The living
is a perpetual curacy with that of Waoodhouse, in the
archdeaconry of Huntingdon, and diocese of Lincoln,
and in the patronage of the Vicar of St. Ives, The
church is dedicated to St. Peter.

HURST (TEMPLE), a township in the parish of
Birkin, lower division of the wapentake of BArksToNE-
AsH, West riding of the county of York, 34 miles
(N.W.) from Snaith, containing 141 inhabitants, The
Knights Templars founded a preceptory here about
1152,

HURST-COURTNEY, a township in the parish
of Birkin, lower division of the wapentake of Barx-
sroNE-AsH, West riding of the countyof Yorxk, 3 miles
(N.w,) from Sneith, containing 145 inhabitants. %

HURST-MONCEAUX, a parish in the hundred-of
FOX¥ARLE, T of HasTINGs, county of Sussex, 4 miles
(E.) from Haylsham, containing 1318 inhabitants. The
living is a rectory, in the mhdeamnry of Lewes, and
diocese of Chichester, rated in the king's boeks &t £20,

and in the patronnge of Francis Hare Naylor;Bsg.: The
church, dedicated to All Saints, is'an muw d-wpa-
cious edificé in the esirly style of Englig ;
containing some curious : gnents,  Thae
is a place of worship for In < The: howse of
ﬁlﬂt—ﬂmeeanx, erecud by Log gy’ treantired - do
!laiisq Vi, wu formerly ot of lhlh isitat campeilnted
brick’ in England ; ‘bt i lm the roof: was
taken' urd & great Part destioyed, though a ‘con-
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siderable part of the walls, and the towervand gatewsy,
are still standing.

HURST- PIERREPDINT, a parish in the hundred
of BurTincaILL, rape of Lewrs, county of Susszx, 11
miles (W.N.W.) from Lewes, containing 1321 inhabit-
ants, The living is a rectory, in the archdeaconry of
Lewes, and diocese of Chichester, rated in the king's
books at £15. 9. 44., and in the patronage of Sir E.
Winnington, Bart. The church, erected in the reign of
Edward 111., and dedicated to St. Lawrence, comprises
two chancels, one being a continuation of the south
aigle ; and there is a very ancient font, besides several
interesting monuments. Henry Campion, in 1750, be-
queathed a rent-charge of £5, and William and Ann
Lindfield, in 1806, left certain stock producing annually
about £50, for which sums one hundred children are
instructed at different schools in the parish. A fair
formerly held in August was changed, about sixty years
ago, to the lst of May.

HURSTBOURN-PRIORS, a parish in the hun-
dred of Evingar, Kingsclere division of the county of
SourRAMrTON, 2 miler (W,8.W.) from Whitchurch,
containing 404 inhabitants. The living is a discharged
vicarage, in the peculiar jurisdiction of the incumbent,
rated in the king's books at £12. 19. 4}., endowed with
£300 private benefaction, and £ 200 royal bounty, and
in the patronage of the Bishop of Winchester. The
church is dedicated to St. Andrew. Hurstbourn is
within the jurisdiction of the Cheyney Court held at
Winchester every Thursday, for the recovery of debts to
any amount.

HURSTBOURN-TARRANT, a parish in the hun-
dred of Pastrow, Kingsclere division of the county of
SouTHAMPTON, 54 miles (N. by E.) from Andover, con-
taining 766 inhabitants. The living is a vicarage, with
the perpetusl curacy of Vernhams-Dean, iw the archdea-
conry und diocese of Winchester, rated Jn the king's
books at £8. 12. 6., and in the patr e of the Pre-
bendary of Hurstbourn and Burbage in; Cathedral
Church of Salisbury. The church is Sedicated to St.
Peter. The river-Swift bas its source in this parish.
Peter Dore and Willam Jones, in 1756, bequeathed

togethcr £7.10. per annum, for teachhlgatghtemchsb

. " HURSTLEY, a township in that-pert of the pa-
rish of Lerron which is in the hundred of Woreny,
though locally in that of Stretford, county of Hsrz-
roRD, 5 miles (W.8.W.) fmmWeobley,mnM 68

HURSTWICK, joint township with Nostal,
sl a2 nt in
that part of the parish of Wracay .whish is in the
upper division of the -of, Dagornoross, West
riding of the county of Yorx, S usilen (8, W, by w.)
from Pontefract, containing 44

v+ HURWORTH, a perish: hﬂe‘mnﬂhmmm A
Vision df SrocxTox mmmw Dun
HAM, ‘Comprising the of Hurworth and Nege
sham, or Nysam, aﬂm 194 inhabitame, . of
which number, 811 ane: i the:! hip of Hurworth

miles o . The living,ig-n
5% tﬁm&i e ﬁml_»iw
medinmwnmwam.t.a. W, Hagg: and

Ri Ho Wilkisxwokyisqee. weve . patrons alteristefy in
1784; - mﬂmwmwsum,m
ventee of thie xilnge, whith cousiste of am
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built street;situsted on the brow of a steep hill, at the
foot of which flows the Tees, and commanding a fine
snd extensive view of the windings of that river through
Teesdale, and of its oppesite banks, which, rising sb-
ruptly to a. great height, form an amphitheatre several
miles in circuit. A place of worship for Wesleyan Me-
thodists was opened in 1827. The manufacture of linen
is carried on in the parish, A school-house was erected
in 1825, by subscription, aided by a grant of £30 from
the National Society, in which about one hundred chil-
dren receive daily instruction, and forty attend on Sun-
days. William Emmerson, a self-taught mathematician,
was born and resided here ; he died in 1782, aged eighty-
one years,

HUBBORN-CRAWLEY, a parish in the hundred
of MANsSHEAD, county of Beproup, 24 miles (N.by E.)
from Woburn, containing 572 inhabitants, The living
is a discharged vicarage, in the archdeaconry of Bed-
ford, and diocese of Lincoln, rated in the king's books
at £9, endowed with £200 private bencfaction, and
£200 royal bounty, and in the patronage of the Duke
of Bedford. The church, dedicated to St. Mary Magda-
lene, occupies an elevated situation, and has a tower
eighty feet high,

HUSTHWAITE, a parish within the liberty of Sr.
Peter of York, East riding, though locally in the wa-
pentake of Birdforth, North riding, of the county of
York, comprising the chapelry of Carlton, and the
township of Husthwaite, and containing 493 inhabit-
ants, of which number, 824 are in the township of
Husthwaite, 4 miles (N. by w.) from Easingwould. The
living is a perpetual curacy with Carlton, in the peculiar
Jurisdiction of the Dean and Chapter of York, endowed
with £200 private benefaction, and £200 royal bounty,
and in the patronage of the Prebendary of Husthwaite
in the Cathedwel Chniech of York.

HUTTORT, = purish in the Marsh division of the
hondred of 4 ORTH, purts of LINDSEY, county
of LincoLn/s: miles (E.) from Alford, containing 401
inhabitants. The living is a discharged vicarage, in
the archdeaconry and diocess of Lincoln, rated in the
king's books at £6. 11. 8,, endowed with £600 royal
bounty, and in the -of the Bishop of Lincoln
by sequestration. The church is dedicated to St. Mar-
garet. There is a place of worship for Wesleyan Me-

HUTTON, =a parish in the hundred of BarsTaBLE,
tounty of Essex, 24 miles (W.) from Billericay, con-
taining 418 inhabitants. The living is a rectory, in the

; of Essex, and diocese of London, rated
n'thé king'e books at £8, and in the of the
Desn and- of St.Paul's, London. The church
is'dedionted to All Seints, -

*Iﬂmr'a ‘township in the parish of Pznwog-

AR
camien; 4'mbles. (8. W. by W.) from Preston, gontain-
#4g'0Y8 inhabitants. The free grammar schoal of Pen-
‘wosrthiesy is 'situsted in this township.

s in the parish

> y:a-pasish in the hundred of WinrTea-
srons, ‘coluty' -uf: Somzmser; 7 miles (N.W. by w.)

from Axbridge; conseining 326 inbabitnts. The lkiving

of th;ou,
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18 & rectory, in the archdeaconry of Wells, and dincese
of Bath and Wells, rated in the king's books at £14.
A. G. H. Battersby, Esq. was patron in 1825. The
chu.rch is dedicated to St. Mary : in the interior is a fine
groined ceiling, and the pulpit is of stone, richly orna-
mented with sculpture. The manorial court-house is a
curious edifice, comprising an antique hall, with a fine
old oak ceiling, und a large square tower on one side.
Some ores of copper, lapis calaminaris, and yellow ochre,
have been dug out of a hill southward of the church :
here are also curious subterraneous caverns communica-
ting with the shafts of old mincs, in which have been dis-
covered considerable quantities of the bunes of elephants,
tigers, hyenas, boars, wolves, horses, and other animals,
and of birds, supposed to be of antediluvian origin,

HUTTON, a township in the parish of Loxc Mars-
TON, ainsty of the city, and East riding of the county,
of Youk, 4§ miles (N.N. E.) from Tadcuster, containing
125 inhabitants. Here were formerly a market and a
fair for three days.

HUTTON, a township in the parish of Rubsy in
CLEVELAND, western division of the liberty of Lanc-
BAURGH, North riding of the county of York, 4% miles
(W.8. W.) from Stokesley, containing 919 inhabitants.

HUTTON in the FOREST, a parish in LeaTs ward,
county of CuMBERLAND, comprising the townships of
Hutton in the Forest and Thomas-Close, and contain-
ing 252 inhabitants, of which number, 157 arc in the
township of Hutton in the Forest, 54 miles (N.W.) from
Penrith. The living isn a discharged rectory, in the
archdeaconry and diocese of Carlisle, rated in the king's
books at £18. 12. 84, and in the patronage of the
Dean and Chapter of Carlisle. The chucch isvdedicated
to St. James. A school was founded in 1715, by Tho-
mas Fletcher, Esq. and others, and endowed with land
producing about £30 per annum. There are thirty-five
scholars, each of whom pays quarterage.

HUTTON (HANG), a township in the parish of
FincaLL, western division of the wapentake of Hang,
North riding of the county of York, 34 miles (E. N. E.)
from Middleham, containing 25 inhabitants.

HUTTON i’ th' Hay, a joint township with Scath-
waiterigg-Hay, in that part of the parish of KexnpaL
which ig in KEnpaL ward, county of WEsTMORLAND,
34 miles (8.E. by E.) from Kendal, containing 348 in-
habitants.

HUTTON le HOLE, a township in the parish of
Lastincuam, wapentake of Ryzpare, North riding of
the county of Yorxk, 9 miles (N.W, by w.) from Pick-
ering, containing 304 inhabitants.

HUTTON (NEW), & chapelry in that part of the
parish of Kxnpar which is in KenpaL ward, county of
WesTMORLAND, 4 miles (E. 8. E,) from Kendal, con-
taining 127 inhabitants, The living is a perpetual
curacy, in the archdeaconry of Richmond, and diocese
of Chester, endowed with £200 private benefaction,
£ 600 roysl bounty, and £ 200 parliamentary grant, and

in the’ of the Vicar of Kendal. The chapel,
bujjt in 1739, is now being rebuilt. In 1778, Miles
Jarn gave 6§64 in aid of a school for poor children :
£4 per given to a master, the boys paying
also a . A large veservoir, which sup-
plies the and Lancaster canal, is situated partly
jn this tawnship

HUTTON (OLD), a chapelry in that part of the parish
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of Kexpar which is in KenpaL ward, comnty of West-
MORLAND, € miles (8.) from Burton in Kendal, contain-
ing, with the hamlet of Holmescales, 424 inhabitents.
The living is a perpetual curacy, in the archdeaconry of
Richmond, and diocese of Chester, endowed with £200
private benefaction, and £600 royal bounty, and in the
patronage of the Vicar of Kendal. The , dedica-
ted to St. John the Baptist, was built in 1628, and rebuilt
in 1699. A schoolwas built by Edward Milner, who in
1613 gave land towards the support of & schoolmaster :
the income is £ 19. 11. per annum,; and twenty children
are educated : the school was rebuilt by the inhabitants
and others in 17563, and in 1757 a parcchial library was
established in it.

HUTTON (SAND), a chapelry in the parish of
Trirsg, wapentake of BirprorTH, North riding of the
county of York, 4 miles (W.by8.) from Thirsk, con-
taining 273 inhabitants. The living is & perpetual
curacy, with that of Thirsk, in the archdeaconry of
Cleveland, and diocese of York, endowed with £800
royal bounty. The chapel is dedicated to St. Mary.
Here is a place of worship for Wesleyan Methodists.

HUTTON (SAND), a towuship in that part of the
parish of Bossanr which is in the wapentake of Buw-
MER, North riding of the county of York, § miles (N.E.)
from York, containing 202 inhabitants.

HUTTON (SHERIFF), a parish in the wapentake
of BuLmeRr, North riding of the county of Yorx, com-
prising the chapelry of Farlington, and the townships
of Cornbrough, Lillings-Ambo, Sheriff-Hutton, and
Stittenham, and containing 1278 inhabitants, of which
pumber, 756 are in the township of Sheriff-Hutton, 11
miles (N. N.E.) from York. The living is a discharged
vicarage, in the archdeaconry of Cleveland, and diocese
of York, rated in the king's books at £ 10, endowed with
£200 privase benefaction, and £200 royal bounty, and
in the patronage of the Archbishop of York.
church is dedicated to St. Helen. There are places of
worship for Primitive and Wesleyan Methodists, A
school is endowed with a rent-charge upon land given
for charitable purposes, in which more than twenty boys
are educated gratuitously in reading, writing, and arith-
metic, under two masters, A castle erected here in the
time of Stephen, by Bertram de Bulmer, was seized by
Edward IV., and subsequently became the prison of
Edward Plantagenet, wherein he remained till the death
of Richard at the battle of Bosworth field : the Princess
Elizabeth, afterwards consort of Henry VIL, was also
confined here.

HUTTON-BONVILLE, a chapelry in the parish of
Binkny, wapentake of Ax.un'mmnm:, North
of the county of Yomx, ¢4 miles (N.W. by N.) frotn
North AHerton, containing 107 inhabitants. The living
is a perpetual curacy, in the peculiar juriediction of the
Bishop of Durham, for Allerton end Allertonshire, en-
dowed with £800 royal hounty. “H., Piers, Kag, was
patronin 1791. The chapel is dedicated to'St; Lawrenoce.

HUTTON-BUSHELL, a parish:ia Pioxgrine 17&@,
North riding of the county of Yomx,
townships of Weat Ayton and:Hutton Bushell, and: m-
taining 648 inhabitants, of which: number, ﬂﬂamh
the ~township of umm;q
from Scarborough.
drehdmcmy of Clev
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of Earl Fitzwilliam. The church is dedicated to St.
Matthew. Here is a free nchooi, endowed with £14
per annum srising from various bequum for which
fourteen children are instructed. S

HUTTON-CONYERS, an extra.parochial liberty,
in the wapentake of ALLERTONSH IRE, though locally in
that of Hallikeld, North riding of the county of Yozk,
14 mile (N.N.E.) from Ripon, containing 127 inhabit-
ants ! L

HUTTON-CRANSWICK, a parish in the Bainton-
Beacon division of the wapentake of HarTmILL, East
riding of the county of York, comprising the townships
of Hutton-Cranswick, Rotsea, and Sunderlandwick, and
containing 1000 inhabitants, of which number, 917 are
in the township of Hutton-Cranswick, 34 miles (S.)
from Great Driflield. The living is a discharged vicar-
age, in the archdeaconry of the East riding, and diccese
of York, rated in the king's books at £15. 8. 6L, en-
dowed with £200 private benefaction, and £ 1100 par-
liamentary grant, and in the patronage of Lord Hotham.
The church is dedicated to St. Peter.

HUTTON-HENRY, a township in the parish of
Munx-Hesrrron, southern division of Easinecrow
ward, county palatine of Durnam, 12§ miles (N. by w.)
from Stockton upon Tees, containing 174 inhabitants.
Here is a place of worship for Roman Catholics.

HUTTON-JOHN, a township in the parish of GreY-
sTock, LEATH ward, county of CuMmsrrLaND, 6 miles
(W.s8.w.) from Penrith, containing 30 inhabitants,
This towuship consists of two estates only.

HUTTON-LOCRAS, a township in the parish of
GuiLsBroucH, eastern division of the liberty of Lane-
BAURGH, North riding of the county of Yonrk, 14 mile
(8.W, by 8.) from Guilsbrough, containing 56 inhabit-
ants. Here was un hospital for lepers, dedicated to S4.
Leonard, afterwards given to the priory 4 Guisbur.

HUTTON-MAGNUM, a parish in the western divi-
sion of the wapentake of Girring, North riding of the
county of YOrK, comprising the townships -of Hutton-
Magnum with Lane-Head, and West Layton, and con-
taining 317 inhabitants, of which number, 248 arc i
the township of Hutton-Magnum with Lane-Head, 84
miles (E. by 5.) from Greta-Bridge. The living is a
perpetual curacy, in the archdeaconry of Richmond, and
diacese of Chester, endowed with £800reyval bounty,
ang in the patronage of the Vicar of Gilling. The
church is supposed to have been hsﬁhbdm m reign
of Edward I1L

HUTTON-MULGRAVE, a townﬂup ll ﬂwmah
of Lates, eastern division of the Hiherty of Lane-,
8AvRGH, North riding of the comnty of ¥oux,, ‘J‘ miles’

taining 00 inkebitants.

HUTTON-ROOF, & townshig: Ju:-the parish .of

mﬂvunnuun,

; HU’I‘&ON-H.QOE iini the:parish of Kemg:
"sv-LONSPALE, Lonsnass werd, goonty of Wxsemany

uun,&}mlles(’w._.
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was erected by sabecription in 1773, and endowed by
Thomas Chamney with £100: the income is £ 10 per
amum.  Here are several quarries of limestone,

HUTTON - SESSAY, a township in the parish of
Sewesay, wapentake of ALLERTONSHIRE, though locally
in that of Birdforth, North riding of the county of
York, 5% milea (N.W.) from Easingwould, containing
129 inhabitants.

HUTTON-SOIL, a township in the parish of GreY-
sTOCK, LEATH ward, county of CoMperLAND, 6 miles
(W. by 8.) from Penrith, containing 280 inhabitants.

HUTTONS-AMBO, a parish in the wapentake of
BuLmer, North riding of the county of York, 3 miles
(8.w.) from New Malton, consisting of High and Low
Hutton, and containing 445 inhabitants, The living is
a perpetual curacy, in the archdeaconry of Cleveland,
and diocese of York. endowed with £400 private bene-
faction, £400 royal bounty, and £300 parliamentary
grant, and in the patronage of the Archbishop of York.
The church is dedicated to St. Margaret. There is a
place of worship for Wesleyan Methodists.

HUXHAM, a parich in the hundred of Woxrorp
county of Devon, 34 miles (N.N.E.) from Exeter, con-
taining 172 inhabitants. The living is a rectory, united
to that of Poltimore, in the archdeaconry and diocese
of Exeter, rated in the king's books at £8. 6. 8, and in
the patronage of the Rev. Richard Bampfylde. There
are mines of manganese in this parish.

HUXLEY, a township in the parish of WavERrTON,
lower division of the hundred of BroxToxn, county
palatine of CuesTER, 34 miles (W, by 8.) from Tar-
porley, containing 247 inhabitants. The Chester canal
passes on the south side of this parish.

HUYTON, a parish in the hundred of West DErny,

county palat: LancasTER, comprising the town-
ships of H Kmowsley, Roby, and Tarbock, and
containing 3 , of which number, 863 are

in the township of Huyton, 14 mile (S.W. by W.) from
Prescot. The living is-a discharged vicarage, in the
archdeaconry and dioeese gf Chester, rated in the king's
hooks &t £8. 9., endowed with £200 private benefaction,
and £1700 tary grant, and in the patronage of
the Earl of Derby. The church; dedicated to St. Mi-
chael, has portions in the later style-of English archi-
tecture : one humdred free sittings have been added, to-
wards defraying the expense of which the Incorporated
Sociéty for emlarging churches and chupels contributed
£100. Here is a small school, in which four free boys
are instracted for £10 per annum, arising from an en-
dowment of £200, and payable by the corporation of
There are veins of coal in this parish.

KHAM (NORTH), a parish in the lower divi-

sion of the wapentake of Booreey-Grarro, party of
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and diocese of Linceln, and in the patron of the
Bishop of Lincoln, The church is dedica:eg: to St.
Michael,

HYDE, a hamlet, consisting of East and West
Hyde, in the parish of Luron, hundred of FLrrr., county
of Beororo, 3% miles (S.E.) from Luton, containing
508 inhabitants,

HYDE, a chapelry in the parish of Stockrorr,
hundred of MaccLesFieLD, county palatine of CHESTER,
4 miles (N.E. by E) from Stockport, containing 3355
inhabitants. The living ie a perpetual curacy, in the arch-
deaconry and diocese of Chester, and in the patronage of
the Rector of Stockport. A chapel is in progress of erec-
tion, towards defraying the expense of which, the com-
missioners for building churches have granted £4500 ;
the site was piven by George Clarke, Esq. There are
places of worship for Independents, Wesleyan Metho-
dists, and Unitarians. Several large Sunday schools are
attached to these places of worship, supported by volun-
tary contributions, and another on an extensive scale is
now being erected by subscription, as an appendage to
the Independent chapel. So early as the reign of Jokn,
this township was in part owned by a family bearing the
name of Hyde, a descendant of which was the great
Lord Chancellor Hyde, Earl of Clarendon. It remained
until within a few years since 8 mere agricultural dis-
trict, thinly inhabited, but has since, by the establish-
ment of the cotton manufacture, become & rapidly in-
creasing township, which has also been greatly facili-
tated by a new communication with Manchester, effected .
by means of an act of parliament obtaived in 1818. In
this village and neighbourhood are some of the largest
spinning and power-loom establishments in the kingdom,
giving employment to nearly five thousand versons ; an
additional conveyance has also been made to Manchester
by water, by the Peak Forest canal, which passes through
this place, and unites with the Ashton canal: there
are extensive coal mines in the vicinity. One of the
county magistrates sits twice a week for the transaction
of business : constables and other officers are appointed
at the court leet of the King's Forest and manor of
Macclesfield. The court haron of Hyde and Haughton
is held at Hyde Hall, A literary and scientific institu-
tion was estoblished in May, 1821, and a mechanics’
institute in 1827.

HYDE -ASH, a hamlet in the parish of Lko-
MiNeTER, hundred of Worpny, county of HEREFORD,
6 miles (S.W) from Leominster. The population is
returned with the township of Ivington.

HYDE-PASTURES, an extra-parochial liberty, in
the Southam division of the hundred of KNicHTLOW,
county of Warwick, 24 miles (E.) from Nuneaton.
The population is returned with the parish of Hinckley,

Kzsrwvew, county of LincouN, 4} miles (5. W. by B,) » county of Leicester.

from Lincels, containing 998 inhabitants. The living

isa ncmz v, inthe archdeatoury and diocese of Lincoln, ,
rated: in’ the king

‘s books &t £19. 16. 3., andl in the

nags of the Crown.
cated to'All ‘Saints, gs fallen into ruins.
'HYOKHAM (SOUTH), a parish in the lower divisich
of thewspdatake of Baotrway-Grarro, parts of Keen
YENM; ‘of Lgweouw, 6 miles (8.W. by 8,) from Lin-
cols; | g, excitsivaly9f a portiow of the township
of “Hnddmgron which is'im s parish, 10R imhabitants.
The living is & perpstusl caracy, in the archlieacomdy

HYLTON, a township in the parish of Monk-
WEARMOUTH, eastern division of CaxsTER Ward, county
paiatine of Dursam, 3 miles (W.N.W.) from Sunder-

The church, which was dedi-."land, contsining 320 inhabitants. The castle, an an
'+, cient baronial mansion, has been greatly modernised,

the centre only ing any claim to antiquity: a
little to the northward there in a small but elegant pri-

- vate chapel,. It was the residence of ‘the ancient family

of Hylton from the time of King Athélstan to the year
46+ the has the arms of the Hyltons and
their alliances englaven o it im numerous plagas.





